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No dealer, broker, salesperson. or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make 
any representations other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other 
information or representations should not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority, the 
Borrower, the District or the Underwriter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the 
solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any state in which it is 
unlawful for such person to make such off er, solicitation, or sale. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: 

The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a 
part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and 
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such 
information. 

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the Authority, the Borrower, the District and 
other sources that are deemed to be reliable. The information herein is subject to change without notice. and 
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances 
create an implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Borrower since the date hereof. 

The Authority has provided only that information in this Official Statement that is contained under the 
heading "THE AUTHORITY" and, as to the Authority, under the heading .. LITIGATION" (as it relates to 
the Authority). The Authority has not furnished or verified any other information or statements contained in 
thh, Official Statement and is not responsible for the sufficiency, completeness, or accuracy of such other 
infi>rmation or statements. 

Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates. forecasts or matters of 
opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed 
as representations of fact. The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without 
notice, and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any 
cin:umstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the matters described herein since the 
date hereof. This Official Statement, including any supplement or amendment hereto, is intended to be 
depmited with one or more repositories. 

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE 
BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF 
ANY STATE. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR 
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 
BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN 
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$3.2!0,000 
California Community College Financing Authority 

Student Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Feather River Community College District Project) 

Series 2003A Tu·E1.empt 

$16!,000 
California Community College Financing Authority 

Student Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Feather River Community College District Project) 

Series 20039 Tuable 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

1his Official Statement. including the cover page and the Appendices hereto. provides certain 
infonnatic,n in connection with the sale by the California Community College Financing Authority (the 
.. AM!horlt:,,'') of $3,250.000 in aggregate principal amount of its Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather 
River Community College District Project) Series 2003A Tax·Exempt (the "Saies A Bonds"). and $165,000 
in aggregate principal amount of its Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River Community College 
District P:roject) Series 20038 Taxable (the .. Series B Bonds,'' and together with the Series A Bonds. the 
.. Bondsl to be issued by the Authority pursuant to an Indenture of Trust (the ''lndelll•re''). dated as of May I, 
2003. between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association. as trustee (the 'Trustee"). to (i) fuml a loan 
to Feather River College Foundation. Inc .. a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the .. Borrower"), 
to acquire and improve a 110-bed student housing facility, including the buildings. furniture. fixtures, and 
equipment dterefor (the .. Prt,jecf') located on property adjacent to the main campus of the Feather River 
Community College (the •-cottege"), operated by the Feather River Community College District (the 
-Districf"'I in Quincy, California. (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, and (iii) pay a portion of 
the costs ,of issuing the Bonds. Definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement are set forth in 
Appendix C hereto. 

The Project is currently being used as an apartment house. and substantially all of the residents of the 
Project are students at the College. According to the Disbict, the Project provides the best cunently available 
source of housing for students on or near the campus. The Project is being acquired by the Bonower with 
proceeds of the Bonds, in part. to allow the District to gain control of the Project and to ensure that it will 
continue to be available to students at the College. The Project is approximately 25 years old. and is 
constructed of wood frame and siding. The Project is comprised of six buildings of one and two-bedroom 
apartments on a 1.3.5 acre site. One-bedroom units are of approximately 480 square feet and two.hl�oom 
units are of approximately 636 square feet The Project is currently owned by a private, for·protit owDer who 
has owned the property since 1977. Proceeds of the Bonds will be lent to the Bonower for the pwpose of 
acquiring th,: Project from the current owner for a purchase price of $2.500.000, which is equal to the value 
given to ·the Project in an appraisal obtained by the Borrower. The Borrower also anticipates spending 
approximately $250.000 in additional proceeds of the Bonds, together with approximately $1,000,000 of 
additional fimds provided by the District, for the purpose of undertaking the renovation and improvement of 
the Project Engineering consultants to the District have advised the District that, upon the expenditure of such 
amounts for the renovation and improvement of the Project, the anticipated lifespan of the Project will be at 
least 25 years. In addition. the Project will be converted from 110 beds to approximately 150 beds by 
providing for double occupancy in all of the two-bedroom units. 



Under an Occupancy Agreement, dated as of May I, 2003 (the "Occupancy Agreemenr). between the 
Borrower and the District, the District has agreed to make certain payments to the Borrower. which have been 
assigned to the Trustee to guarantee a level of cash flow (before expenses) from the Project equal to that which 
would be produced by an occupancy of not less than 90% for the beds in the Project which are available for 
students at the College (excluding units to be made available to resident assistants and other employees of the 
Borrower and assuming a minimum of two beds per bedroom). The obligation of the District to make such 
payments under the Occupancy Agreement is subject to annual appropriation. and the right of the District to 
terminate its obligation to appropriate and make payments in the event of a failure of the Districtto apptopl iate 
funds for such pa}ments. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Occupancy 
Agreemenr and '"BONDHOLDERS' RISKS." 

The Authority will lend the proceeds of the Bonds to the Borrower pursuant to a Loan Agreement (the 
"Loan Agrttlf¥nf1. dated as of May I,  2003, among the Authority. the Trustee and the Borrower. The 
Borrower is obligated pursuant to the Loan Agreement to pay to the Authority such loan pa)ments as will be 
sufficient to pay the principal of. premium. if any, and interest on the Bonds. as the same become due. Under 
the Loan Agreement. the Borrower has made a pledge of Gross Project Revenues to the repayment of the 
Loan. In addition, the Borrower is also obligated to pay all expenses of operating and maintaining the Project 
in good repair, to keep it properly insured. and to pay all taxes, assessments. and other charges levied or 
assessed against or with respect to the Project. 

The obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement will be secured by a Deed of Trust with 
Absolute Assignment of Leases and Rents. Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (the WDeed o/Trusr), dated 
as of May I,  2003, pursuant to which the Borrower will grant to the deed of trust trustee named therein for the 
benefit of the Authority a first security interest in and to the Borrower's interest in the Project, and wilt assign 
and pledge to the Authority the Borrower's interest in the leases. rents, issues. profits, revenues, income, 
receipts, mmeys, royalties, rights, and benefits of and from the Project. 

The Authority, pursuant to the Indenture. �ill assign and grant a security interest in all of its rights 
(but none of its obligations) under the Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement and the Deed of Trust to 
the Trustee which. on behalf of the owners of the Bonds, will exercise all of the Authority's rights thereunder 
( except for the rights to certain fees of the Authority and indemnification). See ''SECURITY AND SOURCES 
OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS" herein. 

Notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Official Statement or in the Bonds or in 
any other agreement or document execnted in connection with or relating to the Bonds, the Bonds wiU 
be limited obllgadons of the Authority payable solely from the Revenues ( consisting primarily of 
payments made by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement and any payments by the District under 
the Occupancy Agreement) and from assets pledged under the Indenture for the payment thereof. The 
liability of the Authority under this Official Statement and uader the Bonds and under any other 
agreement or document executed in connection with or relating to the Bonds will be non-recourse to the 
Autholity, limited solely to the funds pledged as security for the Bonds in accordance with the 
Indenture, and any other funds or property given as security for the Bonds by the Borrower or othus; 
and the lien of any judgment shall be restricted solely thereto; and the Anthority will have no other 
liability, legal, moral, condngent or otherwise, to the Trnstee, any owner of the Bonds, the Borrower, or 
any other person, in connection with the Project, the Bonds, this Official Statement, or any other 
agreement or document execnted connection with or relating to the Bonds. 

This Official Statement and the Appendices hereto contain brief descriptions of, among other matters, 
the Authority, the Borrower, the Project, the Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Occupancy Agreement, the Deed 
of Trust and the Indenture. Such descriptions and information do not purport to be comprehensive or 
definitive. All references herein to the Loan Agreement, the Occupancy Agreement, the Deed of Trust and the 
Indenture (collectively, the "Bond Doc11-ntsj are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete text 
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of such docwnents, and references herein to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety to the forms of the: Bonds 
included in 1l1e Indenture. 

THE BONDS 

Gene1"al De,cription 

The Series A Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amolDlt of$3.250.000. will be dated their 
date of delivery. and v.ill mature on July l in the years and amounts set forth on the cover page hereof. The 
Series B Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $165.000. will be dated their date of 
delivery, and v.ill mature on July 1 in the years and amounts set forth on the inside cover page hereof. The 
Bonds v.ill bear interest at the rates per annum shown on the cover page of this Official Statement, payable on 
January I. 2004, and semi-annually thereafter on January I and July I (colleclively, the �llfleren Payml!nt 
Dates"" and each, an "'Interest Pay•III Date") until paid. in an amount equal to the interest accrued from the 
interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication of each Bond. unless such Bond is 
authenticated as of an Interest Payment Date for which interest has been paid or after the Record Date in 
respect thereof, in which case it will bear interest from said Interest Payment Date, or unless such Bond is 
authenticated prior to the Record Date for the first Interest Payment Date. December I 5. 2003, in which event 
such Bond will bear interest from its date of delivery. or lDlless, as shown by the records of the Trustee, 
interest on the Bonds shall be in default. in which event such Bond will bear interest from the date to which 
interest has been paid in full on such Bond, or unless no interest shall have been paid on the Bonds. in which 
event such Bond will bear interest from its date of delivery. 

Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in the denominations of $5,000 
and any multiple thereof('" A11tlloriud lklWlllinations"). 

Payment of the Bonds 

The principal of. premium. if any, and interest on the Bonds is payable by the Trustee to DTC while 
the Boom are held in book-entry form. Disbursement of such payments to ore Participants is the 
responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of 
DTC Paniicipants. In the event that the Book-Entry Only system is no longer used with respect to the Bonds, 
the Benefrcial Owners will become the registered owners of the Bonds and will be paid principal, premium, if 
any, and interest by the Trustee, all as described below. See Appendix G - "BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM:· 

Principal of and premium. if any. on the Bonds are payable by check or draft at maturity or at a date 
set for prior redemption at the Office of the Trustee to the registered owner of each Bond upon presentation 
and S\UTender of the Bonds being paid or redeemed. Interest on each Bond will be paid by check or draft 
mailed to the person in whose name such Bond is registered, at his or her address as it appears on the 
registration books of the Authority maintained by the Trustee. as bond registrar, as of the close of business on 
the fifteenth ( I 5th) day of the month (whether or not such day is a Business Day) next preceding each Interest 
Payment Date (the "Reg"'ar Record Date") for such payment, irrespective of any transfer or exchange of the 
Bond sub!,equent to a Regular Record Date and prior to such interest payment date. by the person in whose 
name the Bond is registered. unless the Authority shall have failed to pay the interest due on such Interest 
Payment !Date. At the option of the registered owner of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000.000) in 
aggregate: p1incipal amount outstanding of Bonds issued under and secured by the Indenture. interest s-.hall be 
paid by wire transfer in immediately available fiinds in accordance with written wire transfer instructions filed 
with the Trustee prior to the close of business on the Regular Record Date. Interest shall continue to be paid in 
accordance with such instructions. until revoked, except for the final payment of interest upon maturity or 
redemption prior to maturity which shall be paid only upon presentation of the Bond to the Trustee. 
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Bonds Are Limited Obligations 

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY AND THE PRINCIPAL 
THEREOF. PREMIUM. IF ANY, AND INTEREST THEREON ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM. AND 
SECURED I N  ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR TERMS' AND THE PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
SOLELY BY. THE REVENUES AND THE OTHER AMOUNTS PLEDGED THEREFOR UNDER THE 
INDENTURE. THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT 
OF THE AUTHORITY OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY AND ARE NOT SECURED BY A 
LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF. OR CHARGE OR LIEN UPON, ANY PROPERTY OF THE 
AUTHORrrY OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY OR ANY OF THEIR INCOME OR RECEIPTS 
EXCEPT THE REVENUES AND THE OTHER AMOUNTS PLEDGED THEREFOR UNDER THE 
INDENTIJRE. NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STA TE OR 
ANY PUBLIC AGENCY OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT 
OF THE PRINCIPAL OF. PREMIDM, CF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY 
HAS NO TAXING POWER. NEITHER THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS CONSTITUTES A DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE 
ST A TE OR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (OTHER THAN THE 
LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE AUlHORITY). 

Redemption 

Optional Redemption. The Series A Bonds maturing by their terms on July I. 2022. are subject to 
optional redemption by the Authority on any date on or after July I, 2013 to their respective stated maturity 
dates, as a whole or in part in such principal amounts, from such maturity dates, and from such series as 
selected by the Authority or the Borrower. from funds derived by the Authority or the Borrower from any 
lawful source and deposited with the Trustee not less than five days prior to the date of redemption, upon 
mailed notice as provided in the Indenture, at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of 
the principal amount of the Series A Bonds to be redeemed), together with interest accrued thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Periods 
July I, 2013 through June 30, 2014 
July l, 2014 and thereafter 

Redemption Price 
101% 
JOO 

Mqndqtory Sinl;ing Fund Redemption. Mandatory sinking fund redemption payments are hereby 
established for the mandatory redemption and payment of the Series A Term Bonds maturing on July l, 2013 
which payments shall become due on the dates and in the amounts set forth in the following schedule ( except 
that if any Series A Term Bonds have been otherwise redeemed in part. the amounts of such mandatory sinking 
fund payments shall be reduced by the principal amount of all such Series A Term Bonds so otherwise 
redeemed), namely: 
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Series A Teim Bonds Due Julv 1, 2013 
Date 

(July ll Amount 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1  
2012 
2013 

$ 30.000 
40.000 

1 10,000 
120.000 
135.000 
145,000 
150.000 
160,000 
160.000 (maturity) 

Mandatory sinking fund redeinption payments are hereby established for the mandatory redemption 
and payment of the Series A Term Bonds maturing on July I, 2022 which payments shall become due, on the 
dates and in the amounts set forth in the following schedule (except that if any Series A Term Bonds have been 
otherwise redeeined in part. the amounts of such mandatory sinking fund payments shall be reduced by the 
principal amount of all such Series A Term Bonds so otherwise redeeined), namely: 

Series A Term Bonds Due July 1 2022 
Date 

(July ]) 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Ex11·aordinary Redemption. 

Amount 

$ 170,000 
175,000 
185,000 
195,000 
210,000 
220,000 
230,000 
240,000 
575,000 (maturity) 

The Bonds are subject to redeinption in whole or in part (in inverse order of maturity and pro rata 
amongst Seiies) on any Interest Payment Date, at a price equal to the principal amount of Bonds to be 
redeeined .. plus interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redeinption, without preinium, upon prepayment 
of the Loim in whole or in part, in an amount as nearly equal as possible to, but not exceeding, the amount of 
any Net Proceeds of insurance or condeinnation awards not used to repair or replace the Project. 

The Bonds are also subject to redeinption in whole or in part (in inverse order of maturity and pro rata 
amongst !,eries) on any date at a price equal to the principal amount of Bonds to be redeeined, plus interest 
accrued thereon to the date fixed for redeinption, without premium, upon acceleration of the Loan in whole 
following an Acceleration Default. 

Partial Redemption. If less than all of a maturity of a series of Bonds is to be redeemed. other than 
pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redeinption, Bonds shall be selected by the Borrower for redeinption, or if 
not so sel·=cted. shall be redeeined in inverse order of maturity. If less than all the Bonds of a maturi�r are to 
be redeemed the Trustee shall select the Bonds within such maturity to be redeeined by lot, in whole multiples 
of Authorized Denominations. In no event shall bonds be redeeined in amounts other than whole multiples of 
minimum Authorized Denominations. For purposes of an extraordinary redeinption, the Trustee may round 
down to the nearest Authorized Denomination. For purposes of redeeming Bonds in denominations greater 

5 



than minimum Authorized Denominations, the Trustee shall assign to such Bonds a distinctive number for 
each such principal amount and, in selecting Bonds for redemption by lot, shall treat such amounts as separate 
bonds. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Authority and the Borrower in writing of the numbers of the 
Bonds selected for redemption. 

Notice o(Redemption; Cessation oflnterest. Notice of redemption will be mailed by the Trustee by 
first class mail (postage prepaid) not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for 
redempti.on ( or in the case of an extraordinary redemption. not less than 5 days before the redemption date) to 
the Securities Depositories and Information Services and to the registered owner of record of each Bond to be 
redeemed at the address shown on the registration books at the close of business on the fifth (5th) day 
preceding the date of the mailing; provided. however. that failure to give such notice by mailing to any Owner 
of Bonds or any defect therein will not affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of any other 
Bonds for which notice shall have been properly given. Such notice will state that payment of the applicable 
redemption price plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption will be made upon presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds to be redeemed and that on the redemption date. the redemption price will become due 
and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed and that interest thereon will cease to accrue on and after such 
date, provided collected funds for the redemption of the Bonds to be redeemed are on deposit with the Trustee 
at the place of. and the time for. payment Any notice mailed as provided in the Indenture will be conclusively 
presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the Owner of such Bonds actually receives such notice. 
Upon the written request of the Borrower. any notice of any optional redemption of Bonds to be redeemed 
pursuant to the provisions hereinabove described under the subheading '"O ptlonal Rd emption� may contain a 
statement to the effect that the redemption of such Bonds is conditioned upon the receipt by the Trustee of 
amounts equal to the redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed on or before the redemption date, and, if a 
notice of optional redemption contains such statement, such optional redemption .. ill be so conditioned. 

Notice of redemption having been given as described above. the Bonds or portions thereof designated 
for redemption will become and be due and payable on the date fixed for redemption at the redemption price 
provided for in the Indenture. provided funds for the payment of such redemption price are on deposit at the 
place of payment at that time. and, unless the Authority defaults in the payment of the principal thereof or 
premium. if any, and interest thereon. such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to bear interest from and after 
the date fixed for redemption. whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered for payment on such 
date. If any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption is not so paid upon presentation and surrender 
thereof for redemption, such Bond or portion thereof will continue to bear interest at the rate set forth therein 
until paid or until due provision is made for the payment thereof. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS 

Pledge and Assignment of Revenues 

Pursuant to the Indenture, all of the Revenues and any other amounts held in any fund or account 
established pursuant to the Indenture ( other than the Rebate Fund) are irrevocably pledged by the Authority to 
the punctual payment of the principal of, premium. if any, and interest on the Bonds, subject to the provisions 
of this Indenture permitting the application of such Revenues for the purposes and on the terms and conditions 
set forth herein. 

The Authority will lransfer in trust, grant a security interest in, and assign to the Trustee. for the 
benefit of the holders from time to time of the Bonds, all of its right, title and interest in (a) the Revenues. 
(b) all Gross Project Revenues, (c) amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund, the Surplus Fund, the Repair and 
Replacement Fund, the Gross Project Revenue Fund and the Bond Fund, (d) the Deed of Trust, (e) the 
Occupancy Agreement and (f) the Loan Agreement (except for the right of the Authority to receive fees, 
expenses and indemnification and its rights of enforcement with respect to such fees, expenses and 
indemnification thereunder). 
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All Revenues and all amounts on deposit in the Bond Fund. the Surplus Fund. the Repair and 
Replacem�nt Fund and the Reserve Fund shall be held in trust for the benefit of the holders from time to time 
of the Bonds. but shall nevertheless be disbursed. allocated and applied solely for the uses and pmposes set 
forth in th:: Indenture. 

The term .. Revenues .. means all amounts pledged under the Indenture to the payment of principal of. 
premium. if any. and interest on the Bonds, consisting of the following: (i) any portion of the net proc,:eds of 
the Bond� deposited with the Trustee; (ii) any income earned on investments of the funds and accounts held 
under the Indenture; (iii) proceeds derived from the exercise of any remedies provided for under the Deed of 
Trust (iv) proceeds derived from the exercise of any remedies under the Occupancy Agreement: and (v) at all 
times while any Bonds are Outstanding. (A) any repayments of the Loan required or permitted to be made by 
the BorTOwe:r pursuant to the Loan Agreement, (B) amounts dra"n by the Trustee from the Reserve Fund. the 
Swplus Fund, or the Repair and Replacement Fund for transfer to the Bond Fund for payment of the Bonds. 
(C) all N�:t Proceeds including insurance proceeds and condemnation awards as set forth in the: Loan 
Agreement and (D) any Gross Project Revenues (including those amounts received under the Occupancy 
Agreement) received by the Trustee pursuant to the Loan Agreement; but such tem1 shall not include payments 
to the United States for rebate obligations. the fees and expenses of the Authority or the fees and expenses of 
the Trustee. 

The Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds will be secured by the Revenues on a parity with each 
other and each owner thereof will have the same rights upon an Event of Default as the owner of any other 
Bonds executed and delivered under the Indenture. 

Occupan<1 4.greement 

The Borrower and the District have entered into an agreement regarding the operation of the Feather 
River Apartments, dated as of May l ,  2003 (as previously defined, the -occupancy Agreement"). The 
Occupancy Agreement provides that it may be terminated at any time upon mutual written agreement of both 
panies. Subject to the rights of the District to terminate its obligations to make payments respecting the 
occupanc�· guarantee in the event the District does not appropriate funds for such payment so long as any of 
the Bonds are outstanding, the Occupancy Agreement may not terminate earlier than June 30, 2030, unless 
prior to effecting any such termination the Borrower shall have first confirmed in writing with each rating 
agency thtm maintaining a rating with respect to the Bonds that the rating on the Bonds then maintained by 
each of such rating agencies ·will not be downgraded as a result of any such termination. If the District fails to 
appropriat,� amounts owed under the Occupancy Agreement in any Fiscal Year, the District has the option (but 
not the ri::quirement) of terminating its payments and appropriation obligations under the Occupancy 
Agreement, and the District would have no further responsibility for payments thereunder. See 
'"BONDHOLDERS' RISKS." 

Toe Occupancy Agreement requires that the Borrower make the units in the Project available for the 
exclusive 1Jse of the College's students during each fall and spring semester. Not later than five business days 
after the ��cond full calendar week of each semester (each, an •'Occupancy Measurement Date"), the Borrower 
is obligated to notify the District of the number of beds in the Project which have been made available for 
students of the College, and the n 1DDber, if any, which were not rented as of the Occupancy Measurement 
Date. Under the Occupancy Agreement, the District has agreed to pay certain amounts ( .. Occupancy 
Guarantee Payments") to the Borrower to produce the level of cash flow (before expenses) which would be 
produced by a 90% occupancy level for beds in the Project which are made available for students of the 
College (excluding beds in units reserved for resident assistants and other employees of the Borrower, up to a 
maximum of five units and assuming a minimum of two beds per bedroom). In the event that the Project does 
not maintadn a 90% occupancy as of the Occupancy Measurement Date, the District is obligated to pay to the 
Borrower such Occupancy Guarantee Payments by the date which is 30 days after notice to such effect is 
received from the Borrower. Occupancy Guarantee Payments are required to be paid by the District from all 
amounts l<:gEd.ly available to the District; provided, however, that in each semester the obligation of the District 
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to pay Deficiency Rents shall be subject to annual appropriation by the District. Toe District has agreed to 
include its annual budget amounts deemed sufficient to provide funds sufficient to make all anticipated 
Occupancy Guarantee Payments. 

In addition. under the Occupancy Agreement. the District has agreed to pay to the Trustee for deposit 
in the Repair and Replacement Fund, an amount equal to $1 ,000,000 from funds made available to the District 
by the federal government pursuant to the Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination Act of 
2000. which amount the Borrower is obligated to use for the purpose of undertaking certain renovations and 
improvements to the Project after its acquisition by the Borrower. As more fully described in the Occupancy 
Agreement, the District is obligated to make such transfers in four annual payments of $250,000 each. with the 
first payment to occur on July l. 2003. The Occupancy Agreement provides for subsequent annual payments 
of $250,000 by the District on July I of 2004. 2005 and 2006. Engineering consultants to the Borrower have 
indicated their view that such improvements will extend the useful life of the Project to approximately twenty­
five years from the date ofissuance of the Bonds. 

For additional information concerning the Occupancy Agreement, see a cq,y of the Occupancy 
Agreement which is attached hereto as Appendix E. 

Limitation of Liability of the Authority 

Toe Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and the principal thereof. premium. if any, and 
interest thereon are payable solely front, and secured in accordance with their terms and the provisions of the 
Indenture solely by, the funds and security provided under the Loan Agreement, the Occupancy Agreement 
and the Indenture. The Bonds do not constitute a charge against the credit of the Authority or any Member of 
the Authority (including the District). and are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of, or charge or lien 
upon, any property of the Authority or any Member of the Authority or any of their income or receipts excepts 
the funds and security provided under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. Neither the faith and credit nor 
the taxing power of the State or any public agency or political subdivision thereof or any Member of the 
Authority is pledged to the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The Authority 
has no taxing power. 

THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABD..ITY OF THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY BUT SHALL BE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE FUNDS AND SECURITY PROVIDED THEREFOR BY THE 
BORROWER. NEITHER THE STATE, THE AUTHORITY NOR ANY MEMBER OF THE 
AUTHORITY (INCLUDING THE DISTRICT) SHALL BE OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL 
OF, PREMIUM (IF ANY) OR THE INTEREST ON THE BONDS, EXCEPT FROM THE FUNDS 
AND SECURITY PROVIDED UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE INDENTURE, AND 
NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, INCLUDING THE AUTHORITY OR ANY MEMBER OF 
THE AUTHORITY, IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM (IF 
ANY) OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS. THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS SHALL NOT 
DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY OR CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE THE STATE OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF TO LEVY OR TO PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION WHATEVER 
OR TO MAKE ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THEIR PAYMENT. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO 
TAXING POWER. 

Reserve Fund 

Under the Indenture. a Reserve Fund has been created and will be funded from proceeds of the Bonds 
with an amount equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement for the Bonds. Toe Reserve Fund will be used to pay 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and on any Additional Bonds to the extent there are 
insufficient funds on deposit in the Bond Fund on the date such payment is due. See "SUMMARY OF 
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PRINCIPAL FINANCING DOCUMENTS - THE INDENTURE - Reserve Fund"' in Appendix C hereto. 
If at any time the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve Fund Requirement the Gross 
Project Revenues will be used to restore the Reserve Fund to the Reserve Fund Requirement after the required 
deposits to the Operation and Maintenance Fund and the Bond Fund. See '"- Pledge of Gross Project 
Revenues: Flow of Funds" below. 

Pledge of Gross Project Revenues; Flow of Funds 

Pledge of Gross Prolect Reveuues. The Borrower agrees that, so long as any amounts due under the 
Loan Agreement remain unpaid, all of the Gross Project Revenues shall be deposited upon receipt by the 
Borrower (but in any event v.ithin five business days of receipt) in the Gross Project Revenue Fund which the 
Borrower shall establish and maintain with the Trustee. The Borrower pledges. and to the extent permitted by 
law grant!, a security interest to the Trustee in, the Gross Project Revenue Fund and all of the Gross Project 
Revenues to secure the payment of the Loan and the performance by the Borrower of its other obligations 
under the Loan Agreement. 

'·Gross Project Rt!l'enues� means generally all receipts, revenues. income and other moneys received 
by or on be half of the Borrower and derived from the ownership or operation of the Project, including all 
amounts paid by the District pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, interest earnings m the Reserve Fund. the 
Surplus F,md, the Gross Project Revenue Fund and the Repair and Replacement Fund. and all rights to receive 
the same. whether in the form of accounts, accounts receivable. contract rights or other rights, and the proceeds 
of such ri1:hts, whether now owned or held or hereafter coming into existence and including rental intemiption 
insurance proceeds, but not including insurance and condemnation proceeds (other than rental interruption 
insurance proceeds) with respect to the Project or any portion thereof or proceeds received upon the 
foreclosure sale of the Project. 

··Expenses o/Operaling and Maintaining the Project" means generally the reasonable expenses. paid 
or accrued, of operation, maintenance and current repair of the Project, as calculated in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, salaries, 
wages. employee benefits. payroll taxes, legal fees, cost of materials and supplies, costs of utilities. licenses, 
insurance. taxes, advertising, routine repairs. renewals. replacements and alterations occurring in the usual 
course of business, fees and expenses of the Trustee or the Borrower incurred in connection with calculations 
made pursuant to the Indenture, rebate obligations owed pursuant to the Indenture, costs of billings and 
collectiom1, and costs of audits. but do not include (i) any payments on the Loan or other Indebtedness. (ii) 
allowance for depreciation, amor1ization or renewals or replacements of capital assets ( except as provided 
above) of the Project, (iii) deposits to the Repair and Replacement Fund as required by the Loan Agreement, or 
(iv) payments to the Authority or the Trustee for certain extraordinary fees and costs under the Loan 
Agreement. 

Flow of Funds. Gross Project Revenues shall be deposited by the Borrower in the Gross Project 
Revenue Fund and. on or before the 1 5th day of each month, commencing July 15, 2003, the Trustee shall 
apply the Gross Project Revenues (which funds, after payment of Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the 
Project, shall thereafter be designated the Net Project Revenues) in the following order of priority: 

Operation and Maintenance Fund. The Trustee will deposit into the Operation and Maintenance 
Fund, the greater of (A) an amount necessary to increase the balance on deposit therein to one-sixth (116) of 
the Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project budgeted for the then current Fiscal Year, as set forth in 
the then c:urrent Operating Budget for the Project, (BJ Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project 
budgeted :for such year in the current Operating Budget and then currently due, and (CJ the actual Expenses of 
Operating and Maintaining the Project for such month as certified in writing by the Borrower to the Trustee. 
The Trustee shall have no responsibility for reviewing the Operating Budget and may rely conclusively on the 
certification of the Borrower as to any matters relating to the Operating Budget. 
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Bon,/ Fund. The Trustee will deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to (A) 116 of the interest due 
on the next Interest Payment Date plus (B) 1112 of the principal due on the next Principal Payment Date; 
provided that prior to the first Principal Payment Date the Trustee shall deposit in the Bond Fund an amount 
equal to the amount set forth for such month in the Loan Agreement. 

Resen,e Fund. The Trustee will deposit in the Reserve Fund an amount, if any, necessary to restore 
the Reserve Fund to the Reserve Fund Requirement. 

Repair and Replacement Fund. Effective Fiscal Year 2003-04, the Trustee shall deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund an amount equal to one- twelfth ( I/ 12� of the Repair and Replacement Fund 
Requirement for the Fiscal Year. The Repair and Replacement Fimd Requirement for Fiscal Year 2003-04 is 
$28.000, and the Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement for the succeeding Fiscal Year and each Fiscal 
Year thereafter shall be an amount equal to I 03% of the preceding Fiscal Year· s Repair and Replacement Fund 
Requirement. 

Surplus Fund. The Trustee will deposit any remaining Net Project Revenues for any month in the 
Surplus Fund and will apply amounts on deposit in the Surplus Fund as described wider the caption ·•surplus 
Fund"' below. 

Operation and Maintenance Fund 

Amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Fund. if any, may be used and withdrawn by the 
Borrower at  any time for any lawful purpose consistent with the Operating Budget for the Project. except that 
in the event that (i) the Borrower is delinquent in the repayment of the Loan, or (ii) an Event of Default under 
the Loan Agreement has occurred which has not been cured, the Trustee may, unless and until such 
delinquency and/or default is cured in accordance with applicable cure periods, thereafter exercise its rights as 
a secured party in the Operation and Maintenance Fund. During any such period, all deposits of Gross Project 
Revenues to the Operations and Maintenance Fund will be made after the payment to the Bond Fund 

Repair and Replacement Fund 

An amount equal to $1.000.000 is required to be deposited by the District (in four annual payments of 
$250.000 each. commencing July I. 2003, and then on July I of each of the three succeeding Fiscal years) into 
the Repair and Replacement Fund for the purpose of undertaking certain renovations and improvements to the 
Project. as set forth in the Occupancy Agreement. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR 
THE BONDS-Occupancy Agreement." Thereafter, amounts shall be deposited into the Repair and 
Replacement Fund as provided in the f low of funds above (both from amounts in the Gross Project Revenue 
Fund and from amounts in the Surplus Fund). Moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall be expended 
and used only for capital costs, including structural repairs to and reroofing of the Project, repair and 
replacement of major mechanical components of the project, the repair or replacement of equipment, furniture 
and fixtures used in the Project and any other capital costs and extraordinary maintenance expenses of the 
Project, for the purpose of maintaining the Project (collectively, "Repair anti Replacement Codi'). 

Amounts in the Repair and Replacement Fund will be used to pay principal of and interest on the 
Bonds and on any Additional Bonds to the extent there are insufficient f,unds on deposit in the Bond Fund, the 
Reserve Fund and the Surplus Fund on the date such payment is due. See "SUMMARY OF PRINOPAL 
FINANCING DOCUMENTS - THE INDENTURE - Repair and Replacement Fund" in Appendix C 
hereto. 

Surplus Fund 

Amoimts on deposit in the Surplus fund shall be used in the following order of priority at the 
following times in the amounts set forth below. 

to 



Bond Fzmti If there are insufficient funds on deposit in the Bond Fund on the day paymen1 of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds is due, then an amount necessary to make up insufficiencies in the Bond 
Fund will be transferred to the Bond Fund from the Surplus Fund by the Trustee. 

fund Transfers. If moneys in the Gross Project Revenue Fund are insufficient to fully fund the 
deposits contemplated to be deposited in the Operation and Maintenance Fund. the Bond Fund. the Reserve 
Fund and the Repair and Replacement Fund by the 15fi day of any month. then the Trustee shall, on 1he 1st• 
day of such month, use amounts on deposit in the Surplus Fund to cover such insufliciencies (in the order of 
priority set forth in the Loan Agreement). 

Other Transfers. If (or when) there are sufficient fmds m deposit in the Bond Fund to pay debt 
service on the Bonds and any required transfers have been made as described above. then the following 
transfers shall be made by the 120-di day after the end of the Borrower's Fiscal Year. The Trustee shall transfer 
such funds upon a Written Request of the Borrower, in any combination of amow1ts, to (i) the Repair and 
Replacem1mt Fund (to be applied to the payment of the Repair and Replacement Reserve costs identified by 
the Borro"ver in the related Written Certificate of the Borrower) and (ii) the Redemption Account of the Bond 
Fund (to be applied to prepay the Loan and optionally redeem the Series A Bonds in accordance with the 
related Written Request of the Borrower). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the preceding 
sentences. hi the event that the Net Project Revenues for such Fiscal Year exceed 150% of the Debt Service 
due on the Bonds Outstanding for such period (such excess amount hereby being referred to as, the 
.. Discretionary Surplus Net Project Revenues") the Trustee shall transfer to the Borrower (unless given Written 
Direction to the contrary by the Borrower) such Discretionary Surplus Net Project Revenues to be used and 
applied acc<N'ding to the discretion of the Borrower. to the extent not inconsistent with the covenants relating to 
maintaining the Tax-Exempt status of the Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

Deed of Trust 

As security for the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, the Borrower will execute 
and delive:r the Deed of Trust pursuant to which the Borrower will grant to the deed of trust trustee named 
therein for the benefit of the Authority a first security interest in and to the Borrower's interest in the Project 
and the Project Site and will assign and pledge, to the deed of trust trustee for the benefit of the Authority the 
Borrower·s interest in the leases, rents. issues, profits. revenues, income, receipts, moneys. royalties, rights, 
and benefits of and from the Project Property may be released from the Deed of Trust without bondholder 
consent und,:r the circumstances described in the Deed of Trust The Deed of Trust provides that property may 
be releasc:d thereunder under certain conditions. including a reconfirmation of the then existing rating on the 
Bonds by each Rating Agency then rating the Bonds. 

Title and Property Insurance 

A mortgagee's title insurance policy will be delivered in the amount of not less than the original 
principal amount of the Bonds to insure that the Trustee will have a valid first priority security interest in and 
to the Borrower's interest in and to the Project Site, subject only to the standard exclusions from the coverage 
of such policy. The Borrower has agreed in the Loan Agreement to keep the Project fully insured against fire 
and other casualties and to maintain certain specified amounts of liability and business interruption i11S1urance. 
See "SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL FINANCING DOCUMENTS - THE LOAN AGREEMENT -
Insurance·• in Appendix C hereto. 

Financial Covenants 

In the Loan Agreement. the Borrower has covenanted to charge in each Fiscal Year, such rates, fees, 
and charges for its facilities and services as will be sufficient to produce the Coverage Requirement l11e term 
•Ctnerag.? RequireJMnf" means. for any period of computation. the requirement that the ratio of (i) Net 
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Project Revenues for such period (including interest earnings accruing during such period) to (ii) the debt 
service on outstanding debt for such period. shall be equal to 1.20 or greater. 

Failure of the Borrower to maintain the Coverage Requirement shall not constitute an Event of Default 
under the Loan Agreement if Borrower shall. subject to existing law. (i) immediately engage a Financial 
Consultant to undertake a review of rents charged for the units in the Project. which review shall be set forth in 
a written report to be provided (within 30 days of delivery of the Borrower's Certificate identilying the 
coverage failure) to the Authority, the Trustee and each Rating Agency, for the purpose of determining such 
adjustments to rents as shall be necessary to thereafter generate sufficient Gross Project Revenues to allow the 
Borrower to satisfy the Coverage Requirement and (ii) undertake within sixty (60) days of completion of said 
rental review any adjustments recommended in said rental review and permitted by local, State and federal 
law: and if the coverage ratio does not fall below 1.00 in -the then current month. 

The Trustee shall notify the Borrower in wriling of any withdrawals of moneys from the Reserve Fund 
within three (3) Business Days of such withdrawal. Within seven (7) Business Days after the Borrower 
receives notice of such "'ithdrawal. the Borrower shall engage a Financial Consultant to undertake a review of 
rents then charged for units in the Project in order to determine such a<fiustments to rents as shall be necessary 
to thereafter generate sufficient Gross Project Revenues to allow the Borrower to (i) make payments of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as due. (ii) replenish the amount or amounts withdrawn from the 
Reserve Fund, and (iii) make the deposits required pursuant to the Loan Agreement. The aforementioned 
rental review shall be set forth in a written report to be provided within 30 days of the withdrawal from the 
Reserve Fund to the Authority, each Rating Agency and the Trustee. The Borrower shall implement. to the 
extent such action does not jeopardize the Tax-Exempt status of the Series A Bonds, any rental adjustments 
suggested by the review described in the previous sentence and permitted by local, State and federal law and 
the Leases within sixty (60) days from the date moneys were withdrawn from the Reserve Fund for such 
purposes. 

The Borrower further covenants and agrees that it shall, from time to time as often as necessary and to 
the extent permitted by law, revise the rates, fees, and charges aforesaid in such manner as may be necessary or 
proper so that its Net Project Revenues will be sufficient to meet the requirements of the Loan Agreement. and 
further, that it will, in order to comply with the provisions of the Loan Agreement, take all action within its 
power to obtain approvals of any regulatory or supervisory authority to implement any rates. fees, and charges 
required by the Loan Agreement. 

Enforceability ofRemedies 

The realization of value from the real and personal property comprising the Project and from the other 
security for the Bonds upon any default will depend upon the exercise of various remedies specified by the 
Bond Documents. These and other remedies may require judicial actions, which are often subject to discretion 
and delay and which may be difficult to pursue. See "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS - Enforceability of 
Remedies" and "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS - Pledge, Assignment, and Grant of Security Interest in Future 
Revenues" herein. 

Prohibition of Additional Bonds 

The Loan Agreement provides that the Borrower shall not enter into any contract, bond or other form 
of debt instrument that is secured by Gross Project Revenues. 

Operadon of Business; Noncompetition with Project. 

The Borrower covenanted in the Loan Agreement to continue its business in a business-like manner 
and to pursue all corporate opportunities to the Borrower. The Borrower further covenants that it will at no 
time during the term of the Loan Agreement acquire, construct, fund. invest in or in any manner support or 
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promote any housing pr(lject within the geographical boundaries of the District or which might in any way 
compete for tenants with the Project, unless the Borrower shall provide prior written notice of any of the 
foregoing events to each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds and the Borrower shall 
confirm in writing with each such Rating Agency prior to undertaking any action in furtherance of housing 
projects of the nature contemplated in this paragraph that the then rating on the Bonds maintained by such 
Rating Agency will not be downgraded as a result of such action. 
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DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

The following table sets forth the annual debt service amounts for the Bonds. 

CDIIBINEIJ 
DEBT SER\IICE SCHEIJUI.E 

FiscalYw Nol 
FlloalY• -- FlscalY• 

Dale Ptileie11 - -- llalll- Retffie Fund OebtSsvk'e 
5/29/2003 

111/2004 
101.01199 101.01199 

7/V2004 56.000 85,76�75 140.765.75 241.77674 (16,560.97) 225�17.77 
V1/2005 84,766.75 84,76675 
71112005 85,000 84,766.75 16�76675 254573.50 239381.68 

(15, 191.82) 
1M/2008 Ba042.50 83.04150 
71112006 95,000 Ba042.50 178.042.50 261,085.00 245,893.18 

(15, 191.82) 
VV2007 80,ll8250 80.98150 
71112007 80,96150 1II0.98150 271,925.00 256733.18 

110.000 (15,191.82) 
VV2008 78,418.75 78,418.75 
71112008 120.000 78,418.75 198,418.75 278,837.50 261.645.68 

(15.191.82) 
V1/2009 7�64!75 7�75 
7/1/2006 135.000 7M4a75 210,64!75 266,287.50 271,095.68 

(1� 191.82) 
1M/2010 72,521.88 72521118 
7Ml2010 145.000 72,521.88 217,521.88 290,043.75 274,851.93 

(15, 191.82) 
V112011 69.168.75 69.168.75 
7Hl2011 15�000 69,168.75 219.168.75 268,337.50 273,14�68 

(15.191.82) 
1M/2012 65,700.00 65,70000 
71112012 �000 65,700 IX) �700.00 291.400.00 278.208 18 

(15,191.82) 
11112013 82.000.00 6100000 
71112013 160.000 61000.00 22100000 284,000.00 268,8111.18 

(15, 191.82) 
11112014 58300.00 58,300.00 
7/V2014 170,000 58,30000 228.300.00 266.600.00 271.408.18 

(15, 191.82) 
11112015 53,79500 53,79500 
7M/2015 17�000 53.79�00 228.� 262,590.00 267.3911.18 

(15.191.82) 
11112016 49,15750 49,157.50 
7M/2016 18�000 49.15750 234,157.50 283.315.00 l611, 123.18 

(15,191.82) 
1M12017 44,28�00 �.00 
71112017 19�000 44�.IIO 23=.oo 283,510.00 l611.318.18 

(15.191.82) 
1/V2018 �087.50 �067.50 
71112018 210,000 �087.50 249.D87.50 288,175.00 271983.18 

(15.191.82) 
1/V2019 3352150 33.522.511 
71V2019 mooo 3352150 253,52150 267.�oo 271,853.18 

(15, 191.82) 
V1/2020 27,69150 27,69150 
7/1/2020 �000 27,69150 257,69150 265.38�00 270.193.18 

(15.191.82) 
V112D21 21,597.50 21.197.50 
71112021 240,000 21,597.50 261.597.50 263,19�00 268,IICll.18 

(15, 191.82) 
111/2022 15�7.50 1�37.50 
71112022 57�000 15�7.50 �237.50 Bll5.47�00 (335.019.62) 27MSS.38 
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Bonds: 

(I) 

(2) 

(3) 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The schedule below contains the estimated sources and uses of funds resulting from the sale of the 

SOURCES OF FUNDS: SERIES A SERIES B TOTAL 

Par Amount of Bonds $3,250.000.00 $165.000.00 $3.415,000.00 
Less: Original Issue Discount (51.722.00) (51.722.00) 
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $3. I 98.278.00 $165.000.00 $3. 363.278.00 

USES OF FUNDS: 

Deposit to Project Fund'') $2814.484.64 $2,814.484.64 
Deposit to Reserve Fund121 319.827.80 319.827.80 
C.osts oflssuarnxi" 63,965.56 165.000.00 228.965.56 

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS I� 121.�ZI fl! $165.000.00 $3.363.278.00 

Equal to the purchase price of the Project ($2,500,000), plus approximately $44,385.98 of 
mis<:ellaneous real estate closing costs and $270,098.66 of other redevelopment costs. In addition to 
such proceeds of the Bonds. an amount equal to $ 1,000,000 (in four annual payments of $250,000, 
commencing July I, 2003) is required to be deposited by the District into the Repair and Replacement 
Fund. as set forth in the Occ'4'ancy Agreement, for the purpose of funding certain renovations and 
improvements to the Project after its acquisition by the Borrower. 
E•1ual to the Reserve Fund Requirement for the Bonds. 
Includes underwriter's discount. bond counsel fees and other legal fees, and other costs of issu.111ce of 
the Bonds. 

THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority is a public entity organized pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, 
originally executed as of May 1 8, 1995, and amended as of May 14, 1997 and May 7, 2003. among a number 
of Califomia community college districts pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (the 
''Act"") contained in Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title I (commencing with Section 6500) of the California 
Government Code. Pursuant to the Act and the Joint Powers Agreement, the Authority is authorized to issue 
revenue bonds and loan the proceeds thereof to assist nonprofit corporations in the financing of !,tudent 
housing p1oj,:cts for the benefit of California community college districts that are Members of the Authority. 
including the District. 

THE BORROWER 

General 

The Borrower is a nonprofit public benefit corporation formed in June 30, 1988, under the laws of the 
State of California. The Borrower received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service on March 
10, 1989, indicating that it is an organization exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c)(3) of the 
Internal R:v,:nue Code (the "Code''). The Boirower is organized and q,erated exclusively for charitable 
purposes. Its articles of incorporation state that the specific purpose of the Borrower is to support the District 
and its programs; serve as an advisory body to the District on community educational needs and programs; 
foster bett,:r public understanding of the District and secure wider participation in its cultural and community 
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activities; encourage potential students to attend the District raise and implement scholarships and other kinds 
of support services needed by students which cannot be funded through district resources, raise and implement 
support for special District projects which cannot be funded through district sources; provide a means for 
perpetual trusteeship of capital funds to be donated to the District by individuals or organizations for programs 
or activities of benefit to the District and the community: promote fellowship, interest, and the recognition of 
the District faculty, staf[, and students; undertake any other activities which may be to the bene6.t of the 
District and the community within the terms and according to the laws of the State of California. Pursuant to 
the Internal Revenue Services private letter ruling, dated March 23, 2003, the Borrower is authorized to 
undertake the Project in '"furtherance'' of its "exempt charitable purpose of advancing education under section 
50l(c)(3) of the Code." 

Board of Directors 

A Board of Directors consisting of at least seven but no more than twenty-five members manages the 
Borrower. Currently there are twenty-two members on the Borrower's Board of Directors, as described below. 

Name 

Gary McGowan 

Susan Carroll 

Bill Elliott 

Jerry V. Kehr 

Russell Reid 

George Ross 

Dennis and Faith Swanson 

Bob Darling 

Dan West 

Bill Dennison 

Bob Edwards 

Tom Goss 

Josh Taylor 

Tim O'Brien 

Fran Roudebush 

John Breaux 

Kris Miravalle 

Dr. Jeff Kepple 

Dave and Jane Roberti 

Lee Austin 

John Gay 

Rick Leonhardt 

Title 

Director 

Secretary/Treasurer 

Director 

Director 

Vice-President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

President 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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Management of the Project 

lnitiially, the Executive Committee of the Borrower will be responsible for the operation of Project 
The Exec•Jtive Committee consists of the President John Breaux, Vice President Russell Reed, Secretary Susan 
Carroll and Director Bill Elliott The Occupancy Agreement provides for the creation of a "Business 
Management Committee," to be comprised of four board members of the Borrower, plus a community 
member, ·10 whom management of the Project will be delegated. It is anticipated by the Borrower that the 
managem,:nt of the Project will be under a contract arrangement with an outside management company, or that 
a housing manager will be engaged by the Borrower as an employee to manage the Project For additional 
information concerning anticipated management of the Project, see a copy of the Occupancy Agreement which 
is attached hereto as Appendix E. 

Activities oftbe Borrower 

The Botrower has been created as a not-for-profit COIJ)oration engaged primarily for the purpose of 
supporting die District through scholarships and similar traditional foundation activities. In addition to these 
activities. the Borrower owns and operates the Feather River Fitness and Recreation Center (the "Center-), a 
full service fitness center. which includes a swinuning pool, racquetball courts and multiple resistance training 
and aerobic llitness equipment The Center is used by both College students and the general public. 

The Borrower has provided certain unaudited financial information concerning its financial position 
and activities as of March 3 1 ,  2003. The financial information for the Borrower has been prepared on a basis 
which separates the fitness and recreation center from the general charitable operations of the Borrower. The 
Borrower's general account, which concerns its general charitable activities, reflects on an unaudited basis as 
of March 31,  2003, total assets of $99,305.77, of which amount approximately $65,705.66 are current assets 
and $33,600. 1 1  are fixed and other long term assets. As of March 31 ,  2003 on an unaudited basis. the general 
account for the Foundation reOected total liabilities and equity of $99,305.77. of which amount current 
liabilities were reported to be $750 v.ith the balance constituting retained earnings and equity of the Borrower. 

Tile unaudited financial information provided by the Borrower concerning the fitness and recreation 
operations shows, as of March 31 ,  2003, total assets of $758,810.40, of which amount $746.823.44 were 
reported as fixed assets and other long term asset groups. Total current assets were reported as of such date to 
be, on an ,maudited basis, $ 1 1,986.66. As of March 3 1 .  2003, unaudited fmancial statements for the Borrower 
reflected total liabilities of $385,366.86, of which $381.368.61 were reported to be long term liabilities for a 
facility loon secured by a mortgage on assets of the Borrower and payable to Plumas Bank. The unaudited 
statements of cash receipts and disbursements for the recreation center showed a net income of $217.092.77 
for the twelve month period ending March I .  2003 and a net income of $9,699.06 for the month of March 
2003. 

As more fully described herein, the Bonds are payable solely and exclusively from funds. assets and 
revenues pledged under the Indenture, consisting of the Trust Estate which is comprised principally of amounts 
derived from the operation of the Project as well as any amounts made available by the District under the 
Occupancy Agreement The Borrower is not obligated to make payment of any amounts "'ith respect to the 
Bonds from any other sources, and a Bondholder should not expect that the assets comprising the fitness center 
or other a1:tivities of the Foundation would under any circumstances be available to pay principal of or interest 
on the Bonds. None of the Bond Documents limit the activities of the Bmrower v,ith respect to facilities other 
than the Project In the event that the recreation and fitness center, or other facilities or activities undertaken 
by the Brnrower in the lirture, were not operated on an at least a "break-even� basis, such circumstances could 
adversely affect the activities of the Borrower. In the event that the Borrower were to seek the protection of 
the bankruptcy laws, or in the event that an involuntary petition in bankruptcy were filed against the Borrower, 
such circumstances could adversely affect the operations and activities of the Borrower and the security for the 
Bonds. 
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The Borrower and the Diskict entered into an Agreement as of July 19, 2001 concerning the operation 
of the recreation facility and fitness center. That agreement runs through June of 2016. but the agreement 
provides that it may be terminated by either party at any time upon six months prior notice. Under that 
agreement, the Borrower agrees to operate and maintain the fitness and recreation facility. and the District 
agrees to provide such payments. if any, as shall be necessary to ensure that the facility is operated on at least a 
·•break-even" basis. 

THE PROJECT 

la General 

The existing property is a 65-wtlt apartment complex consisting of six Class .. D .. buildings, and a 
manager's residence totaling 36,404 square feet, situated on 13.5 acres located at 300 Golden Eagle Avenue in 
Quincy, California. The 36,404�square foot, 2-story complex is located on the north side of Golden Eagle 
Avenue approximately � mile east of State Highway 70. According to the Borrower, the current zoning of the 
property will not prohibit any of the anticipated uses for the Project 

lhe Project has historically been used as an apartment complex, substantially all of whose residents 
are students at the College. According to the District, the Project is the primary source of housing for students 
at the College. The Borrower is undertaking the acquisition of the Project. in part. to allow the District to 
obtain control of the Project and to ensure that it is available on a continuing basis to provide housing for 
students at the College. As describe above, under the Occupancy Agreement, the District has committed to 
provide funding for the upgrade and improvement of the Project in an aggregate amount of $1,000.000, 
consisting of four annual payments of$250,000, commencing July 1, 2003 and continuing thereafter on July I 
of each year through 2006. The improvements shall occur over the summers of 2003, 2004 and 2005. The 
Project is featured on the District's web site, and applications for residency in the Project are available through 
the District's web site. 

Based on a preliminary title report issued by Cal-Sierra Title Company, dated December 30, 2002, title 
to the property is vested in Paul D. Jessee and Sheila R. Nash, Trustees of the Paul D. Jessee and Sheila R. 
Nash February 2000 Trust The owners reportedly purchased the property on October 31, 1997, for 
$1,532,000. The Borrower is under contract to purchase the property for $2,500,000, which is the appraised 
value given to the property by Herron Companies (the ••Appraisers"), in their appraised report dated March 15, 
2003 (the .. Appraised Report") and issued to the Borrower. According to the Appraised Report. the difference 
in value for the property from its acquisition cost in 1997 is attributable to market appreciation experienced 
since the property was purchased, as well as the level of cosmetic maintenance and an increase in attendance at 
the College. resulting in increasing occupancy. 

Set forth below is a schematic presentation of the general location of the Project in relation to the 
College. 

-"""'"1-lio&· 0------, 
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Physical Description 

The 588,060-square foot site consists of one parcel with an irregular shape. Access to the 
improvements is by means a private, shared, asphalt-paved road leading north from Golden Eagle Avenue. 
The private road also provides access to the county annex site, north of the property. The terrain is generally 
level and at street grade. The potential for additional development is, in the view of the Appraisers, limited by 
its topography, reducing its usable area to approximately 30% of the entire site or 176,000 square fe,et. The 
existing ,1partments consist of: 

• 48 one-bedroom apartments each with private bathroom, kitchen, living room and balcony. Each 
apartment size is 480 square feet. 

• 16  two-bedroom apartments each with private bathroom, kitchen, living room and balcony. Each 
apartment is 636 square feet. 

• All apartments are individually metered for electricity and have a propane wall heater and electric 
kitchen range. Each building ha� a central propane water heater. All apartments are wired for 
DSL Internet access. 

• One "manager's house" which has 3 bedrooms, 2 bathrooms, laundry room, living room, large 
'balcony and fireplace of 1 840 square feet. 

• A multi-purpose meeting/lounge/game room of 576 square feet. 
• One office of240 square feet. 

On the following page are photographs of the Project prior to any renovation improvements. 
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Area Description, Population and Demot1rapbics 

The property is located in the unincorporated rural community known as Quincy within Plumas 
Cowity. The rural community is situated in the American Valley on the western slope of the Sierra Nevada 
Mowitain Range. Quincy is the location of the College and is also the county seat and is the regional center of 
most p,ivate and public services for Plumas County. State Highway 70 bisects Quincy in an east/west 
directioi.1. connecting v.-ith U.S. Highway 395 to the east, allowing access to Reno, Nevada, the closest 
metropC11itan center. roughly 60 miles southeast 

Quincy is a mow1tainous region in proximity to a number of lakes. streams and rivers. It is a popular 
tou1ist destination that features numerous outdoor recreational activities and over 24 registered historical 
bwlwni;s and/or sites, drawing significant annual tourism to this region. Population and income trends aie 
reflected in the following table: 

Population 
Average Household Size 
Median Household Income 
Population Density 

1990 
1 ,782 
2.23 

N/Av 
130.07 

2001 
) ,898 
2. 15  

$30,730 
138.05 

Prolected 2006 
1 ,944 
2. 1 5  

N/Av 
141 .89 

Il1e property is situated in a rural neighborhood. roughly I �  miles northwest of the local Central 
Business District. The neighborhood surrounding the site consists of mixed uses, including pasture land. 
national forest land, the College, and a county administrative annex. There is a municipal airport and several 
industrial facilities within 1 mile east of the subject. Retail uses are found along State Highway 70. southeast 
of the property. 

Most retail properties can be found in the local Central Business District, which includes Main Street 
traveling east and Lawrence Street traveling west between Cresent Street and Quincy Junction Road. 
Commercial properties along these routes are older structures ranging in age from 20 to I 00 years. The current 
trend m Quincy's commercial market is characterized as modest-paced, stable growth. 

Area Competition, Supply and Demand 

Local competition consists of three apartment complexes with I 28 total residential aparlments. 
However, these complexes are primarily occupied by year-round residents receiving public assistance 
subsidic,s (Section 8). These complexes are roughly 4 to 6 miles east of the subject. No new development 
of apartm,ents is planned or u nder construction. There are a number of smaller multiple-family dwellings 
(2-6 units). single-family residences, and individual mobile homes currently used by College students for 
housing. However, the subject is the largest single provider of student housing in this market. Roughly 
two thirds of the current enrollment ( 1,554 students) require student housing. 

Historical Unaudited Financial Results 

S1� forth in the table below are the historical unaudited revenues. operating expenses and net operating 
income for the Project for the year ended December 31.  2002 and for the four-month pedod ended April 30, 
2003. The District is advised that the seller prq,ared this financial information on an accrual basis. Neither 
District. the Borrower or the Underwriter have independently verified or validated the figures in the table, and 
accordingly they do not take responsibility for the table. 
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HISTORICAL UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS 
for Years Ended December 31,  1999-2002 

!2fill m 2001 

Income 

Lodgin1 $ $ s 
Roni 

Total illcom" s 401.825 s 413.633 s 436.880 

E._... 

Advenisina: $ 980 s 1.422 s 235 

Auto an4 Travel 5.178 3.992 2.445 

Cleanina: and Maintenance 
Commis� 
Insunmce 8.318 19.104 12.573 

Legal mdOO!er Professiona fee; 2.!167 412 2.918 

Management fees 

M-ae Interest 98.140 l l  1.857 ll3.726 

Otherlntm,st 19.282 2.337 7ll 

Repms 26.672 4.006 3.088 

Supplies 7.668 22.979 17.634 

Ta""" 19.532 17.514 25.243 

Utilities 50.153 53.464 63.003 

Amortization llO 120 

Associa11on Dues 392 120 392 

Ll<eases and Pennits 25 279 

Gardening 1.440 

Misc:ellaneous 1.007 3.lll 962 

Telephone 1.996 2.669 2.134 

Wages and Salaries 52.247 67,502 51.870 

om� 4.1 1 1  3.877 4.893 

Baul<Fee; 3.092 113 1.480 

Credit C.d fees 

.,,..,loyee Expense 

FRC 50150 ProJp,an 2,205 

Outside Services 644 870 

AclivityE- 1.705 1.183 713 

Storage fees 845 

Rec/Game Room Supplies 1.077 203 

Non-Recuning Repairs and 
MainlldaDCe 

Total E>_. $ 308.406 $ 315.975 s 305.880 
Net IDCOllle $ " 93.419 $ 97.658 $ 131.000 

Source: Income Tax Retums 1999 • 2001 and 2002 Ledger 
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2002 

s 48.478 

5 539.046 

$ 2.041 

564 

22.388 

18.018 

4.095 

126.)0, 

3.914 

42.617 

17.701 

59.536 

318 

3.065 
2.218 

110.885 

10.377 

1.012 

2.032 

365 

6.078 

672 

1.680 

564 

$ 496.331 
$ 42.715 



Cash flow Assumption 

Set forth below are certain assumptions which have been used for purposes of calculating the 
following projection of revenues and debt service coverage. Jn addition. the District has been advised by 
taxing authorities in the County that. upon the acquisition of the Project by the Borrower, the Project will no 
longer be subject to ad valorem property taxation, as the Borrower is a charitable enterprise exempt from 
properl.y taxation. Accordingly, the following cash flow projections makes no provision for prop:rty taxes 
with rei:pect to the Project. 
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CASHfLOWASSIIIPTIONS' 

Unit Mix 

UnltType 

1 Bedroom· RA 
2 Be«oam • RA 
1 -.0m-lJMle 
2 Be«oam -0°'*8 

Totol 
62 

- -

-p-
Laund,y 
v�-neina>me 
llami9eS 
Confllrelatr.lpa,t � -Summer 

Tota-.i-. 

AverageVICIIICY Lou 

Opo,lting E>,onl• 
Salaies 
Supt,les 
Copies 
Travel 
T� 
ean.,uter Sips "1d Eqli"'"'"t 
l'ostlge 
Electo1clty "1d Gas 
s,.., 
Wiiie 

laflkllls 

J 

2 
4i 

15 

67 
153 

Repllrsllld Repllcement Resor,e Fund� (Per Bed Ind Tata) 
Prq,e,1y Ind Liollity 1 .... , .... 
� 
Credt Card Fees 
Legal "1d -
OtherOfflce 
Totol Oporating Elpenl• 

OlhorEI-
lsalerFee 
T..-.wua1 Fee 

T01110lhorElpeMN 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

- -

-

Eirpenoes 

._., Gola-

lc,fltdl Ron!Porllld Month�-

3 $ ' 
1 $ $ 

93 $ $95 $ 36.735 
60 365 $ 21.900 

160 ' 11.131 

s 175 

0.10'11 

v .. 2 

aoo% 
3.00% 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

T0111 

2.5211 
aooo 
aooo 
2000 

SQOOO 

6a520 

10.00% 

147.120 
500 
llJO 
700 

aooo 
2000 

500 
38.IJOll 
1�000 
5,500 

2aOIJO 
25,000 
1,000 
1,!IOO 
1.600 
4,000 

275,120 

3,415 
2000 
5,415 

280.535 

YasJ.30 

3.00,. 
3�0,. 



Projected Revenues and Projected Debt Service Coverage 

The following tables set forth the coverage of the debt service on the Bonds which is projected to be 
provided by Net Project Revenues for fiscal years 2003 tfuough 2013. based on certain assumptions regarding 
revenues and operating expenses as set forth in the footnotes to the tables. The table sets forth the projected 
coverage assuming that the Project is exempt form property tax. Actual Net Project Revenues and resulting 
debt service coverage may vary from those set forth below and such variation may be material. 

25 



PRO f'ORMA CASH FLOW 

F'11cal Year Endln June 30 20tM 1 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

REVENUE 
Rental lnCome 

557,033 573,743 590,958 608,684 626,945 645,753 665.126 685,080 705,632 726,801 
Addltlonal Income 

95.791 65,429 87388 69 410 71,492 73,637 75,846 78,122 80465 82,879 
ClroN P_ R_ 

852,824 639,169 658,344 678,094 698,437 719,390 740,972 763,201 786,097 809,680 
Lesa: VK1W1Cy 

155,703l 157�74l 
GROSS EFFECTIVE REVENUE 

!59,096j !60,868) (62,694! 164,5751 !66513! 168.508} !70.563! !72.61101 

597,120 581,795 599,249 617.226 635,743 654,815 674.460 694,693 715,534 737,000 
EXPENSES 

Operalilg Expenses 
(329,354) (263.374) (291.875) (300,631) (3011,650) 

Issuer Fee 
(318,939) (328,508) (338,383) {348,514) (358,989) 

(3.415) (3,360) (3,275) (3,180) (3,070) 
T1ustee Fee 

(2,950) (2,815) (2.670) (2,520) (2,360) 

TOTAL EXPENSES 
!2,0001 12.0001 12.0001 12.0001 12,0001 1�0001 12,0001 ,�0001 i21000! 12.0001 

(334,769) (288,734) (297.1 50) (305,811) (314.720) (323,889) (333.323) (343,033) (353,034) (363,329) 

NET OPERATING INCOME 
262,352 293.061 302,099 311,415 321,023 330,926 341,137 351,660 382.500 373,671 

Oebl Setvlce Resatve Fund Eaming1 
33 122 15 192 15 192 15 192 15 192 15 192 15 192 15,192 15.192 15, 192 

NET OPERA TING INCOME BEFORE DEBT SERVICE 
295,474 308,253 317,291 326,607 336

1
215 346, 117 356,329 366,652 377.692 388,863 

DEBT SERVICE 
Amual Debt Service 

{241,779) (254.574) (261,085) (271,925) (278,838) (288,288) (290,044) (288,338) {291.400) (284,000) 

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 
(241,779) (254,574) (261,085) (271,925) (276,838) (288,288) (290,044) (288,338) (291,400) (284,000) 

OEST SERVICE COVERAGE 1.22x 1.21x 1.22x 1.20x 1 .21x 1.21x 1.23x 1.27x 1 .30x 1.37x 
Total Brukeven Occupancy 83.2% 82.6'11, 82.5% 83.0'11, 82.5'11, 82.7% 82.1'11, 80.7% 80.0'11, 78.1% 

NETCASH FLOW 
53.695 53,679 56,206 54,682 59�77 59,830 66,285 78,515 66,292 1 04,863 
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BONDHOLDERS' RISKS 

Introduction 

Identified and summarized below are a number of �Bondholders· Risks"' that could adversely affect 
the ope,ration of the Project and the security for the Bonds which should be considered by prospective 
investors. The following discussion is not intended to be exhaustive. but includes certain major factors which 
should be considered along with other factors set forth elsewhere in this Official Statement. including the 
AppencliC<es hereto. 

Revenues from Operation of the Project 

If the Borrower is unable to generate sufficient revenues from the operation of the Project (and from 
amount; received from the District under the Occupancy Agreement) to pay its operating expenses and 
principal of and interest on the Bonds, an Event of Default will occur under the Bond Documents. Upon an 
Event of Default. the Bonds may not be paid or may be paid before maturity or applicable redemption dates 
and a forlfeiture of redemption premiums may result. The Borrower's ability to generate revenues and its 
overall financial condition may be adversely affected by a wide variety of future events and conditions 
including (i) a decline in the enrollment at the College, (ii) increased competition from other schools. (iii) loss 
of accreditation, (iv) students' failure to meet applicable federal guidelines or some other event which results 
in studmts being ineligible for federal financial aid. and (v) an increase in the supply of housing a'llailable to 
student!; of the College within the area surrounding the Project. 

Limited Oblig•tions of the Authority 

The Bonds constitute limited obligations of the Authority and have three potential sources of payment 
(in addition to Bond proceeds and amounts held in the funds and accounts held under the Bond Documents, 
and in�·,:stment earnings on those amounts). The sources of payment are as follows: 

( I )  Loan Payments received by the Trustee from the Borrower pursuant to  the terms of  the 
Indenture and the Loan Agreement. as well as amounts paid by the District under the 
Occupancy Agreement 

The Authority has no obligation to pay the Bonds except from Net Project Revenues derived from the 
Loan Agr,:ement and amounts paid by the District under the Occupancy Agreement. See Appendix C for the 
definition of "Rl!lll!nuea". lhe Bonds, together v,,ith interest and premium, if any, thereon. will not be or 
constitute general obligations or indebtedness of the State, the District. or any other political subdivision of the 
State, but will be limited obligations of the Authority. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the 
State, the District or any other agency or political subdivision thereof or of the Authority is pledg,ed to the 
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or the interest on the Bonds, and the owners of the Bonds, will 
not hav,e the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the State. the Dislrict or any other political 
subdivision thereof to pay the Bonds, any premium thereon, or the interest thereon. Under the Loan 
Agreement, the Borrower will be required to make loan repayments (the interest in which the Trustee has 
received by assignment from the Authority) to the Trustee in such amounts and at such times as to enable the 
Trustee to pay the principal of. premium, if any. and interest on the Bonds. See "SUMMARY OF 
PRINCIPAL FINANaNG DOCUMENTS TIIB INDENTURE - Bond Fund� in Appendix C hereto. The 
loan payments are anticipated, however, to be derived solely from (i) revenues generated by operation of the 
Project and (ii) amounts paid by the Dislrict under the Occupancy Agreement. Furthermore, the Borrower's 
ability to meet its obligations under the Loan Agreement will depend upon achieving and maintaining certain 
occupancy levels at the Project throughout the term of the Bonds. However, no assurance can be made that the 
Bmrower will generate sufficient revenues from the Project to pay maturing principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds after payment of operating expenses of the Project In addition, the oblig•tions of the 
Dlstrld aader the Occupancy Agreement are subject to annual appropriation offands safliclent for that 
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purpose. No assurance can be made that the District will appropriate sufficient fonds to meet all of its 
obligations under the Occupancy Agreement. To the extent that a deficiency in occupancy of the Project 
arises from financial or other difficulties experienced by the District, these same circumstances may 
adversely impact the ability of the District to appropriate funds sufficient to make payments nnder the 
Occupancy Agreement. 

(2) Revenues received from operation of the Project by a receiver upon a default under the 
Indenture. 

It has been the experience of lenders in recent years that attempts to have a receiver appointed to take 
charge of properties with respect to which loans have been made are frequently met with defensive measures 
such as the initiation of prolracted litigation and the initiation of bankruptcy proceedings. Such defensive 
measures can prevent the appointment of a receiver or greatly increase the expense and time involved in 
having a receiver appointed. Accordingly. prospects for uninte1T11pted paymenl of principal and interest on the 
Bonds in accordance with their terms are largely dependent upon payments from the Borrower and the District, 
as described in the preceding paragraph. which is dependent upon the success of the Borrower in  the operation 
of the Project. as well as the financial condition of the District. 

(3) Proceeds realized from the sale or lease of Borrower's interest in the Project to a third party 
by the Trustee at or follov.ing foreclosure by the Trustee of the Deed of Trust and proceeds 
realized from the liquidation of other security for the Bonds. 

Debtors frequently employ defensive measures, such as protracted litigation and bankruptcy 
proceedings. in response to lenders" efforts to foreclose on real property or otherwise to realize upon collateral 
to satisfy indebtedness which is in default. Such defensive measures can prevent. or greatly increase the 
expense and time involved in achieving, such foreclosure or other realizalion. In addition. the Trustee could 
experience difficulty in selling or leasing the real and personal property portion of the Project upon foreclosure 
due to the special purpose nature of a student housing facility. and the proceeds of such sale may not be 
sufficient to pay fully the OYtners of the Bonds. See hBONDHOLDERS' RISKS Liquidation of Security 
may not be Sufficient in the Event of a Defaulr herein. 

Limited Resources of the Borrower; Other Activities of the Borrower 

Other than its ownership of the Project, the Borrower has limited additional revenues and assets. In 
particular, the Borrower operates a fitness and health club center. See "TIIB BORROWER - General'' herein. 
Furthermore, the Bonds are secured only by the operations and assets of the Project. Therefore, timely 
payment of principal m, premium. if any, and interest on the Bonds will be dependent upon the Borrower's 
ability to generate revenues from the Project, and any amounts paid by the District under the Occupancy 
Agreement, sufficient to pay its operating expense and Loan Payments under the Loan Agreement. If after 
payment of operating expenses, net revenues are insufficient to pay the debt service on the Bonds, the 
Borrower likely will have no moneys or assets other than the Project from which to make the payments 
required 1D1der the Loan Agreement and would rely on payments from the Dislrict to the extent funds are 
appropriated for such purpose. 

As noted above, the Borrower also owns and operates a health club and fitness facility. No current 
audited information concerning the Borrower or its undertakings and activities is available. To the extent these 
or other assets of the Borrower are not operated on at least a break even basis, the potential exists that the 
Borrower could realize financial difficulties. In the event that the Borrower were to seek relief under the 
Bankruptcy Act, or be the subject of an involuntary petition in bankruptcy, the operations and activities of the 
Borrower, including the Project, would likely be adversely affected. 
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Required Occupancy Levels and Rents; District Annual Appropriation 

In order for the Borrower to generate sufficient revenues to enable it to make. the loan paymmts at the 
times requ.ired under the Loan Agreement. the Project must meet certain occupancy levels and collect a certain 
level of rental payments. See '·THE PROJECT-Debt Service Coverage" herein. There can be no assurance. 
however. that the Project will be able to meet and maintain such required occupancy and rent levels. As 
describt:d herein. under the Occupancy Agreement. the District has agreed to make certain payments to the 
Borrower. which have been assigned to the Trustee. in the event that occupancy of the Project (,:xcluding 
resident assistants and employees of the Borrower) falls below 90%. The obligation of the District to make 
such payments under the Occupancy Agreement is subject to the act of the Board of Trustees of the District in 
appropriating funds sufficient for that purpose. No assurance exists that, in the event occupancy in the Pro�ct 
falls below 90%, that such amounts will be appropriated by the District to provide for payments under the 
Occupancy Agreement. If the District fails to appropriate amounts owed under the Occupancy Agreement in 
any Fiscal Year, the Occupancy Agreement would terminate. and the District would have no further 
responsiibility for payments thereunder. See .. BONDHOLDERS' RISKS." 

Special Use Nature of the Project 

1ihe Project was constructed to serve as a student housing facility and is located adjacent to the 
campus of the College. If it were necessary to foreclose on the Project pursuant to the Deed of Trust upon an 
Event of Default. the special use nature of the Project may curtail the purchase price that could be obtained, 
and the ne:t proceeds received may be less than the principal amount of Bonds Outstanding. For all practical 
purposes, payment of the Bonds will be dependent upon the continued operation of the Project. whi1:h in turn 
will depend on student housing demand at the College, as well as any payments by the District under the 
Occupancy Agreement 

Enforceability of Remedies 

Title Bonds are payable from the Revenues. including payments to be made under the Loan 
Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement and the Indenture. The payments to be made under the Loan 
Agreement are secured by (i) a first security interest in and to the Borrower's interest in the Project pursuant to 
the Deed of Trust. {ii) an assignment and pledge of {a) the Borrower's interest in the rents. issues. profltn, 
revenues. income, receipts. moneys, royalties. rights and benefits of and from the Project and from and in 
connection with the Borrower's ownership. occupancy, use. or enjoyment of the Project. and (b) all leases of 
all or part of the Project and any and all tenant contracts, rental agreements, franchise agreements. management 
contracts, construction contracts, concessions. and other contracts. expenses, and permits pursuant to the Deed 
of Tru.,;t., (iii) all amounts payable by the District under the Occupancy Agreement, and (iv) a �ant of a 
security interest in the Revenues. all subject to Permitted Encumbrances. Pursuant to the Indenture. the Bonds 
are secured by the Revenues. including the assignment by the Authority to the Trustee of and by a grant of a 
security interest in, the Authority's interest in the Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement and the Deed of 
Trust The practical realization of value upon any default will depend upon the exercise of various remedies 
specified by the Bond Documents. These and other remedies may, in many respects, require judicial actions, 
which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing law (including, particularly, federal bankruptcy 
law). the remedies specified by the Bond Documents may not be readily available or may be limited. A court 
may de1,ide not to order the specific performance of the covenants contained in the Bond Documents. 

Limitations on Remedies and Bankruptcy 

The rights and remedies provided in the Indenture, the Occupancy Agreement and the Loan 
Agreement may be limited by and are su�ject to bankruptcy. insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, 
fraudulent conveyance and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights. to the application of equitable 
principles if equitable remedies are sought, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to 
limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State of California. The various opinions of 



counsel to be delivered with respect to such documents, including the opinion of Bond Counsel (the fonn of 
which is attached as Appendix DJ, will be similarly qualified. 

Toe enforcement of the remedies provided in the Loan Agreement, the Occupancy Agreement and the 
Indenture could prove both ec:pensive and time consuming. In the event of a default. the rights and remedies 
provided in the Loan Agreement, the Occupancy Agreement and Indenture may be limited by and are su�ject 
to provisions of the federal bankruptcy laws, as now or hereafter enacted, and to other laws or equitable 
principles that may affect creditors' rights. If the Borrower were to file a petition under the Bankruptcy Code 
(Title 11, United States Code), the Bondholders and the Trustee could be prohibited or severely restricted from 
taking any steps to enforces its rights under the Loan Agreement and from taking any steps to collect amounts 
due from the Borrower under Loan Agreement. 

Effect of Determination ofTa:xablllty 

The Borrower will covenant not to take any action that would cause the Series A Bonds to be arbitrage 
bonds or that would otherwise adversely affect the federal income tax status of interest on the Series A Bonds. 
Toe Borrower has also made representations with respect to certain matters within its knowledge which have 
been relied on by Bond Counsel and which Bond Counsel has not independently verified. Failure to comply 
with such covenants could cause interest on the Series A Bonds to become su�ject to federal income taxation 
retroactively from their date of issuance. 

It is possible that a period of time may elapse between the occurrence of the event which causes 
interest to become taxable and the determination that such an event has occurred. In such a case, interest 
previously paid on the Series A Bonds could become retroactively taxable from the date of their issuance. 
Additionally, certain owners of Series A Bonds are subject to possible adverse tax consequences. See "TAX 
EXEMPTION" herein. 

Absence of Earthquake Insurance 

Much of California is seismically active, with numerous faults that could be earthquake sources. The 
Borrower is not obligated under the Bond Documents to procure and maintain, or cause to be procured and 
maintained, earthquake insurance on the Project. Thus, if seismic activity caused significant damage to the 
Project. the value of such property could be adversely affected. The Borrower believes that the Project is not 
located in a site which has experienced seismic activity in recent years. While no assurance exists that seismic 
activity may be eliminated as a concern, the Borrower believes that the likelihood of significant seismic 
activity in the area of the Project is small. 

Market for the Bonds 

There can be no assurance that a secondary market exists, or that the Bonds can be sold for any 
particular price. Accordingly, a purchaser of the Bonds should recognize that an investment in the Bonds may 
be illiquid and be prepared to have his or her fimds committed until the Bonds mature or are redeemed. 

Consequences of Changes In the Borrower's Tax Status 

Toe Borrower has obtained a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it will 
be treated as an exempt organization as described in Section 50J(c)(3) of the Code and can reasonably be 
expected to not be classified as a "private foundation." In order to maintain its exempt status and to not be 
considered a private foundation, the Borrower is su�ject to a number of requirements affecting its operation. 
Toe possible modification or repeal of certain existing federal income tax laws, the change oflntemal Revenue 
Service policies or positions, the change of the Borrower's method of operations, purposes or character or 
other factors could resnlt in loss by the Borrower of its tax-exempt status. 
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The Borrower has covenanted to remain eligible for such tax-exempt status and to avoid operating the 
Project as an unrelated trade or business (as detennined by applying §5 12(a) of the Code). Failure of the 
Project to remain so qualified or of the Bo1Tower so to operate the Project could affect the fwids a\.ailable to 
the Borrower for payments under the Loan Agreement by subjecting the Borrower to federal income taxation 
and could result in the loss of the excludability of interest on the Series A Bonds from gross income fur 
purposes of federal income taxation. Potential investors should note that in such event. the provisions of the 
Indenture relating to a Detennination of Taxability may be applicable. See .. BONDHOLDERS' RJSKS -
Effect of Determination ofTaxability .. above. 

Taxation of the Bonds 

An opinion of Bond Counsel has been obtained as described under "TAX EXEMPTION'' herein. 
Such an opinion is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service. Application for a ruling from th•: Internal 
Revenu,: Setvice regarding the status of the interest on the Series A Bonds has not been made. The opinion of 
Bond C ou111sel COf!tains certain exceptions and is based on certain assumptions described herein under the 
heading "TAX EXEMPTION." Failure by the Authority or the Borrower to comply with certain provisions of 
the Coo!e and covenants contained in the Indenture and the Loan Agreement could result in interest on tb e 
Series A Bonds becoming includable in gross income for federal tax purposes. 

No Ind,�pendent Feasibility Stady 

The Borrower has not caused the perfonnance of an independent feasibility study or financial analysis 
of the Project. 

LITIGATION 

The Authority. There is no litigation now pending or, to the best knowledge of the Authority, 
threatened against the Authority which restrains or enjoins the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or questions 
or affects lthe validity of the Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they are to be issued or which 
in any manner questions the right of the Authority to enter into the Indenture or the Loan Agreement or to 
secure the Bonds in the manner provided in the Indenture. To the Authority's knowledge, neither the creation, 
organization. or existence of the Authority. nor the title of the present members or other office-rs of the 
Authority to their respective oflices, is being contested or questioned. 

The Borrower. There is no litigation now pending or, to the best knowledge of the Borrower, 
threatened against the Borrower which in any manner questions the right of the Borrower to entc�r into or 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement or the Deed of Trust. 

The District. There is no litigation now pending or. to the best knowledge of the District, threatened 
against the District which in any manner questions the right of the District to enter into or perform its 
obligations 1U1de:r the Occupancy Agreement. 

On the Closing Date, the Authority, the Borrower and the District will each deliver to the Underwriter 
a certificate that no litigation is pending or threatened against it which would have a material effect on the 
issuanci, of the Bonds or performance under the Indenture, the Occupancy Agreement, the Loan Agreement. 
the Deed of Trust or any document related thereto. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, 
California. Bond Counsel, under existing statutes. regulations. rulings and judicial decisions. and assuming 
certain representations and compliance with certain covenants and requirements described herein. inti�rest (and 
original issue discolUlt) on the Series A Bonds is excluded &om gross income for federal income tax purposes, 
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and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations. Bond Counsel notes that. with respect to corporations. interest on the Series A 
Bonds may be included as an adjustment in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income which may 
affect the alternative minimum tax liability of such corporations. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel. 
interest (and original issue discount) on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is exempt from State of 
California personal income tax. 

Bond Counsel's opinion as to the exclusion from gross income of the interest (and original issue 
discount) on the Series A Bonds is based upon certain representations of tact and certifications made by the 
Authority. the Borrower and others and is subject to the condition that the Authority and the Borrower comply 
with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as amended (the "Code'"). that must be satisfied 
subsequent to the issuance of the Series A Bonds to assure that the interest (and original issue discount) on the 
Series A Bonds will not become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to 
comply with such requirements of the Code might cause the interest (and original issue discount) on the Series 
A Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of 
the Series A Bonds. The Authority and the Borrower have covenanted to comply with all such requirements. 

In addition, the difference between the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a substantial 
amount of the Series A Bonds of a maturity is to be sold to the public) and the stated redemption price at 
maturity with respect to the Bond constitutes original issue discount. Original issue discount accrues under a 
constant yield method, and original issue discount will accrue to a Bondowner before receipt of cash 
attributable to such excludable income. The amount of original issue discount deemed received by a 
Bondowner will increase the Bondowner's basis in the applicable Bond. The amount of original issue discount 
that accrues to the owner of the Bond is excluded from gross income of such owner for federal income tax 
purposes, is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations, and is exempt from State of California personal income tax. A complete copy of 
the proposed opinion ofBond Counsel is set forth in Appendix D. 

The amount by which a Bondholder·s original basis for determining loss on sale or exchange on the 
applicable Bond (generally the purchase price) exceeds the amount payable on maturity (or on an earlier call 
date) constitutes amortizable bond premium which must be amortized under Section 171  of the Code. Such 
amortizable bond premium reduces the Bondholder's basis in the applicable Bond (and the amount of tax­
exempt interest received), and is not deductible for federal income tax purposes. The basis reduction as a 
result of the amortization of Bond premium may result in a Bondholder realizing a taxable gain when a Bond 
is sold by the owner for an amount equal to or less (under certain circumstances) than the original cost of the 
Bond to the owner. Bond purchasers should consult their own tax advisors as to the treatment, computation 
and collateral consequences of amortizable bond premium. 

In addition, Bond Counsel has relied on the opinion of Dwaine Chambers, Esq., School Legal 
Services. Bakersfield, California ("Borrower's Counsel") reganting the current qualification of the Borrower 
as an organization described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the Code. Neither Bond Counsel nor Borrowers' Counsel 
can give or has given any opinion or assurance about the future activities of the Borrower, or about the effect 
of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof_ or the resulting changes in 
enforcement thereof by the Internal Revenue Service. Failure of the Borrower to be organized and operated in 
accordance with the Internal Revenue Service's requirements for the maintenance of its status as an 
organization described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the Code may result in interest on the Series A Bonds being 
included in gross income, possibly from the liate of original issuance of the Series A Bonds. 

Bond Counsel's opinions may be affected by actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not 
occurring) after the date hereof. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, 
whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur. The Indenture and the Tax Certificate relating to the 
Series A Bonds pennit certain actions to be taken or to be omitted if a favorable opinion of Bond Counsel is 
provided with respect thereto. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the exclusion from gross income of 
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the intt:rest (and original issue discount) on the Series A Bonds for federal income tax purposes if any such 
action is taken or omitted based upon the advice of counsel other than Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth. 

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that the interest (and original issue discount) on the 
Series ,\ Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes provided that the Borrower 
continues to comply "'ith certain requirements of the Code., the ownership of the Series A Bonds and the 
accrual or receipt of interest (and original issue discount) with respect to the Series A Bonds may otherwise 
affect the tax liability of certain persons. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such tax 
consequences. Accordingly, before purchasing any of the Series A Bonds. all potential purchasers should 
consult their tax advisors with respect to collateral tax consequences relating to the Series A Bonds. 

Legislation affecting municipal obligations is continually being considered by the United States 
Congress. There can be no assurance that legislation enacted after the date of issuance of the Bonds will not 
have an adverse affect on the tax-exempt status of the Series A Bonds. Legislation or regulatory actions and 
proposals may also affect the economic value of tax exemption or the market price of the Series A Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by the Underwriter. The Underwriter has agreed to 
purchase the Bonds at the purchase price of $3.277,903 (representing the aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds ,lf$3,415,000 less an original issue discount of $51,722 and less an underwriter's discount of $85,375). 
The Bc,nd Purchase Agreement relating to the Bonds provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the 
Bonds. if any are purchased. The obligation to make such purchase is subject to certain terms and conditions 
set fonh in such Bond Purchase Agreement 

The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to dealers and others at a price lower than the offering 
price stated on the cover page hereof. The offering price may be changed from time to time by the 
Underwri1ter. 

RATING 

The Bonds have been assigned a rating of ''BBB-" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P'") 
based on the bond inst:irance policy issued by the Insurer concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds. An 
explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from S&P. The rating reflects only thi! views of 
S&P. Eind neither the Authority. the Borrower. nor the Underwriter makes any representation as to the 
appropria1teness of such rating. 

There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it ""ill not be 
revised downward or withdrawn entirely by S&P if. in the judgment of S&P. circumstances warrant Any suc:h 
downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse affect on the market price of th,:: Bonds. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters pertaining to the Authority and its authorization and issuance of the Bonds are 
subject to the approving opinion of Stradling Y occa Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corpon1tion. San 
Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, the form of which is included as Appendix D hereto. Certain legal 
matters will be passed on for the Authority by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, 
San Francisco, California, and for the Borrower by Dwaine Chambers. Esq., Schools Legal Service. 
Bakers:tield, California, and for the Undenwiter by Patton Boggs LLP, Washington, D.C. 

Bond Counsel's employment is limited to a review of the legal proceedings required for the 
authori:1'.:ation of the Bonds and to rendering the opinion referred to herein. Such opinion will not consider or 
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extend to. except as to Appendix C of. this Official Statement. or any sections, documents, agreements, 
representations, offering circulars or other material of any kind concerning the Bonds. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

lhe Borrower has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement. dated the date of delivery of the 
Bonds (the hContinuing Disclosure Agreement"). for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the 
Bonds to provide certain fmancial infonnation and operating data relating to the Borrower by December 31 of 
each year (the "Annual Report"), commencing December 31. 2003, and to provide notices of the occurrence of 
certain enumerated events, if material. 11:ie Annual Report and the notices of material events will be filed by 
the Borrower with each Repository identif ied in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. lhe specific nature of 
the infonnation to be contained in the Annual Report and the notice of material events is set forth in 
Appendix F - ''Form Of Continuing Disclosure Agreement'" hereto. lhese covenants have been made in order 
to assist the UndemTiter in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934. lhe.Borrower has not previously entered into any other continuing disclosure undertaking. The 
Authority is not an obligated party and has no responsibilities to disclose further information. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the Authority, the 
Borrower or the UndernTiter and the purchasers or ovrners of any of the Bonds. The Borrower will represent 
to the Underwriter in the Bond Purchase Agreement that the information contained in this Official Statement, 
except under the headings "lHE AUTHORITY," '·UNDERWRITING." and "TAX MATTERS," does not 
contain any misrepresentation of a material fact and does not omit to state any material fact necessary to make 
the statements herein contained. in light of the circumstances under which they were made. not misleading. 

The references herein to the Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement, the Indenture and the Deed 
of Trust constitute a brief outline of certain provisions thereof. Such outline does not purport to be complete 
and for full and complete statement of such provisions reference is made to said documents. Copies of the 
Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement, the Indenture and the Deed of Trust are available for inspection 
at the offices of the Borrower and the Authority and following delivery of the Bonds \'\ill be on file at the 
Principal Office of the Trustee in Los Angeles. California. 

References are made herein to certain documents and reports which are brief summaries thereof which 
do not purport to be complete or definitive. Reference is made to such documents and reports for fall and 
complete statements of the content thereof. 

Tbe Borrower has duly authorized the use of this Official Statement in connection with the offering of 
the Bonds. 

FEATHER RIVER COLLEGE FOUNDATION. INC. 

By Isl John Breaux 
President 
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APPENDIX A 

ECONOMY OF PLUMAS COUNTY 

Generully 

The Pr�ject is located in Plumas County (the .. County .. ). in northeastern California. where the Sierra 
Nevada and Cascade mountain ranges meet. Plumas CoWJty includes mountain peaks. timbered hills and 
fertile valley. with more than 100 lakes, 1.000 miles of rivers and streams. and over a million acres of national 
forest Elevations in the County range from 1,800 feet to over 8.000 feet. The County is approximately 150 
miles northeast of Sacramento and 80 miles west of Reno. Nevada. Two major highways traverse the County: 
Highway 70. running east-west, and Highway 89, running north-south. Almost 70 percent of the County's 
1.675, 7:80 acres are publicly owned. primarily under the control of the U.S. Forest Service. The major industry 
in the County includes not only the cutting, harvesting and fmishing of lumber of other forest products, but 
also tourism related to recreational opportunities in the area. 

Population 

The following table lists population figures for the County and the State for the years shown 
below. 

---·------

COUNTY OF PLUMAS 
Popul•tion Estimates 

C•lendar Years 1996 tbrougb 2002 

Calendar 
Year 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

County cl 
flumi:i 

20.800 
20.850 
20.900 
20.800 
20.750 
20.850 
21.000 

State of 
California 

31.837.000 
32.207.000 
32,657.000 
33.140.000 
33.753.000 
34,385.000 
35,037.000 

Source: State Department fl Finance estimates ( as cl JanuaJY 1) 

lndus1,ry and Employment 

The California Employment Development Department estimates that. as of December 31, 2001, 
the civilian labor force for residents of the County was 9,870, of whom 9,040 were employed. The 
unadjufited unemployment rate as of December 31, 2001 was approximately 8.4%. Unemployment rates 
are not a,vailable for the District. With respect to the County and the State, the following table 
summarizes the civilian labor force, employment and unemployment for the calendar years 1993 through 
2002: 
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METROPOLITAN STATISTICAL AREA (PLUMAS COUNI'Y) 
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment 

Calendar Years 1993 through 2002 
Annual Averages 

Unemployment 
Year Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment Rate 

1993 Plumas County 9,710 8,260 1.450 14.9 
California 15.359.500 13.918,300 1,441.100 9.4 

1994 Plumas County 10,080 8.650 1.430 14.2 
California 15.450,000 14.122.100 1,327,900 8.6 

1995 Plumas County 9.830 8,520 1.310 13.3 
California 15,412.200 14,202,800 1.209,400 7.8 

1996 Plumas County 9.930 8,750 1.190 1 1.9 
California 15.55),600 14,391;500 1.120.100 7.2 

1997 Plumas County 9.910 8.880 1.030 10.4 
California 15.947,300 14.942.500 1.004.700 6.3 

1998 Plumas County 9.740 8,740 1.010 10.3 
California 16,336.500 15,367,500 969.000 5.9 

1999 Plumas County 9,500 8,650 860 9.0 
California 16.596.500 15,731,700 864,800 S.2 

2000 Plumas County 9.760 8,950 810 8.3 
California 17.090,800 16.245,600 845.200 4.9 

2001 Plumas County 9,870 9,040 830 8.4 
California 17,182,900 16,260,)60 912,800 5.4 

2002 Plumas County 10.120 9,210 910 9.0 
California 17.404,600 16,241,800 1.162.800 6.7 

Source: State of California, California Employment Development Department 
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Goods-producing industries (mining. manufacturing. and construction) accounted for 17.5% of all the 
non-agricultural jobs in Sacramento County in 20I 1, compared with 18. 9% for the nation. Service-based jobs 
accounled for 47.9% of the County jobs. compared with 65.2% for the nation. Government jobs account for 
34.5% ,:,f Plumas County employment compared with 15.9% for the nation. with the higher distribution of 
government jobs due largely to the presence of the management of the forest service lands. 

The largest employers in the Plumas County area include: 

Plum11 County IIIJor Pri,ate Employ•• 

Comp1ny ProducllServic;e EmplOJNI 

Sierra Pacific lnduslries Lllllbef Mil I Electric Generator 300 -
Collins Pine Company Lumber Mill I Electric Generator 210 

Union Pacific Railroad Ralroad 185 

Plimas eank Financial Serw:es 1 13 

Feather Publishing Newspaper 97 -
Pacific Gas & Electric Utility 88 -
American Valley Aviation Airplane Salvage I Parts 55 

Alamanor Manufacturing Metals Fabrication 43 

Trilogy Ma!Jlelics Computer Components 31 -
ruver Fiber & Fuel Forestry 2S -

Construction Trends 

Provided below are the building permits and valuations for the County for calendar years 1998 
through 2002. 

COUNTY OF PLUMAS 
Building Permit and V aluatlons 
For Years 1998 t•rougll 2002 

(doUars in tlaousands) 

1998 1999 � 2001 � 
Residential 

- Sin81e Family $13,307 $10.243 $24.780 $25,339 $33.475 
- Multi Family __ o __ O __ o __ o -� 

SUBTOTAL 13.307 10.243 24.780 25,339 33,984 
- Alterations/ Additions � _ill ---11.8. � . 1,083 

TOTAL $13.405 $10,356 $25,568 $25,673 $35,067 

N•,,..Re:ridential 
New Consbuction $450 $631 $1.170 $501 $1,595 
Alterntionsl Additions .J2 _103 _rn 347 384 

TOTAL $489 $734 $1,841 $848 $1.979 

TOTAL PERMIT VALt:ATION $13,894 $11 .090 $27.409 $26.521 $37.046 

---------
Source: Qllifomia Itesidential Building Permit Activity 
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Effective Buying Income 

"Effective Buying lncome" is defined as Money Income less personal tax and nontax payments, a 
number often referred to as "disposable" or "after-tax" _income. 

Money income is the aggregate of wages and salaries, net farm and nonfarm self-employment 
income, interest, dividends, net rental and royalty income, Social Security and railroad retirement income, 
other retirement and disability income, public assistance income, unemployment compensation, Veterans 
Adminis1ration payments, alimony and child support, military family allotments, net winnings from 
gambling, and other periodic income. 

Deducted from this total money income are personal income taxes (federal. state, local), personal 
contributions to social insurance (Social Security and federal retirement payroll deductions), and taxes on 
owner-occupied nonbusiness real estate. 

Receipts from the following sources are not included as money income; money received from the 
sale of property (unless the recipient is engaged in the business of selling property); the value of income 
"in kind" from food stamps, public housing subsidies, medical care, employer contributions for persons, 
etc.; withdrawal of bank deposits; money borrowed; tax refunds; exchange of money between relatives 
living in the same household; gifts and lump-sum inheritances, insurance payments, and other types of 
lump-sum receipts. 

Due to changes implemented in 1996 in the method of calculating Effective Buying lncome, prior 
years are not directly comparable with statistics for 1996. The following table summarizes the total 
effective buying income for the County, the State and the United States for the period 1997 through 2001. 

A-4 



COUNTY OF PLUMAS 
Effective Buyiag Jacome <•> 

As of January l, 1997 through 2001 

Total Elfeaive Median Household 
Buying Income F.ffiective Buying 

Year Area {IOO"s Omitted) Income 

1997 Plumas County $265.583 $29.514 
California 524.439.600 36.483 
United States 4.399. 998.035 34.618 

1998 Plumas County $283.257 $25.306 
California 551,999.317 37.091 
United States 4,621.491.738 35.377 

1999 Plumas County $299.578 $27.320 
California 590.376.663 39.492 
United States 4.877. 786.658 37,233 

2000 Plumas County $331.851 $29.717 
California 652.190.282 44,464 
United States 5.230.824.904 39.129 

2001 Plumas County $336.698 $30.417 
California 650,521.407 43.532 
United States 5.303,481.498 38,365 

---------
Source: Sales & Marketing Management Survey of Buying Power. 
Note: Not comparable with prior years. Effective Buying lnoome is now based on money income (which does not 
take in10 account sale of property. taxes and social security paid, receipt of food stamps. etc:.) versus personal 
income. 
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Commercial Activity 

During the calendar year of 2001, total taxable transactions in the County were $192,957 or 
0.97% greater than total taxable transactions of $187,401 !hat occurred in the County during the calendar 
year of 2000. A summary of historic taxable sales within the County during the past six years is shown in 
the following table. 

COUNTY OF PLUMAS 
THable Transactions 
(dollars in thousands) 

Retail Stores Total Outlets 
Permits on Taxable Pennits on Taxable 

Year July I Transactions Julv I Transactions 

1996 432 $90,867 651 $147,239 
1997 422 96,036 647 157.297 
1998 398 94,675 649 155.033 
1999 424 101,888 576 168,147 
2000 431 1 10,800 613 187.401 
2001 426 1 13.417 633 192,957 

Source: State Board of Equalization. 

A-6 



APPENDIX B 

GENERAL INFORMA TJON CONCERNING THE DISTRICT AND 
AUDITED t1NANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD 

ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

General Description 

Fowided in 1968, Feather River Community College (the "''College") is one of 108 community 
colleges in California. TI1e College off crs two-year Associate degrees and certificates to students planning to 
transfer to four-year institutions or enter the world of work immediately. The College is fully accredited by the 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges. 

The College sits on a 266-acre campus on a mountainside forested with pine and oak. The campus 
provides a sanctuan, for self.-discovery. study and recreation. The surrounding Plumas County forest, with 
hundreds of miles of trails and rivers, lakes. and a four-season climate. provides an outdoor laboratory and 
playground for the College's students. In addition to classrooms. laboratories. and modem technology, the 
campus features a trout hatchery capable of producing 50.000 fingerlings a year. an equestrian cc::nter with 
horse b.J&l'ding capabilities, and state-of-the-art athletic facilities. 

The students enjoy the opportwiity to study traditional transferable majors and vocational programs in 
wiique subjects such as environmental studies. outdoor recreation leadership. and pack station and stable 
operations. These programs and the attractive location draw many students from outside the local area. 

F'eather River Community College serves the 20,000 residents of rural Plumas ColDlty by offering day, 
evenin� .. weekend, and online classes primarily at the main campus in Quincy, and at the Chester Campus in 
the not1h county. Students of neighboring Sierra Cowity, which is located SS miles from the main campus, are 
also served by the College. 

The College's environment allows students to study in a friendly. informal atmosphere by a faculty 
and staff dedicated to student growth. Students work closely with COIDlselors and advisors to identify and 
schedule c�lasses needed for specific majors. The College offers support services to help students build self­
confidc..-nce, widerstand the importance of education and the processes involved in succeeding in higher 
education . 

The staff of the College fosters an environment where students meet the challenges of college life and 
prepare for the future. Career counseling and self-discovery programs help students identify their interests and 
develop career plans leading to employment. Academic advisors guide students in planning a program of study 
and identifying and scheduling classes. Free tutoring and review classes help ensure college success. This 
commitment to provide support services and to promote student success has assisted students academically, 
and the College continues to hold one of the highest graduation rates in the state. For nine consecutive years. 
Feather River students have been won placement on the California Community College All Academic Team. 

In addition to attracting outdoor majors, the College draws many student-athletes. Thi; College 
participates in intercollegiate men's and women's basketball, men's baseball and football. women's softball, and 
women's volleyball. A large number of the College's full-time students participate in athletics. The athletics 
department strives to send graduates to play their sports at a higher level. while continuing to pursue their 
educational goals. 
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Reasons for tbe Project 

Toe College bas experienced a growth in full-time student enrollment in the past five years-with an 
1 1 .5% increase from 2000 to 2001. Because of the small county population, most of the College's students are 
drawn from outside the local area. Most students currently seek housing at the privately owned Feather River 
Apartments. or with assorted homeowners in and around the local area New students in search of viable 
housing is a recurrent issue each fall, and often students are housed with faculty and staff until a rental 
becomes available. 

Faced with the issue of a lack of student housing, the administrators of Feather River Community 
College District (the "District") conducted a cost I affordability analysis of building on-campus dormitories. 
The College's dorms of similar size to the Feather River Apartments were projected to cost $7.1 million. To 
save the District the high costs of financing dorms, and in turn, to allow the students to pay lower rents, the 
Feather River College Foundation (referred to herein as the "Borrower") determined to purchase the privately 
owned Feather River Apartments, which are located adjacent to the campus. 

The Feather River Apartments are larger in size than typical college dormitories, and also have 
amenities (private bathrooms, kitchens. living rooms. balcony) that dorms typically lack. With the Borrower as 
the owner of the Feather River Apartments. the District expects that student housing v.ill be operated at a lower 
cost than the District could operate dorms. Additionally, the purchase of apartments by the FRC Foundation is 
anticipated by the District to reduce the competition that would potentially exist if the District built dorms and 
the apartments remained outside of Borrower/District control. The proposed purchase of the apartments by the 
Borrower will prevent these existing and adjacent facilities from being sold to future owners who may be less 
inclined to support student housing. 

There are fewer than 50 graduates of Quincy high school each year, and only 200 high school 
graduates in Plumas and Sierra counties annually. This requires the College to recruit outside the local area 
The California Community College Chancellor's Office has granted the District the exclusive right to recruit 
statewide because of its unique location and small service area. Legislation, SB2000 ··Good Neighbor policy," 
has been enacted so Nevada students can attend the College at reduced nonresident tuition. Thirty-seven 37% 
of the College's full time students (148 of 253 students) were athletes in the fall 2003 semester. Because the 
local population provides a small amount of students to the College. fewer than five of those student athletes 
are from local high schools. 

The District is concerned with all aspects of a student's college experience, including quality of life. 
Many students at the College are those who are not ready for the pressures and responsibilities of life at a four­
year school. Often their experience at the College is the first away from home, and their parents are very 
concerned about their safety and supervision. The creation of a safe, controlled living environment by the 
Borrower and the District in the apartments is essential to a student's ultimate decision to attend the College. 

Organization and Administration 

The District is governed by the Board of Trustees. The general administrative powers of the Board 
include the power to enact ordinances for the governance of the institution under its control, the setting off ees, 
the appointment and employment of the District's administrators and faculty, and the establishment of 
curricula. The administrative officers of the District are responsible for its operation and maintenance in 
accordance with the rules and policies established by the Board 

Set forth below is a list of the Board of Trustees and principal administrators of the District. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Name Position Term Exl!ires 

Dr. Irene Burkev President. Trustee Area V November 2004 
Mr. Wil li,,m Elliott Vice President. Trustee Area JI November 2004 
Mr. Mkhael Cassitv Trustee. Area IV November 2004 
Mr. Rohm Marshall Trustee, Area I November 2004 
Mr. John Sheehan Trustee. Area Ill November 2004 
Mr. Joshua Herring_ Student Trustee November 2004 

FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Name Position 

Dr. Susan Carroll Superintendent/President 
Mr. Ron Groh Assistant Sunerintendent/Business Services 
Dr. Michael Bagley Dean of Instruction 
Mr. Paul Thein Dean of Students 
Mr. Al All Human Resources Director 
Mr. Rand Groh Information Systems M�er 
Mr. Ral� Schroeder Director of Phvsical Plant 

Faculty and Staff 

The full-time faculty of the College totaled 31 during the Fall Semester, 2002. of which 68% were 
tenured. Part-time Faculty at the College totaled 72 during Fall Semester 2002. Approximately 7 1  persons 
were employed on a fall-time basis in a variety of staff support positions, while part-time and temporary staff 
( exclusive of student employees consisted of approximately 96 persons. 

Stndent E,nrollments 

Fall Semesters: FTES Foll-Time 

FTE 
I Year 

Fall FTE* Cbaue 
1996 1041 -
1997 1020 -21% 
1998 1 103 7.5% 
1999 1219 9.5% 
2000 1326 8.1% 
2001 1498 1 1 .5% 
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Accreditation 

The College is a member of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges ("W ASC"). The 
campus is fully accredited by the Senior Commission of WASC . This accreditation requires periodic review 
in accord with W ASC policies and standards. 
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Summary Unaudited F'inancial Information 

FEATI-ER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
UNAUDITED SUMMARY OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

(Derived from 1udit1 of the Colege) 

BUDGE! 
1997198 1998/99 1999/00 2000/01 � 2002/03 

REVENUES: 

General fund: 
Unrestricted 6, 196,758 6,708,628 7,326,497 8,505,844 9,600,636 1 1,059,375 
Re1,1ricted 2,248,254 2,196,052 1,744,126 1,863,362 2,256,450 2,658,369 

Special Revenue: 
Chid Oewlopment F111 189,395 218,399 223,375 235,332 250,891 258,433 

Capital Cluday Fund 817,776 92,065 155,386 465,066 781,392 1 ,006,299 

Fiducil'll Funds: 
Financ:ial Aid Fund 430,573 522,947 486,739 499,867 467,148 691,222 
ASll Fund 20,162 20,154 18, 191 12,377 10,796 10,796 
Retiree Fund 121,966 193,518 296,620 383,490 467,110 557,047 

Bookstore Fund 212,555 233,273 226,479 247,495 267,132 267,132 

TOTAL REVENUES 10,237,439 10,185,036 10,477,413 12,212,833 14,101,555 16,508,673 
lilleliN lllil!Rli!i 

General IFund: 
Unresl'icted 5,665,027 6,209,674 6,700,688 7,625,691 8,308,613 
Reslricled 2,188,630 2,102,511 1 ,668,373 1 ,773,383 2,1 15,670 

Spedal Revenue: 
Chi d Development F111 152,792 174,556 170,612 176,505 187,075 

Capital Outlay Fund 751,535 32,172 63,588 348, 166 373,300 

Fiducillry Funds: 
Fim111c:ial Aid Fund 428,722 521,096 484,892 496,247 460,708 
ASll Fund 10,072 13,424 12,461 6,289 5,404 
Retiree F111d 2,580 2,580 19, 112 28,866 39,792 

Booklltore Fund 206,899 219,724 209,196 235,183 257,633 

TOTAL E>:PENDITURES 9,406,257 9,275,737 9,328,922 10,690,330 11,748,195 

NET ENDJ:NG BALANCE 

FOR ALL l'UNOS 06/30 831,182 909,299 1,148,491 1,522,503 2,353,360 
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Offee of the Preiident 

570 Colden Eagle Avenue • Quincy, California 95971 • 530-283-0202, ext. 232 

scarroltDfrcc.cc.ca.us • www.frcc.cc.ca.us • fax: 530·283·3757 

MESSAGE FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT/PRESIDENT 

Over the past ye•. the coUege has made substantial progress in a number of areas. 
Students continue to do wen academically and, for the sixth conseaitlve ye•, two FRC 
students were named to the AII-Calfomia Academic Team - an honor bestowed on only 
24 students in the state. The Golden e. Men's Baseball Team won their ttird straight 
Golden Valley Conferance Championship, and the colege was aw•ded its second 
major faderal gant (Talent SENl'ch) to assist students at risk. AU computers on campus 
wera updated with current Vllindows software, and work was begun to provide the 
platform necessary to support XP instruction. New and/or upgraded servers were also 
installed. 

Foundational wolk up to the selection rl an architectural finn was completed for the 
potential construction of student housing - a project that the college has recently put on 
hold pending the investigation of pu-chasing nearby apartments as a less expensive 
alternative. The Pack StatiOn and Stable OperatiOn program is in the process of 
ralocatiOn and the addition of a new barn, arana, offices, classrooms, and dry lots. 

Two new administrators. a Dean of Instruction and Director of Admissions and Records, 
were hired at the beginning of the academic ye•, as wera the head and assistant 
C08Ches for the college's new footbal program. This one program attracted 69 new 
students and was the single moat effective fac:IDr in inaeasing full-time, on-campus 
enrollrnent 

The o:ilege lost one excellent trustee. but gained another. Both the Board of TNStees 
and the Foundation Board continue to provide valued oversight and support for the 
institution. In e•ly December, the Quincy Chamber of Convnerce selected the college 
as the Business of the Year for its on-going conlrl>utions to and partne111hips with the 
community. 

In summary, the past year has been characterized by solid progress and momentum. 
Although - ara very concerned about recent budget cuts proposed by the Govemor, 
we are hopeful that we can continue to offer the scope of instnictlon and senlic:es 
needed by our students and employers In this district We will certainly try our best to do 
so. 

� ��;' .... J ..... q ___ _ 
Susan Carroll, Ph.D. 
Superintendent/President 

18 December 2002 



INTRODUCTION 

The audit has the following objectives: 

• To assess the adequacy of the systems and procedures for financial 
accounting, compliance with rules and regulations. and internal control in the 
Feather River Community College District. 

• To determine the accountability for revenues, the propriety of expenditures, and 
the extent to which funds have been expended in accordance with prescribed 
State and Federal laws and regulations. 

• To determine whether financial and financially related reports to State and 
Federal agencies are presented fairly. 

• To determine the fairness of presentation of the Feather River Community 
College District's financial statements. 

• To recommend appropriate actions to correct any deficiencies. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Feather River Community College District 
Quincy, California 

PERRY·SMITH ' "  

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Feather 
River Communitx College District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, as listed in the 
foregoing Table of Contents. These general purpose financial statements are the 
responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these genEll'al purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and Govemmental Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
managemE1nt, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Tl,e District is not required by the California State Education Code to capitalize general 
fixed assets and, accordingly, a statement of fixed assets, as required by accounting 
principle11 !lenerally accepted in the United States of America, ia not included in the general 
purpose rinancial statements. The effect of this departure from generally accepted accounting 
principles on the general purpose financial statements has not been determined. 

In our opinion, except that the omission described in the preceding paragraph results 
in an inci,mplete presentation, the general purpose financial statements referred to in the fll'st 
paragraph present fairty, in all material respects, the financial position of Feather River 
Community College District at June 30, 2002, and the results of its operations and cash flows 
of its pr,,prietary fund for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose 
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements listed in the 
foregoing Table of Contents are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such combining financial 
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general 
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, except that the omission described in the 
precedin!J paragraph results in an incomplete presentation, are fairly stated in all material 
respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Continued) 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report 
dated November 1 ,  2002 on our consideration of Feather Riwr Community CoHege District's 
internal cont�I structure over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

Sacramento, California 
November 1 ,  2002 



ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Nole 2): 
Cash in County Treasury 
Cash on hand and In banks 

AclXIUllls receivable: 
Federal government 
State government 
Local government and other 

Due from other funds (Note 3) 
lnvenlortes 
Prepaid expenditures 
Equipment and fixtures. net 
Amoun I available for health benefits 

for rellraes (Nole 4) 
Amount to be provided for debt 

retirement and health b-'ils 
for n,lirees (Nole 4) 

Total assets 

s 

FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUP 

June 30, 2002 

Governmental F111d TYQII 
C11plt11I 

Speclal Outlay 
General Revenue Proledll 

1,375,627 S 62,928 S 413,251 
36,122 79 

135,711 991 
292,999 135 1 .275 
178,844 77 

7,425 

59,085 

s 

Proprietary 
Fund 
1Ht. 

74,440 S 
45,542 

597 
1 ,023 

28,442 

241 

Fiduciary 
Fund• 

434,346 
8,202 

4,240 

3,934 

277 

Account 
Group 

General 
Long-Term 

Debt 

s 427,318 

1 ,287,377 

s 

Total 
(Memoran­
dum Only) 

2,360,592 
89,945 

140,942 
294,409 
183,452 

8,448 
28,442 
59,085 

518 

427,318 

1A21l7,377 

l 2
1
08§..813 l 64,210 l 414,526 l 110.zes l 45QJ199 l 1J14

11i9� l � 

(Continued) 
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LIABILITIES AND 
FUND EQUITY 

LiabHities: 
Accounts payable 
Dua to other funds (Note 3) 
Accrued payroll and related liabHities 
Deferred revenue 
Deposits 
Other liabilities 
cap1taized lease oblgations (Note 5) 
Note payable (Note 5) 
Health benefits payable to current 

retirees (Note 5) 
Accrued vacation (Note 5) 

Total liabilities 

Fund equily: 
Contributed capital 
Retained earnings 
Fund balances: 

Reserved (Note 6) 
Unreserved 

Total fund equity 

Total liabilities and fund equity 

FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUP 
(Continued) 

June 30, 2002 

GovammenblLFund....Im_a 
C•plt•I 

Specl•I Outl•y 
_Gene,., Revenue Proiecta. 

Proprietary 
Fund 
Iml_ 

$ 245,464 $ 
1 ,023 

87,657 
309,730 

9,133 

653.007 

59,085 
1.373.721 

394 S 

394 

63.816 -

6.434 S 

6,-134 -·· 

408,092 

2.090 $ 
2,425 

45 

�.560 

145.725 

Fiduciary 
Funds 

6,849 
5,000 

1 1,849 

50,035 

432,710 
,.._l,43,595) 

Account 
Grouo 

General 
Long-Term 

Debt 

s 542,586 
432,670 

545.540 
-193.899 

1.714,695 

�----

s 

1 ,432.806 63.816 -- 408.092 145.725 __ .150 - -- -- - ·  

L2,085.B13 l_64,21_g l 414.§26 l 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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150.285 l !50,999 l 1,714,Ji&5 l au 1a w 

Total 
(Memoran· 
dum OnM 

261.231 
8,448 

87.657 
309,730 

9,133 
45 

542,586 
432,670 

545,540 
193,899 

2.390.939 

50,035 
145,725 

491.795 
1.802.034 

2.�9.589 

4,880.528 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNTY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL PUND TYPES 
AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

For the Ynr Ended June 30, 2002 

Governmental Fund TyrHl9 
C.pltal 

Specl .. Outlay Fiduciary 
Gener1I Revenue Prolec:ta Fund• 

Revenues: 
Federal SOU'ces s 619,758 s 8,527 $ 430,204 
State sources 6,813,568 76,954 $ 35,854 29,671 
Local sources _3,824.316 � 260,290 22.500 

Total reverAJes 11,257,642 -1 14.340 -296.144 482,375 

E>cpenditures: 
Academic salaries 3,385,201 
Classified salartes 2,530,214 127.268 324 
Employee benelill (Notes 8 and 9) 1 ,308,846 48,174 31 39,792 
Books and supplies 369,214 9,909 1,512 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 1 ,779,754 1 ,724 4,470 3,892 
Student financial aid 460,708 
Capital outlay 61 1 .053 368,475 
Debt service: 

Principal reduction (Note 5) 244,648 
Interest 71 ,300 

Other payments 124,053 

Total expenditures 10.424,283 187.075 373.300 505,904 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues O'ller (under) 
expenditures -833,359 (72,735) (U,1 56) (23.529) 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Proceeds from capitalized lease 

obligations (Not,a 5) 172,034 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1 ,700 
Operating transfers in (Nole 3) 77,724 366,648 98,347 
Operating tran!'/ers out (Note 3) (542,719) 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) (370,685) 77 724 368,348 98 347 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing SOl.rces over eJCpend-
ilu-es and other uses 462,674 4,989 291,192 74,818 

Fund balances, Juiy 1 .  2001 970,132 §§m _1 16,900 _364,332 

Fund balances, Ju1,e 30, 2002 l 1 .�2.g I S!3.8J6 l 408.Q2.i I �9.1� 

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these financial statemenls. 
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Total 
(Memor1n.. 
dum Only) -

$ 1,058,489 
6,956,047 
4,135.965 

__ 12, 150.501 

3,385,201 
2,657,806 
1 ,396,843 

380,635 

1 ,789,840 
460,708 
979,528 

244,648 
71 ,300 

124.053 

1 1,490,562 

- 659.939 

1 72,034 
1 ,700 

542,719 
(542,719) 

173,734 

8:33,673 

__ 1,.510. 191, 

I 213431864 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Local sources 

Total ravenues 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

For the Veer Ended June 30, 2002 

__ Budget 

s 738,972 s 
7,754,475 
3,108,638 

general 

Actual 

619,758 
6,813,568 
3,824,316 

--11 602 085 --11,257,642 

Expenditures: 
Academic salaries 
aassified salaries 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 
Capital ouUay 
Debt service: 

Prtncipal reduction 
Interest 

Other payments 
Appropriations for contingencies 

Total expenditures 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
(under) over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from capitalized lease obligations 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 

--

3,597,664 3,385,201 
2,720, 193 2,530,214 
1,392,500 1 ,308,846 

435,187 369,214 

2,041,319 1,779,754 
954,549 611 ,053 

324,873 244,848 
72,061 71 ,300 

126,996 124,053 
694 278 

12,359 620 --10,424,283 

(757,535} 833,359 

331,894 172,034 

(544,491) (542,7191 

!212,597) (370,685) 

s 

Verianca 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(119,214) 
(940,907) 
715 678 

(344,443) 

212,463 
189,979 
83,654 
65,973 

261,565 
343,496 

80,225 
761 

2,943 
694278 

1 935 337 

1 590 894 

(159,860) 

1 U2 

(158.IBI) 

and other financing sources 
(under) over expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balances, July 1 ,  2001 

Fund balances, June 30, 2002 

(970, 132) 

970,132 

462,674 ;r,s __ ...,.1 • ._431112"".806111111 

970.132 

L_ 1.432.806 

(Continued) 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Revenues: 
Federal s,,urces 
State sources 
Local sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Academic salaries 
Classified s;1laries 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract services and operating 

expenditur,!s 
Capital outlay 
Debt serviee: 

Principal reduction 
Interest 

Other payments 
Appropriations for contingencies 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
(Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Sgm;l1I BHll!llll 

s 

Budget 

8,000 
74,134 
18,000 

100.134 

127,883 
48,198 
10,865 

2,576 
490 

45 435 

s 

Actu11 

8,527 
76,954 
2Ufil! 

U!,340 

127,268 
46,174 

9,909 

1,724 

s 

Variance 
Favor1bl1 

(Unfavorablll 

527 
2,820 

10,859 

1�.2aa 

615 
24 

956 

852 
490 

15 4-'35 

Total eKpenditures 235.447 187,075 ___ __,4:!lle,312 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
(under) over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from capitalized lease obligations 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 
Operating lransfers out 

Total olhe,r financing sources (uses) 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
and other financing sources 
(under) over expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balances, July 1,  2001 

Fund balancas, June 30, 2002 

_1135,3131 

76,486 

___ !W§ 

(58,827) 

___ .a..§2! 

(Continued) 
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(72,735} §2.m 

77,724 1,238 

77.724 1.238 

4,989 .,, ___ .,.§3_,s .. 1,.a 

58 827 

1 __ .. 6� .. 18_1_s 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
(Continued) 

For lhe Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Capital Outlay Projects 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Local sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Acadenic salaries 
Classified salaries 
Employee benefits 
BoOks and supplies 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal reduction 
Interest 

Other payments 
Appropriations for contingencies 

Total expenditures 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
(ll'lder) over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from capitaUzed lease obligations 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Operating transf ens In 
Operating transfers out 

s 

Budget 

67,476 S 
311 500 

378,976 

32!5 
31 

16,477 
636,306 

1 1  065 

664 224 

(485248) 

1 ,700 
366,648 

368,348 

ActYI! 

35,854 S 
280 290 

296.144 

324 
31 

4,470 
368,475 

373 300 

(77 156} 

1 ,700 
366,648 

368,348 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavonible) 

(31,622) 
(!1 210} 

(82.832) 

1 

12.007 
467,831 

11 085 

490,924 

408 092 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
and other financing sources 
(under) over expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balances, July 1, 2001 

Fund balances, June 30, 2002 

(116,900) 

118 900 

291, 192 s. __ __.4 ... 08,..1
0..,9 ... 2 

116 900 

(Continued) 

1 0  

s 408,22? 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
(Continued) 

For the YHr Ended June 30, 2002 

Tot•l fMemorandum Only) 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Local sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Academic salaries 
Classified salartes 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract servic:es and operating 

expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal reduction 
Interest 

Other paymMts 
Appropriations for contingencies 

Total expenditures 

(Deficienc:y) excess of revenues 
(under) over expencltures 

Other financin11 sOU"ces (uses): 
Proceeds from capitaizad lease obligations 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Operating transfers In 
Operating tran,:fers out 

Total othEr llnancing sources (uses) 

(Deficienc:y) excess of revenues 
and other ·nnancing sources 
(under) ovar expenditures and 
othar uses 

Fund balances, July 1 ,  2001 

Fund balances, June 30, 2002 

_ Budget 

s 746,972 
7,896,085 
3436 138 

-12,081,195 

3,597,664 
2,848,401 
1 ,440,729 

446,052 

2,060,372 
1 ,791,345 

324,873 
72,0Q1 

126,996 
750 798 

13 459 291 

(1,378,098) 

331,894 
1 ,700 

443,134 
(544 491) 

2�2.2�! 

(1, 145,859) 

1.145.859 

_Actual _ 

s 628,285 
6,926,376 
4,113 485 

_11.668 126 

3,385,201 
2,657,806 
1 ,357,051 

379,123 

1 ,785,948 

979,528 

244,648 

71,300 
1 24,053 

10 984,858 

683468 

172,034 
1 ,700 

444,372 
(542 719) 

75.�87 

s 

V•ri•nce 
F•vor•ble 

fUnfavorablel 

(118,687) 
(969,709) 
875,327 

(413,089) 

212,463 
190,595 

83,678 

66,929 

274,424 
811,817 

80,225 
7131 

2,943 
750J98 

2 474 633 

2 061 564 

(159,860) 

1 ,238 

1 .772 

[1�.!!§11) 

758,855 .. , __ ...:.., ,1119Q4_,n......_4 

1.145.859 

J._1,904.714 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial stataments. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

Operating revenues: 
Sales 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of goods sold 
Classified salaries 
Employee benefits 

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

CAMPUS CENTER FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Contract services and operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Interest 

Net income 

Retained earnings, July 1 ,  2001 

Retained earnings, June 30, 2002 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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s 264.813 

186,175 
55,869 
12, 132 
3.457 

257,633 

7,180 

2 319 

9,499 

136,226 

145 725 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

CAMPUS CENTER FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Cash flows l'rom operating activities: 
Operatinu income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

providt9d by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 
Decrease in due from other funds 
Decrease in inventory 
Decrease in accounts payable 
Decrease in due to other funds 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities: 
Capital e,cpenditures 

Cash flows provided by investing activities: 
Interest income 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents balance, July 1 ,  2001 

Cash and cs,sh equivalents balance, June 30, 2002 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 7,180 

80 

240 
9,733 

12,766 
(1 .525) 

(505) 

27,969 

(187) 

2 319 

30,101 

89.,.M1 

119
1
982 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accounting policies of Feather River Community College District conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and Audits of State and Local 
Governmental Units issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

Reporting Entity 

The Board of Trustees (Board) is the level of government which has governance 
responsibilities over all activities related to public post-secondary education within the 
jurisdiction of Feather River Community College District. The Board receives funding 
from local, State and Federal government sources and must comply with the 
concurrent requirements of these funding source entities. The District is not included 
in any other governmental "reporting entity• as defined In Section 2100, Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Repot1ing Standards, since Board members 
are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power to designate 
management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary 
accountability for fiscal matters. In addition, based on the above criteria, no other 
entities are included in the general purpose financial statements of Feather River 
Community College District as component units. 

Fund Structure 

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, 
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund 
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
The various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The following 
fund types and account group are used by the District: 

A - Governmental Fund Types 

1 General Fund: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and 
accounts for all revenues and expenditures of the District not 
encompassed within other funds. Al general tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some 
other fl.l'ld are accounted for in this fund. General operating 
expenditures and capital improvement costs that are not paid through 
other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

2 - Special Revenue Fund: 

The Child Development Fund is a special revenue fund used to account 
for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific purposes. 

1 4  



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Structure (Continued) 

A .. Govemmental Fund Types (Continued) 

3 - Capital Outlay Projects Fund: 

The Capital Outlay Projects Fund is used to account for the payment for 
the acquisition or construction of major site improvements and the 
construction of major capital facilities which by their nature, may require 
more than one budgeting cycle for completion. 

B .. Prnorietarv Fund Type 

1 - Campus Center Fund: 

The Campus Center Fund is an enterprise fund used to account for the 
financial activity of the campus bookstore. The Campus Center's 
normal operating cycle is the fiscal year ended June 30. The financial 
position, results of operations and cash flows have been includecl in 
these financial statements. 

c .. Fiduciary Fund Ivoes 

The Student Financial Aid Fund, Associated Students Fund and Retirement 
Benefits Trust Fund are accounted for as expendable trust funds. 

1 - Student Financial Aid Fund: 

The Student Financial Aid Fund accounts for the following student grant 
activities: 

• Pell Grant Program 
• Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants Program 
• Extended Opportunity Programs and Services 

Unreimbursed expenditures due from granter agencies are reflected in 
the financial statements as receivables. Cash received from granter 
agencies in excess of related program expenditures is recorded as a 
liability. 

15  



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLt:\:it: u1.:, , "''"' , 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Structure (Continued) 

C - Fiduciary Fund Types (Continued) 

2 - Associated Students Fund: 

The Associated Students Fund accounts for the receipt and 
disbursement of monies from student activity organizations. These 
organizations and their various suborganizations exist at the explicit 
approval of, and are subject to revocation by, the District's governing 
board. A separate account is maintained for each authorized student 
activity or club. 

3 - Retirement Benefits Trust Fund: 

The Retirement Benefits Trust Fund is an expendable trust established 
in July 1995, to accumulate funds for the payment of medical insurance 
premiums for eligible future retirees. 

D - Account Group 

1 - General Long-Term Debt Account Group: 

This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term debt of 
the District, including the long-term obligation for accrued vacation. 

Basis of Accounting 

The District uses the modified accrual basis of accounting to record transactions for 
all of its fund types, except the proprietary fund which uses the accrual basis. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recorded when the liability 
is incurred. Revenues are recognized when measurable and available except for 
certain revenue sources which are not susceptible to accrual. Material revenues in the 
following categories are considered susceptible to accrual because they are both 
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period: 

• Federal Categorical Programs 
State Categorical Programs 

• State Apportionment 
• Interest 
• Lottery 

The following revenues are not susceptible to accrual because they are not both 
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period: 

• Mandated cost claims 
• Property taxes 

1 6  



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1 .  SUMMARY O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Cas!land Cash Equivalents 

For the purposes of the financial statements, cash equivalents are defined as financial 
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less. 

ffiV1alue of Pooled Investments 

The District records its investments in Plumas County Treasury at fair value. Changes 
in fair value are reported as revenue in the statement of revenues, expenditures/ 
expem1es a11d changes in fund balances/retained earnings. The fair value of 
invesbT1ents, including the Plumas County Treasury external investment pool, at 
June �10, 2002 approximated their carrying value. 

lnvent,:iries included in the Campus Center Fund are stated at average cost which 
does not exceed replacement cost 

Fixed Assets 

The District is not required by the California Community College Accounting Manual to 
capitalize f1Xed assets purchased by governmental fund types. Consequently, fixed 
asset purchases, except for the Campus Center and Associated Students Funds, are 
recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and are not capitalized in a separate 
account group. This method of recording fixed assets is contrary to generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Equipment and fixtures within the Campus Center and Associated Students Funds are 
stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful fives of the 
respective assets on the straight-line basis. At June 30, 2002, accumulated 
deprec:iation amounted to $21 .164 and $3,548 for each fund, respectively. 

Ac(;rued Vacation and Sick Leave 

Accrued vacation in the amount of $193,899 is recorded as a liability and also as an 
amo,Jnt to be provided by futl.l'e operations in the General Long-TenTI Debt Group of 
accounts. The liability is for earned but unused benefits. The amount to be provided 
by f1,ture operations represents the total amount that would be required to be provided 
from the general operating revenues of the District if all the benefits were to be paid 
currEtntly. The amount actually paid during the current fiscal year is recorded as an 
operating expenditure in the General Fund. 

Sick leave benefits are not recorded as liabilities on the books of the District. The 
District's policy is to record amounts as operating expenditures in the period sick leave 
is taken. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1 .  SUMMARY O F  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deferred Revenue and Program Advances 

Revenue from Federal, State and local special projects and programs is recognized 
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are 
recorded as deferred revenue until earned. 

iotertund Activity 

Transactions between funds of the District are generally recorded as lnterfund 
Transfers. Al year end, the unpaid balance resulting from such transactions is shown 
as due to and due from applicable funds. 

Contributed Caoital 

Contributed capital was recorded in the Student Financial Aid Fund to reflect the 
student loans receivable contributed to the District in the deannexation agreement with 
Peralta Community College District. 

Budgetary Practices 

The budgetary and financial accounts of the District have been recorded and 
maintained in accordance with the Chancellor's Office of the California Community 
College's Budget and Accounting Manual. The District's adjusted budget is the initial 
budget and any revisions to the budget that have been approved by the Board of 
Trustees. Encumbrance accounting is utilized for budgetary control purposes. 

property Taxes 

Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1 .  
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 1 O and April 1 0. Unsecured 
property taxes are due in one installment on or before August 31. Plumas County bills 
and collect taxes for the District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when 
received. 

Memorandum Total Columns on Combined Statements 

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Total (Memorandum Only)" 
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these 
columns does not present financial position, results of operations, nor changes in fund 
balance in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such 
data comparable to a consolidation. lnterfund eliminations have not been made in the 
aggregation of this data. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Estilm3tes 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
gennrally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estinnates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures or expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly. actual results may 
diffei-firom those estimates. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash i1n County Treasury 
Cash un hand and in banks 

Total cash 

$ 2.360,592 
89.945 

S 2.450.537 

As prcivided for by the Education Code Section 41001, a significant portion of the 
Distriict•s cash balances of most funds is deposited with the County Treasurer for the 
purpt:,se of increasing interest eamings through County investment activities. Each 
respective fund•s share of the total pooled cash is included in the accompanying 
combined balance sheet under the caption "Cash in County Treasury." Interest earned 
on such pooled cash balances is distributed to the participating funds based upon 
each fund's average cash balance during the distribution period. The Califomia 
Gove,mment Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to 
secu1·e the District•s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The 
market value of pledged securities must equal 1 1  0 percent of an agency's deposits. 
Calif<>rnia law also allows financial institutions to secure an agency's deposits by 
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 1 50 percent of an agency's 
total deposit and collateral is considered to be held i'1 the name of the District All cash 
held by financial institutions is entirely insured by the FDIC or collateralized. 

In aci:ordance with applicable State laws. the Plumas County Treasurer may invest in 
derivative securities. However. at June 30, 2002, the Plumas County Treasurer has 
india1te1d that the Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or other 
investments with similar risk profiles. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

2, CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Under provision of the District's policy, and in accordance with Sections 53601 and 
53602 of the California Government Code, the District may invest in the foUowing types 
of investments: 

• Securities of the U.S. Govemment, or its agencies 
• Small Business Administration Loans 
• Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
• Bankers' Acceptances 
• Commercial Paper 
• Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) Deposits 

Passbook Savings Account Demand Deposits 
• Repurchase Agreements 

Cash in banks and specifically identifiable investments are classified as to credit risk 
by three categories and summarized below as folows: 

category 1 - Includes deposits and investments that are insured or registered or for 
which securities are held by the District or its agent in the District's name 
and deposits insured or coHaterafized with securities held by the District. 

Category 2 - Includes uninsured and unregistered deposits and investments for which 
the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or 
agent in the District's name and deposits collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in 
the District's name. 

category 3 - Includes uninsured and unregistered deposits and investments for 
which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust 
department or agent, but not in the District's name. 

Catego[l! 
Bank Book 

1 2 3 Balance e,1,nce 

Cash in County 
Treasury S 2,360,592 S 2,360,592 S 2,360,592 

Cash on hand and 
in banks 1-li.� 74.186 -� 

1 74,1§2 LJ..360.592 1 1 2.434,778 
-- £2,.450·� 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

3. INTEIRFUND ACTIVITY 

lnterfund due from/due to amounts at June 30. 2002 and operating transfers for the 
year then ended were as follows: 

lnterfund Operating 
lnterfund Balances Transfers 

Transfer Transfer 
Due From Due To In Out 

General Fund $ 7,425 $ 1 ,023 $ 542,719 
Special Revenue Fund $ 77,724 
Capit1:1I Outlay Projects 

F=und 366,648 
Propriietary Fund 1 ,023 2,425 
Fiduciiary Funds --� _98,347 

I BA48 I BA48 1 542.719 1 542-711 

4. AMOUNTS AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED FOR DEBT RETIREMENT AND 
HEAL TH BENEFITS FOR RETIREES 

The amount available for health benefits for reti"ees of $427,318 in the General Long­
Tenn Debt Account Group represents the fund balance of the Retirement Benefits 
Trust Fund. 

The amount to be provided fa debt retirement and health benefits for retirees, 
$1,,�87,377, represents amounts required to be collected in the future in order to make 
requiriad payments on capitalized lease obligations (Note 5), long-term notes payable 
for the acquisition of the District buildings and equipment (Note 5 ), accrued vacation 
(Note 5), and the cost of post-retirement health benefits for retirees (Notes 5 and 9). 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

5. LONG· TERM DEBT 

capitalized Lease Obligations 

The District leases certain equipment under long-term lease purchase agreements. 
The foHowing is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for capitalized lease 
obligations as of June 30, 2002: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 

Thereafter 

Less amount representing interest 
Less amount not yet drawn 

Net present value of minimum 
lease payments 

Note Payable 

s 165,053 
144,653 
1 19,501 
1 19,240 
1 18,897 
162,123 

829,467 

(128,915) 
(157,966} 

1 542
1� 

in accordance with the deannexation agreement with Peralta Community College 
District, the District has a note payable with a remaining balance of $432,670 as of 
June 30, 2002. This note is for all real property, buildings, equipment and existing 
supplies pertaining to the Feather River College Campus. 

A schedule of the District's future obligations under the note payable agreement is as 
foHows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

Principal Interest Total 

2003 $ 155,673 $ 4,327 $ 160,000 
2004 157,230 2,770 160,000 
2005 1 1 9  767 1 .198 120,965 

s 432,!ilQ s 8,295 1 440 � 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
{Continued) 

5. I.ONG· TERM DEBT (Continued) 

6. 

7. 

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2002 is shown 
below: 

Balance Balance 
July 1 ,  JunEt 30, 
2001 Additions Deductions 2002 

Capitalized lease 
obligations $ 461 ,068 $ 172,034 $ 90,516 $ 542,586 

Note payable 586,802 154,132 432,670 
Health benefits payable 

to current retirees 
(Note 9) 556,895 1 1 ,355 545,540 

Accrued vacation -169,289 24,610 193,899 

1 1,774,054 1 196,644 s 256,003 L1,714,695 

RESERVED FUND BALANCES 

T'h11 reserved fund balances consisted of the following at June 30, 2002: 

Retirement 
Associated BenE1fits 

General Students Trust 
Fund Fund Fund 

Reserved for prepaid expenditures $ 59,085 
Reserved for payment of health 

benefits of retirees $ 427,318  
Reserved for funds of the 

Associated Students I :i,392 

s 59.085 1 5,392 1 427,318 

J.:'.>INT POWERS AGREEMENTS 

The District is a member of Northern California Community Colleges Self Insurance 
Authority (NCCCSIA), for the operation of a common risk management and insurance 
program. The program covers workers' compensation and property/liability insurance 
for its members. 

The following is the summary of financial Information for NCCCSIA at June 30, 2001 
(the latest information available): 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total retained earnings 
Total revenues 
Total expenses 
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$ 10,775,544 
$ 1 ,403,049 
$ 9,372,495 
$ 4,072,631 
$ 1 ,402, 124 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

7. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (Continued) 

The District is also a member of Tri-County Schools Insurance Group (TRI-SIG). This 
is a Joint Power Authority providing health insurance. The following is a summary of 
financial information for TRI-SIG at June 30, 2002: 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total retained earnings 
Total revenues 
Total expenses 

S 1 0,445,41 5  
S 6,773,1 73 
S 3,672,242 
$ 30.467,481 
S 28,804,675 

In addition, the District is a member of Statewide Association of Community Colleges 
(SWACC). This is a Joint Power Authority which provides excess liability coverage. 
The foUowing is a summary of financial information at June 30, 2001 (the latest 
information available): 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total retained earnings 
Total revenues 
Total expenses 

$ 1 5,510,1 1 2  
S 5,781,528 
S 9,728,584 
S 6,509,958 
S 6,054,146 

The relationship between the District and the joint powers authorities is such that the 
joint powers authorities are not component units of the District for financial reporting 
purposes. 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plans maintained by agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are 
members of the State Teachers' Retirement System, and classified employees are 
members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System. 

Piao Pescriotion and Provisions 

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) 

All full-time and some part-time academic employees are eligible to participate in 
STRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer contributory public employee retirement 
system. Employees attaining the age of 60 with five years of credited California 
service (service) are eligible for normal retirement and are entitled to a monthly benefit 
of two percent of their final compensation for each year of service. Final compensation 
is defined as the average salary eamable for the highest three consecutive years of 
service. The plan permits early retirement options at age 55 or as early as age 50 with 
30 years of service. Disability benefits of up to 90 percent of final compensation are 
available to members with five years of service. After five years of service, members 
become 100 percent vested in retirement benefits earned to date. If a member's 
employment is terminated, the accumulated member contributions are refundable. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

Plan Descrjption and Provisions (Continued) 

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) (Continued) 

Benefit provisions for STRS are established by the State Teachers' Retirement Law 
(Part 13  of the California Education Code, Sec. 22000 et seq.). STRS issues a 
separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the STRS annual financial 
report may be obtained from the STRS Executive Office at 7667 Folsom Boulevard, 
Sac:ramento, California 95826. 

Califomia Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) 

All full-time and some part-time classified employees participate in CalPERS, an agent 
multiple-employer contributory public employee retirement system that acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the 
State of California. The District is part of a •cost sharing• pool within CalPERS. One 
actuarial valuation is performed for those employers participating in the pool, and the 
same contribution rate applies to each. Employees are eligible fer retirement at the 
age of 55 and are entitled to a monthly benefit of two percent of final compensation for 
each year of service aedit. Retirement compensation is reduced if the plan is 
coordinated with Social Security. Retirement may begin at age 50 with a reduced 
benefit rate, or after age 55 to 63 with an increased rate. The plan also provides death 
and disability benefits. Retirement benefits fully vest after 5 years of credited service. 
Upc,n separation from the District, members' accumulated contributions are refundable 
with interest credited through the date of separation. 

Benefit provisions for CalPERS are established by the Public Employees' Retirement 
Law (Part 3 of the California Government Code, Sec. 20000 et seq.). CalPERS issues 
a s1,parate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual 
fins ncial report may be obtained fran the CalPERS Executive Office at 400 P Street, 
Sacramento, California 95814. 

Funding Policy 

The District is required by statute to contribute 8.25 percent of covered gross salary 
expenditures to STRS. The District was not required by statute to make contributions 
to C:alPERS during the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002. Participants are 
required to contribute 8.0 percent and 7.0 percent of covered gross salary to STRS 
and CalPERS, respectively. The District's employer contributions to STRS for the 
years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002 were $160,147, $184,948 and $208,:!38, 
respectively. The District's employer contributions to STRS met the required 
contribution rates set by law. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

N OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

B, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

?_;ahorjk Tax Shelter Annuity Plan 

Effective January 1 ,  1 993, the District established alternative retirement plan options 
for part-lime faculty as mandated by the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990. 
The District aUows part-time and substitute employees to select coverage under either 
social security or the alternative retirement plan. Under the Zahorik Tax Shelter 
Annuity Plan, the District and the employee are required to each contribute 3.75% of 
the employee's eamings. For the year ended June 30, 2002, the District contriluted 
$1 ,904 for the 9 employees participating in the plan. 

9. POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the District provides retiree and 
dependent medical coverage to eligible employees who retire from the District. 
Duration of benefits is calculated on a prorata basis, up to a maximum of 1 0  years. 
based on years of service. The District pays a set amount each month towards the 
cost of the medical coverage. Any costs in excess of this amount will be paid by Ille 
retiree. 

Expenditures for post-retirement health care benefits for six of the current retirees are 
recognized as the premiums are paid. During the year ended June 30, 2002, 
expenditures of $73,618 were recognized. The District funds the expenditures on the 
pay-as-you-go method. 

For employees hired before August 1 ,  1994, a fund was established in 1995-96 to 
accumulate funds to pay for the District's share of future medical premiums of eligible 
future retirees. An actuarial valuation was performed as of September 12, 2002, to 
determine the estimated cost of providing the above stated benefits to current 
employees upon retirement. The total unfunded past service post-retirement health 
care benefits was calculated at $1 18,222. As of June 30, 2002, $427,318 has been 
accumulated in the Retirement Benefits Fund. 

On December 6, 1 996, the District entered into a setUement agreement with the 
Feather River College Federation of Teachers. The agreement requires the District to 
provide lifetime post-retirement medical benefits to the eighteen academic employees 
who were hired prior to 1990. The costs to the District will be financed from the 
savings resulting from the differences in salaries paid to retiring faculty members and 
their replacements for an eleven year period. These savings will be deposited into a 
separate restricted fund for future payment of the benefits. In the event the savings 
are not adequate to cover the cost of the benefits and a deficit in the fund results, the 
eighteen academic employees will be required to pay a monthly assessment to cure 
the deficit. The estimated future costs associated with this agreement have not been 
determined. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

t)n July 2, 2002, the District issued a $790,000 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note 
(Tl�N) maturing June 25, 2003, with interest at 3.00% to provide for anticipated cash 
flow deficits from operations. The TRAN is a general obligation of the District and is 
payable from revenues and cash receipts to be generated by the District during the 
fiscal ye• ended June 30, 2003. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

ASSETS 

Cash in County Treasury 
Cuh on hand and in banks 
Accounts receivable: 

Federal government 
Local governments and other 

Equipment and fixtures, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND EQUITY 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due lo other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund equity: 
Contributed capital 
Fund (deficit) b•lances: 

Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total fund equity 

Total liabilities and fund 
equity 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

June 30, 2002 

Student Retirement 
Fln•ncl•I Assocl•ted Benefits 

Aid Studenle Trust 

$ 7,028 $ 427,318 
3, 131 s 5,071 

4,240 
3,884 50 

277 

s 18.283 s 5.398 !_427.31§ 

s 6,843 s 6 
� 

1 1 .843 6 

50,035 

5,392 s 
143 595] 

6,440 

1 11,m I 5.m s 

The accompanying noles are an Integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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427,318 

427.318 

427,!l!. 

Total 

s 434,346 
8,202 

4,240 
3,934 

277 

1 450.999 

s 6,849 
5 000 

11  849 

50,035 

432,710 
(43,595) 

439 150 

s 450,!!!!!! 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Student 
Flnanclal As1M1Clated 

Aid Students 

Revenues: 
Federal sources s 430,204 
State sources 29,671 
Local ,ources S, i.Zllll S, 

Total revenues 459,875 !.ZQA 

Expenditures: 
Employee benelils 
Books and supplies 1,512 
Contract services and 

oper;!lllng expenditures 3,892 
Student 1,nancial aid 460.708 

Total expenditures 460.708 5 404 

Deficiency of revenues under 
expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Operating transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other 
financing sources 
over (under) expend-
itures 

Fund equity, July 1 ,  2001 

Fund equity, June 30, 2002 

(833) (696) 

__ 3.§53 

2,820 (696) 

__ .3.§2!1 §.Q§§. 

L- 6,44g I 5,392 1 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
pert of these financial statements. 

29 

Retirement 
Benefits 

Trust 

17,792 

1 7 792 

39,792 

39,792 

(22,000) 

94 694 

72,694 

354 §24 

427.!J! 

____.Iota I 

s 430,204 
29,671 
22 500 

482,375 

39,792 
1,512 

3,892 
480,708 

505 904 

(23,529) 

98 347 

74,818 

384,332 

1 439,150 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Board of Trustees 
Feather River Community CoHege District 
Quincy, California 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Feather River 
Community College District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 1 ,  2002. In our report, our opinion was qualified because of 
the omission of the General Fixed Assets Group of accounts. These general purpose 
financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and 
the California Community Cdleges Contracted District Aud.it Manual, presented by the 
Chancellor's office. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose 
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplemental financial and 
statistical information including the Schedule of Federal Financial Awards and Schedule of 
State Financial Awards and the reports listed below, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the 
general purpose financial statements of Feather River Community College District and 
includes the following schedules: 

• Organization 
• Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportionment 

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report (CCFS-31 1  J with Audited 
Financial Statements 
Schedule of General Fund Revenues and Expenditures for Restricted and 
Unrestricted Programs 

The information in these schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as 
a whole. 

Sacramento, California 
November 1 ,  2002 
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FEATHER RIVEFt COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATION 

June 30, 2002 

Feather River Community College District consists of one community college located 
in Quincy, California. Geographically, the District encompasses all of Plumas County with the 
exception of the Southeastern corner of the County, near Calpine, California. 

The District provides the first two years of instruction transferable to accredited four­
year colleges and universities as well as vocational and technical education. 

The Board of Trustees and District. Administration for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2002 was composed of the 1Folowing members: 

Members 

Dr. Irene Burkey 
Mr. William Elliott 
Ms. Maxine Cullen 
Mr. John Sheehan 
Dr. Robert Marshall 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Office 

President 
Vice-President 

Member 
Member 
Member 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Dr. Susan Carroll 
President/District Superintendent 

Mr. Ron Groh 
Assistant Superintendent/Business Services 

Dr. Michael Bagley 
Dean of Instruction 

Mr. Paul Thein 
Dean of Students 
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Term Expres 

November 2004 
November 2006 
November 2002 
November 2004 
November 2004 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS 

For the Ye•r Ended June 30, 2002 

Federal GrpntorlP•y.Throuah 

Vocational and Applied Technology Education 
and Rehabilitation Acts: 

Tille II • Basic Grants: 
Part C VA'TEA 

Higher Education Act 
College Work Study 
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 
Pell Grant Program 
Pell Administration Alowance 

Youth tor Understanding 
Forest Reserve Fund 
Child Care Food Program 
CCCCAOE 
Partners in Education 
TRIO/SSS 
Child Development Training 
TANF 
Ameri-Corp 

Total Federal 

Federal 
CataJpq 

84.048 

84.003 
84.007 
84.063 
84.063 

Unknown 
10.665 
10.558 
1 1 .000 
19.407 

84.042A 
93.575 
93.867 
94.006 

See accompanying notes to 
supplemental information. 
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$ 

1 

Federal 
Expend· 

itures 

49,618 

24,770 
406,047 
20,157 

970 
15,071 

380,648 
8,527 
3,370 

35 
97,096 
2,500 

12,500 
37 180 

1,058,� 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS 

For the YHr Ended June 30, 2002 

Program Entltlements - - Program Revenues 
Program 

Current Prior Year Cash Accounts Deferred Expend· 
V!![_ �over Total Recelv!I!! R1celvable Rev1nue TRiii ll1.1c1s 

Disabled Student Program and SeNk:es s 297,986 $ 297,986 $ 297,986 $ 7 $ 297,979 $ 297,979 
Extended Opportunity Program and 

Services 212,510 212,510 212,510 212,510 2 12,510 
Cooperative Agencies RllSOU'ces 

Education 43,042 43,042 43,042 43,042 43,042 
Staff Development 10,000 $ 4,897 14,897 10,000 5,146 4,854 4,854 
Slaff Diversity 8,817 8,817 8,817 8,817 8,817 
Student Financial Aid Administration 12,822 12,822 12,822 12,822 12,822 
Child Development Program 75,866 75,866 75,866 75,866 75,866 
Child Development Instructional 

Equipment 500 500 500 500 500 
Child Care Food Program 589 589 454 $ 135 589 589 
Matriculation 62,790 62,790 62,790 62,790 62,790 
WOli<ability 67,700 67,700 44,677 18,020 62,697 62,697 
Block Grant 8,405 8,405 8,405 8,405 8,405 
Instructional Equipment 19,1 1 1  2,091 21 ,202 19,1 1 1  858 18,253 18,253 
Transfer Ed./ Articulation 17,129 17, 129 17,129 5,438 1 1 ,691 1 1 ,691 
Cal Grants 35,431 35,431 35,431 6,748 28,683 28,683 
Calworks 100,000 100,000 100,000 1 1 ,146 88,854 88,854 
TANF 12,500 12,500 12,500 1 2,500 1 2,500 
Telecommunication Grant 231,769 152,422 384,191 384,191 181, 172 203,019 203,019 
Student Success 13,902 13,902 7,423 7,423 7,423 
Economic Development 50,000 50,000 42,000 8,837 33,163 33,163 
TROP 350,000 350,000 262,500 72,823 335,323 335,323 
Boating Safety 15,000 15,000 1 5,000 1 5,000 15,000 
Special Outreach Mini Grant 10,000 10,000 5,182 5,182 5,182 
CAN Articulation 5,000 5,000 
TAMP 4,905 4,905 
Energy Conservation 52,745 33,083 85,828 85,828 50,264 35,564 35,564 
Cascade Pacific Library Grant 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

COE Early Childhood Mentor Program 1,664 1 ,664 1 ,663 1 ,663 1 ,663 
California Stale Rural Health Assoc. 1 ,400 1,400 1 400 j,400 j,400 

Total State programs 1.J..�� 1 111. lW!. J,--2lill,,1Wi. 1.J.�� 1-.1.�� 
See accompanying notes lo supplemental information. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF WORKLOAD MEASURES FOR STATE GENERAL APPORTIONMENT 

Annualized Attendance aa of June 30, 2002 

Categories 

A. Credit full-time equivalent 
student (FTES) 

1 .  Weekiy census 
2. Daily census 
3. Actual hours of attendance 
4. Independent study/WOik 

experience 

Total 

B. Noncredit FTES 

1 .  Actual hours of 
attendance 

c. Gross Square Footage 

1 .  Existing Facilities 
2. New Facilities 

D. FTES in New Facilities 

Reported 
Data 

527 

187 
759 

20 

1 493 

5 

85,059 

See accompanying notes to 
supplemental information. 
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Audit 
Adiustmentl. 

Revised 
Data 

527 

1 87 
759 

20 

1 493 

5 

85,059 



FEATHER RIVER c:OMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT 
(CCFS-311 )  WITH AUDITED FINANCI.G,L STATEMENTS 

For the V,ear Ended June 30, 2002 

There were no adjustments proposed to any funds or account groups of the District 

See accompanying notes to 
supplemental information. 
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FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
FOR RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED PROGRAMS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Restricted Unrestricted 

Revenues: 
Federal sources s 239,075 s 380,683 
State sources 1 ,528,086 5,285,482 
Local sources 277,593 3,546,723 

Total revenues 2,044,754 9,212,888 

Expenditures: 
Academic salaries 309,103 3,076,098 
Classified salaries 522,856 2,007,358 
Employee benefits 180,389 1 ,128,457 
Books and supplies 123,591 245,623 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 452,433 1 ,327,321 
Capital outlay 387,971 223,082 
Debt service: 

Principal reduction 13,262 231 ,386 
Interest 2,060 69,240 

Other payments 124 005 48 

Total expenditures 2,115,670 8,308,613 

(Deficiency) excess of revenues 
(under) over expenditures 170.916} 904 275 

Other financing sources (uses): 
lntrafund transfers (27,497) 27,497 
Proceeds from capitalized· lease 

obligations 172,034 
Operating transfers out 122,820} - 1519.899} 

Total other financing sources (uses) 121 717 (492,402) 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing sources over expend-
itures and other uses 50,801 411 ,873 

Fund balances, July 1, 2001 89 979 880,153 

Fund balances. June 30, 2002 s 140,Zfil! S,--1,292,� 

See accompanying notes to 
supplemental information. 
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Total 

s 619,758 
6,813,568 
3.824,316 

1 1,257,642 

3,385,201 
2,530,214 
1 ,308,846 

369,214 

1,779,754 
61 1 ,053 

244,648 
71 ,300 

124 053 

10424,283 

833,359 

172,034 
- 1542,719} 

1370,685} 

462,674 

970 132 

S,--1,432,§2§. 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

1 .  PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

A • Schedule of federal and State Financial Awards 

OMB Circular A-133 requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all 
Federally funded programs. To comply with A··133 and State requirements, this 
schedule was prepared by the District. Differences exist between the revenues 
shown on the schedule and the general purpose financial statements for the 
following reasons: 

• Various program revenues are recorded in the current year for prior year 
claims, for which expendit1Kes were incumtd in prior years. 

• Amounts reported as revenue may not represent final claim amounts, due to 
the timing of filing the final claims, and the c:losing of the District's records. 

B • Schedul� pf Workload Measures for State General Apportionment 

Full-time equivalent students is a measurement of the number of students 
attending classes of the District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a 
fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of State funds 
are made to community college districts. This schedule provides information 
regarding the attendance of students based on various methods of accumulating 
attendance data. 

C - Reconcjljatjon of Annual Financial and Budget Report {CCFS-31 1 l with Audited 
Financial Statements 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance 
of all funds reported on the CCFS-31 1  to the audited financial statements. 

D - Schedule of General Fund Revenues and E',l!Jlenditures for Restricted and 
Unrestricted Prggrams 

This schedule details the revenues and expenditures in the General Fund by 
restricted programs and general operating programs. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON ST AtE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Board of Trustees 
Feather River Community College District 
Quincy, California 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Feather River 
Community College District, for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 1 ,  2002. In our report, our opinion was qualified because of the 
omission of the General Fixed Assets Group of accounts. 

Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in 
Government Au<lting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and, 
accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

In connection with our audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and 
records to determine the District's compliance with the following state laws and regulations in 
accordance with section 400 of the Chancellor's Office's CaHfomia Community Colleges 
Contracted Distnct Audit Manual (CDAM): 

1 .  The District maintained a separate and complete tabulation for each course 
section for student attendance, which is reported for State support. 

2. The District has adopted polcies related to open courses as specified in 
California Code of Regulations Section 51006. 

3. The District claimed for apportionment purposes only the attendance of 
students actively enrolled in a course section as of the census date. 

4. The District's salaries of classroom instructors equaled or exceeded 50 percent 
of the District's current expense of education in accordance with Section 84362 
of the Education Code. 

5. Salaries of instructors teaching FTES generating classes, school counselors 
providing academic advisement, and financial aid officers conducting need 
analysis are not considered supportable charges against either Extended 
Opportunity Programs and Services (EOP&S) or Disabled Student Programs 
and Services (DSP&S) accounts unless their activities require them to perform 
additional functions for the EOP&S or DSP&S programs which are beyond the 
scope of services provided to all students in the normal performance of their 
regular duty assignments. These activities may be supported only to the extent 
of the supplementary services provided for EOP&S or DSP&S. 

6. The District's claim upon EOP&S funds excluded expenses incurred as 
administrative salaries unless the administrator exclusively functions in the 
capacity of the EOP&S Director or an exemption is specifically certified by the 
Chancellor's Office. 

7. The District has calculated appropriations limits annually and such calculations 
are supported by the amounts reported in the District's CCFS - 311  and CCFS -
320. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
(Continued) 

8. The District has used local funds to support at least 75 percent of the District's 
matriculation activities and all expenditures reJated to matriculation must be 
consistent with the District's State-approved matriculation plan and identifiable 
within the ten activities approved by the State. 

9. The District has charged an enrollment fee to all eligible students taking 
qualified classes. Students who are exempt from the non-resident tuition fee 
are charged the com!ct fee per course unit if the District claims the student as 
resident FTES for apportionment purposes. Fees collected are reported in the 
proper accounting period. 

1 O. Classes which fall under instructional service agreements/contracts for which 
• FTES are claimed are eligible for State funding. 

1 1 .  The District complied with all state laws and regulations in accordance with 
Section 1 (a)(3) of the California Education Code and Chapter 3.6, Section 
1 5379.28 of the California Governmental Code and to the standard grant 
conditions in the administration of Economic Development Program grants. 

12. The District complied with the Scheduled Maintenance Program as the amount 
spent in 1995·96 fiscal yearfor Operations and Maintenance of Plant rncreased 
by an amount equal to that provided by the State for the Scheduled 
Maintenance Program for the year being audited. 

Management is respoosible 1For the Distrid's compliance with those requirements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our examination 

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established 
by the American Institute of Certifiecl Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining 
on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination 
does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with specified 
requirements. 

In our opinion, except for the item noted in the next paragraph, Feather River 
Community College District complied, in all material respects with the aforementioned 
requirements for the year ended June 30, 2002. 

The Governing Board has not adopted, by resolution, a policy related to open 
courses as specified in Title 5 of the Califc,rnia Code of Regulations (CCR), 
Section 51006. 

The above finding is further detailed in the Findings and Recommendations section of 
this report, along with recommendations to remedy the cause of the finding. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's management, 
the Board of Trustees, and the federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Sacramento, California 
November 1 ,  2002 

39 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (SUBJECT TO ""'A-..... 1=33

.,.
) __ _ 

Board of Trustees 
Feather River Community College District 
Quincy, California 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Feather River 
Community College District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 1,  2002. In our report, our opinion was qualified because of 
the omission of the General Fixed Assets Group of accounts. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Feather River Community 
College District's general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Feather River Community College 
District's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not 
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily diSclose all matters in the 
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material 
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts 
that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements and the 
combining and individual fund general purpose financial statements being audited may occur 
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

40 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (SUBJECT TO �A-�13=3._). __ _ 

(Continued) 

This report is intended for the information of the Board of Trustees, management, the 
State Department of Finance, the Chancellor's Office, California Community Colleges and 
Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Sacramento, California 
November 1 ,  2002 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Trustees 
Feather River Community College District 
Quincy, California 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Feather River Community College District with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major Federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2002. Feather River Community College District's 
major Federal programs are identified in the accompanying schedule of Federal financial 
assistance. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to each of its major Federal programs is the responsibility of Feather River 
Community College District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
Feather River Community College District's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organization,. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about Feather River Community College District's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
a legal determination on Feather River Community College District's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, Feather River Community College District complied, in all material 
respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major 
Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2002. 

Internal Control over ComoHaoce 

The management of Feather River Community College District is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to Federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered Feather River Community College District's internal 
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major Federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
(Continued) 

!nternal Control Over Compliance (Continued) 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material 
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with 
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in 
relation to a major Federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We 
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of the Board of Trustees, management, the 
State Department of Finance, the ChanceUor's Office, California Community Colleges and 
Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Sscramento, California 
November 1 ,  2002 
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2002 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over flnanclal reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered 

to be material weakness(es)? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) Identified? 
Repor1able conditlon(s) identified not considered 

to be material weakness(es)? 

Type of auditor's repor1 Issued on compllanc:e for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are requred lo be 
repor1ed in accordance with section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

CEDA Numbadsl 

Qualified 

___ Yes X No 

__ Yes X None reported 

___ Yes _X No 

___ Yes X No 

___ Yes X None reported 

Unqualified 

__ Yes X No 

Name gf Federal Proaram er c1un 

84.063, 84.003, 84.007" 
10.665 

Student Financial Aid 
Forest Reserve Fund 

• Clustered 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

44 

s 300,000 

___ Yes ....... x..__ No 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

June 30, 2002 

1 .  ST ATE COMPLIANCE • ATTENDANCE (10000) 

Finding 

The Governing Board has not adopted, by resolution, a policy related to open courses 
as specified in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Section 51006. 

Recommendation 

The Board of Trustees of the District should adopt, by resolution, a policy related to 
open courses as specified in CCR Section 51006. 

Recommendation 

The District has drafted a policy, for Board approval, related to open courses as 
specified in CCR Section 51006. 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

June 30, 2002 

1. STATE COMPLIANCE · OTHER THAN ATTENDANCE (40000) 

Finding 

Second period actual FTES for 1998-1999 and 1999-2000 were reported incorrectly on 
the GANN limit worksheet. This resulted in an understatement of the 2000-2001 
appropriations limit by approximately $382,000. 

Recommendation 

Government Code Section 7908(c) requires each college to report to the Chancellor of 
the California Community Colleges and the Director of the Department of Finance at 
least annually its appropriations limit (GANN). To ensure actual FTES are reported 
correctly, we recommend that the District revise their GANN limit worksheet and verify 
the FTES reported with the Second Period Apportionment Attendance Report. 

Current Status 

The District revised their GANN limit worksheet and resubmitted the form to the State. 

46 



APPENDIX C 

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL FlNANCJNG DOCUMENTS 

The following summaries of certain of the Bond Documents do not purport to be comprehensive or 
definitive statements of the provisions of such Bond Documents and prospective purchasers of the Bonds are 
referred to the complete texts of such documents, copies of which are available upon request from the 
Underwriter prior to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds and from the Trustee after the issuance and 
delivery of the Bonds. 

THE INDENTURE 

DEFINITIONS 

The term .. Acceleration Default" shall mean an Event of Def ii.ult described in the Loan Agreement. 

The term "Act"' shall mean the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles I, 2. 3 and 4 of Oiapter 5 of Division 7 
of Title I of the Govermnent Code of the State of California, as now in effect and as it may from time to time 
be amended or supplemented. 

The term "Act of Bankruptcy" shall mean the filing of a petition in bankruptcy (or other commencement of a 
bankruptcy or similar proceeding) by or against the Borrower and/or any guarantor of the Borrower or the 
Authority (which guarantor is guarantying an obligation of the Borrower or the Authority relating to the 
Project). under any applicable bankruptcy. insolvency or similar law in effect; provided that any filing of a 
petition against the Borrower or any guarantor of the Borrower (or other involuntary commencement of a 
bankruptcy or similar proceeding), or the Authority, shall not constitute an Act of Bankruptcy if a court of 
competent jurisdiction, stays or dismisses such petition ( or such proceeding) within 60 days of the fl.ling 
thereof. 

The term "Additional Bonds fl shall mean any bonds issued under an indenture supplemental to the Indenture. 

The term ri Agents" shall mean any paying agent under the Indenture. 

The term "Authority" shall mean the California Community College Financing Authority, the issuer of the 
Bonds under the Indenture, and its successors and assigns. 

The term "Authorized Amount" shall mean, with respect to the Series A Bonds three million two hundred 
fifty thousand dollars ($3,250,000). and with respect to the Series B Bonds one hundred sixty-five thousand 
dollars ($165,000). 

The term "Authorized Authority Representative� shall mean any member of the governing board of the 
Authority or any other person designated to act in such capacity by a Certificate of the Authority containing 
the specimen signature of any of such persons which certificate may designate an alternate or alternates. 

The term "Authorized Borrower Representative" shall mean any member of the governing board of the 
Borrower, its President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer or any other person 
who at the time and from time to time may be designated as such, by written certificate furnished to the 
Authority and the Trustee containing the specimen signature of such person and signed on behalf of the 
Borrower by any of the foregoing enumerated persons, which certificate may designate an alternate or 
alternates. 

The term "Authorized Denominations" shall mean $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. 
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The term '·Available Amounts" means (i) proceeds of the sale of the Bonds. (ii) any other amounts for which 
in each case the Trustee has received, at the time such amounts are deposited with the Trustee, an opinion of 
Bond Counsel or nationally recognized counsel experienced in bankruptcy matters, to the effect that the use of 
such moneys to make payments on the Bonds would not be voidable as preferential payments or recoverable 
under the United States Bankruptcy Code should the Authority, the Borrower, or any guarantor of the 
Borrower become a debtor in proceedings commenced thereunder. and (iii) investment income derived from 
the investment of moneys described in the preceding clauses (i) or (ii). 

The term '"Bond Counsel" shall mean any attorney at law or firm of attorneys acceptable to the Authority, of 
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax status of interest on bonds issued by 
states and political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state of the 
United States of America. but shall not include counsel for the Borrower. 

The term "Bond Fund" shall mean the fund established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The term ''Bonds" shall mean the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds. 

The te,m "Borrower" shall mean (i) Feather River College Foundation, Inc. a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation, and its successors and assigns, and (ii) any surviving. resulting or transferee entity as 
provided in the Loan Agreement. 

The term "Borrower's Certillcate" shall mean a certificate of the Borrower signed by an Authorized 
Borrower Representative. 

The term "Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday. a legal holiday. a day on which 
banking institutions in New York, New York or in the city or cities in which Trustee's Principal Office is 
located, or day on which the New York Stock Exchange, is or are authorized or obligated by law or executive 
order to close. 

The term "Certificate of the Authority" shall mean a certificate of the Authority signed by an Authorized 
Authority Representative. 

The term "Certified Resolution'' shall mean a copy of a resolution of the Authority certified by an Authorized 
Authority Representative, or by any deputy thereof, to have been duly adopted by the Authority and to be in 
full force and effect on the date of such certification. 

The term "Oosing Date" shall mean May 29, 2003, the date of initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds. 

The term "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the Closing Date or (except as 
otherwise referenced in the Indenture) as it may be amended to apply to obligations issued on the date of 
issuance of the Bonds, together "ith applicable temporary and final regulations promulgated, and applicable 
official public guidance published, under the Code. 

The term "Continuing Disclosure Agreement" shall mean the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, executed 
by the Borrower and the Trustee in connection "ith the Bonds pursuant to the Loan Agreement, as it may be 
amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 

The term ·•cost oflssuance Fund" shall mean the fwd by that name established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The term "Coverage Requirement" shall mean, for any period of computation, the requirement that the ratio 
of (i) Net Project Revenues for such period (including interest earnings accruing during such period) to (ii) the 
Debt Service on Bonds Outstanding for such period, shall be 1.20 or greater. 

C-2 



The term "Deed of Tnst,. shall mean that certain Deed of Trust With Absolute Assignment of Leases and 
Rents. Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated as of the date of the Indenture by the Borrower in favor of 
the Trustee securing the payment of the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, and 
encumbering the Borrower's tee simple interest in the real property comprising the Pr�ject and the Bo1rower's 
O\\onership interest in the improvements comprising the Project. as such deed of trust may be originally 
executed or as from time to time supplemented and amended. 

The term ''Debt Sen'iee'' means the scheduled amount of interest and amortization of principal payable on 
Outstanding Indebtedness. including the Bonds, during the period of computation, excluding amounts 
scheduled during such period which relate to principal which has been retired before the beginning of such 
period. 

The term •·District"' means the Feather River Community Colleg•: Dis1rict. a California commwity college 
district. 

The term .. Event «if Default" (i) as used in the Indenture other than with respect to defaults under the Loan 
Agreement shall have the meaning specified in the Indenture. and (ii) as used in the Loan Agreement shall 
have the meaning specified therein. 

The term .. b:pemes of Operating and Maintaiaiog the Project" shall mean the reasonable expenses. paid or 
accrued, of operation. maintenance and current repair of the Project. as calculated in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and shall include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing. salaries, 
wages. employee benefits, payroll taxes. legal fees, cost of materials and supplies. costs of utilities, licenses, 
insurance, taxes, advertising, routine repairs. renewals, replacements and alterations occurring in the usual 
course of business. fees and expenses of the Trustee or the Borrower incurred in connection with calculations 
made pursuant to the Indenture or as otherwise described in the Loan Agreement, rebate obligations owed 
pursuant to the Indenture, costs of billings and collections, and costs of audits. Expenses of Operating and 
Maintaining the Project shall not include (iJ any payments on the Loan or other Indebtedness. (ii) allowance 
for depreciation. amortization or renewals or replacements of capital assets (except as provided above) of the 
Project, (iii) deposits to the Repair and Replacement Fund as required by the Loan Agreement. (iv) payments 
to the Authority or the Trustee under the Loan Agreement or (v) the Management Fee. 

The term .. Fair Market Value" means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase an investment from 
a willing seller in a bona fide. arm's length transaction (determined as of the date the contract to purchase or 
sell the inves.tment becomes binding) if the investment is traded on an established securities market (within the 
meaning of the Code) and, otherwise. the tetm "Fair Market Value·• means the acquisition price in a bona fide 
arm·s length 1ransaction (as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is acquired in 
accordance with applicable regulations wder the Code, (ii) the investment is an agreement with specifically 
negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a specifically negotiated interest rate (for example, a 
guaranteed investment contract, a forward supply contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in 
accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury 
Security - State or Local Govenunent Series that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the 
United States Bureau of Public Debt. or (iv) any commingled investment fund in which the Authority and 
related parties do not own more than a ten percent ( 10%) beneficial interest therein if the return paid by the 
fund is without regard to the source of the investment. The Truste,: shall have no duty in connection with the 
detemiination ofFair Market Value other than as required in the investment directions of the Borrower. 

The term "Fioaacial Comnltant" means an independent finn of fmancial or management consultants of 
regional or national reputation with expertise in the area of non.profit entities and qualified to report on 
questions relating to the financial condition of nonprofit entities engaged in activities similar to those of the 
Borrower. 
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The term "Fiscal Year" shall mean any twelve month period from July I in one calendar year through June 30 
of the succeeding calendar year. 

The term ·-cross Proceeds'" means the amounts described in the Regulations. 

The term "Gross Project Revenues" shall mean all receipts. revenues. income and other moneys received by 
or on behalf of the Borrower and derived from the ownership or operation of the Project, including, all 
amounts paid by the District pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, interest earnings on the Reserve Fund, the 
Surplus Fund. the Gross Project Revenue Fund and the Repair and Replacement Fund. and all rights to receive 
the same. whether in the form of accounts. accounts receivable, contract rights or other rights. and the proceeds 
of such rights, whether now owned or held or coming into existence and the proceeds of rental interruption 
insurance. but not including insurance and condemnation proceeds ( other than rental interruption insurance 
proceeds) or any portion thereof or proceeds received upon the foreclosure sale of the Project. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Gross Project Revenues shall not include (a) any tenant security depnsits 
deposited to an impound account or accounts until such time as such deposits may be lawfully applied by the 
Borrower to any costs related to operation and maintenance of the Project and (b) any moneys paid by the 
District to, or for the account of the Borrower. and dedicated specifically to the purpose of the repair and 
improvement of the Project. 

The term "Gross Project Revenue Fund'" shall mean the fund established pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 

The term "Hazardous Substances� means any substances. pollutants, wastes and contaminants used in such 
( or any similar) term under any federal, state or local statute, ordinance, code or regulation enacted or 
amended. 

The term "Holder," "holder" or "Bondholder" or ·owuer•· or "Bondowner" shall mean the person in whose 
name any Bond is registered. 

The term "Indebtedness� shall mean (a) all liabilities for borrowed money which have been incurred or 
assumed in connection with the acquisition or construcli.on of the Project, or secured by the Project or the 
Gross Project Revenues, whether or not such indebtedness is assumed by the Borrower. (b) the present value 
of all payments due under any lease or under any other arrangement for retention of title ( discounted in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles) if such lease or other arrangement is in substance 
(i) a financing lease (including any lease under which the Borrower has or will have an option to purchase the 
property subject thereto at a nominal amount or an amount less than a reasonable estimate of the fair market 
value of such property at the date of such purchase or the term of which approximates or exceeds the estimated 
useful life of the property subject thereto), (ii) an arrangement for the retention of title for security purposes, or 
(iii) an installment purchase: and (c) to the extent not contemplated in the foregoing clauses, all forms of Short­
Term and Long-Term Indebtedness. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Indebtedness shall not include (a) any 
requirement to pay principal of. premium, if any, or interest on any obligation to the extent that Irrevocable 
Deposits sufficient to pay such principal of. premium, if any, or interest have been made, or (b) accounts 
payable or other obligations of the Borrower incurred in the ordinary course of business, which obligations are 
not required to be capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The term "Information Services" means Financial Information, lnc.'s KDaily Called Bond Service," 30 
Montgomery Street, 10th Floor, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, Attention: Editor. MergentfFIS, Inc., 5250 77 
Center Drive, Suite 150, Charlotte, North Carolina 28217, Attention: Called Bond Department; and Standard 
and Poor's J.J. Kenny Information Services' "Called Bond Record.'' 55 Water Street, 45th Floor, New York, 
New York 10041; and. in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
such other addresses and/or such other services providing information with respect to the redemption of Bonds 
as the Authority may designate in a Written Request of the Authority filed with the Trustee. 
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The term "lndentnre� shall mean the Indenture of Trust. as originally executed or as it may from time to time 
be supplemented. modified or amended by any supplemental indenture entered into pursuant to the provisions 
of the Indenture. 

The term "Interest Payment Date" shall mean January I and July I of each year. commencing January I ,  
2004. 

The term "Investment SeclR'ities" shall mean any of the following (including any funds comprised of the 
following. which may be funds maintained o:r managed by the Trustee and its affiliates): 

(a) For all purposes. including defoasance investments in refunding escrow accounts: 

I. Cash deposits (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or otherwise 
collateralized with obligations described in the next paragraph). 

2. Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of the 
Department of Treasury) the United States o,f America. In the event these securities are used for defeasance, 
they shall be non-callable and non-prepayable. 

(b) For all purposes other than defeasance investments in refunding escrow accounts: 

I. Obligations of the following federal agencies so long as such obligations are backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States of America: 

a .  U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank) 
b .  Rural Economic Community Development Administration 
c. Federal Financing Bank 
d. U.S. Maritime Administration 
e. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (PHAs) 
f. General Services Administration 
g. Small Business Administration 
h. Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 
i. Federal Housing Administration 
j. Fann Credit System Financial Assistance Cruporation 

2. Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations are not fully 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America: 

a. Senior debt obligations rated in the highest long-term rating category by at least two nationally 
recognized rating agencies issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) or Federal Home 
Loan Mortgage Cruporation (FHLMC). 

b. Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System. 

3. U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and bankers' acceptances with domestic 
commercial banks which either (a) have a rating on their short-term certificates of deposit on the date of 
purchase in the highest short-term rating catc,gory of at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, (b) are 
insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or (c) are collateralized with direct 
obligations of the United States of America at one hundred two percent ( 102%) valued daily. All such 
certificates must mature no more than three h1D1dred sixty (360) days after the date of purchase. (Ratings on 
holding companies are not considered as the rating of the bank). 
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4. Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the highest short-term rating category 
of at least two (2) nationally recognized rating agencies and which matures not more than two hundred seventy 
(270) days after the date of purchase. 

5. Investments in (a) money market fluids subject to SEC Rule 2a-7 and rated in the highest short­
term rating category of at least two nationally recognized rating agencies and (b) public sector investment 
pools operated pursuant to SEC Rule 2a-7 in which the Issuer·s deposit shall not exceed 5% of the aggregate 
pool balance at any time and such pool is rated in one of the two highest short-term rating categories of at least 
two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

6. Pre-refunded municipal obligations defined as follows: Any bonds or other obligations of any state 
of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state 
which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have 
been given by the obligor to call on the date specified in the notice; and. 

a. which. are rated. based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the "escrow"). in the highest 
long-term rating category of at least two (2) nationally recognized rating agencies; or 

b. ( i) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium. if any. by an 
escrow consisting only of cash or direct obligations of the United States of America, which escrow may be 
applied only to the payment of such principal of and interest and redemption premium. if any. on such bonds 
or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to 
such irrevocable instructions. as appropriate. and 

(ii) which escrow is sufficient. as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public 
accountant. to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations 
described in this paragraph on the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions ref erred to 
above. as appropriate. 

7. General obligations of states with a short-term rating in one of the two (2) highest rating categories 
and a long-term rating in one (I)  of the two (2) highest rating categories of at least two (2) nationally 
recognized rating agencies. In the event such obligations are variable rate obligations. the interest rate on such 
obligations must be reset not less frequently than annually. 

8. Investment agreements from providers rated "AA" or higher. 

The value of the above investments, other than cash, shall be determined as follows: 

"Value," which shall be determined as of the end of each month, means that the value of any 
investments shall be calculated as follows: 

I. As to investments the bid and asked prices of which are published on a regular basis in The Wall 
Street Journal (or. if not there. then in The New York Times): the average of the bid and asked prices for such 
investments so published on or most recently prior to such tinie of determination; 

2. As to investments the bid and asked prices of which are not published on a regular basis in The 
Wall Street Journal or The New York Times: the average bid price at such price at such time of determination 
for such investments by any two nationally recognized government securities dealers (selected by the Trustee 
in its absolute discretion) at the time making a market in such investments or the bid price published by a 
nationally recognized pricing service; 

3. As to certificates of deposit and bankers acceptances, the face amount thereof, plus accrued 
interest; and 
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4. As to any investment not specified above. the value thereof established by prior agreement 
between the Authority and the Trustee. 

The term •irrevocable Deposit" shall mean the irrevocable deposit in escrow of cash or Investment Securities 
defined in subsections (a) and (bl ( I )  of the definition thereof. in an amount and under tenns sufficient to pay 
all or a specified portion of the principal of: premium. if any, and the interest on. as the same will become due. 
any Indebtedness which would otherwise be considered outstanding. The escrow agent shall have possession 
of any securities (other than book enb) securities) and may be the Trustee or any other independent entity with 
trust powers authorized to act in such capacity. 

'!be term "Issuance Costs" means all costs and expenses of issuance of the Bonds, including. but not limited 
to: (i) w1dernTiter's discount and fees; (ii) counsel fees and expem1es. including without limitation those of 
Bond Counsel. w1derwriter's counsel. Borrower's counsel and Authority counsel. as well as any other 
specialized counsel fees and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or the making of 
the Loan: (iii) the Authority"s fees and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds; 
(iv) rating agency fees; (v) Trustee"s fees and expenses and Trustee's counsel fees; (vi) paying agent's and 
certifying and authenticating agent's fees and expenses related to issuance of the Bonds; (vii) accountant's fees 
related to issuance of the Bonds: (viii) printing costs of the Bonds and of the preliminary and final official 
statements; (ix) publication costs associated with the financing proceedings; (x) costs of engineering and 
feasibility studies necessary to the issuance of the Bonds; and (xi) bond insurance premiums. 

The term "Leases" mean those certain lease or rental agreements by and between the Borrower and the tenants 
of the Project. 

The term "Loan" shall mean the loan made by the Authority to the Bonower pursuant to the Loan Agreement 
for the purpose of financing the acquisition by the Borrower of the Project. 

The term "Loan Agreement" shall mean that certain Loan Agreement with respect to the Loan, dated as of 
May I. 2003, among the Authority. the Borrower and the Trustee as originally executed or as it may from time 
to time be supplemented or amended. 

The tenn "Long Term Indebtedness- means indebtedness with a stated term greater than one year or with a 
tenn that may be extended beyond one year at the option of the Borrower. 

The tenn "Member" or "Member of the Authority" means those certain California community college 
districts that are party to that certain California Commw1ity College Financing Authority Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement, originally executed as of June 28. 1995, and amended as of May 14. 1997 and May 5, 
2003. 

The term "Net Proceeds." when used with respect to any insurance proceeds or condemnation award, shall 
mean the amount remaining after deducting from the gross proceeds thereof all expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys· fees) incurred in the collection of such proceeds or award. 

The term "Net Project Revenues" shall mean, for any period of computation, Gross Project Revenues during 
such period less Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project during such period. 

The term "Occupancy Agreement" means that certain agreement, dated as of May I, 2003, entitled 
''Agreement Between Feather River College FOWtdation and Feather River Community College District 
Regarding the Operation of the Student Housing Complex (Feather River Apartinents)" all rights and remedies 
under which have been assigned to the Trustee by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement to farther secure 
Borrower's obligations thereunder. 
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The term "Official Statement" shall mean that certain Official Statement distributed with respect to the 
Bonds, dated as of May 21, 2003. 

The term "Operating Budget� shall mean the budget to be prepared by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement 

The term "Operation and Maintenance Fund"' shall mean the food by that name established pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. 

The term "Opinion of Counsel" shall mean a written opinion of counsel, who may be counsel for the 
Authority or Bond Counsel or counsel for the Trustee. 

The term ''Original Purchaser" means the purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds from the Authority on the 
Closing Date. 

The term ""Outstanding" or �outstanding," when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, shall 
mean all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture except: 

(a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation; 

(b) Bonds for the payment or redemption of which moneys or securities in the necessary 
amount (as provided in the Indenture) shall have theretofore been deposited with the Trustee (whether upon or 
prior to the maturity or the redemption date of such Bonds), provided that, if such Bonds are to be redeemed 
prior to the maturity thereof. notice of such redemption shall have been given as provided in the Indenture or 
provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice; and 

(c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been authenticated 
and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. 

The term "Permitted Encumbrances- means. as of any particular time: (i) liens for general ad valorem taxes 
and assessments, if any, not then delinquent: (ii) the Loan Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time; 
(iii) any right or claim of any mechanic, laborer. materialman, supplier or vendor not filed or perfected in the 
manner prescribed by law: (vi) easements. rights of way, mineral rights. drilling rights and other rights, 
reservations, covenants, conditions or restrictions which exist of record as of the Closing Date and which 
Borrower certifies in writing will not materially impair the use of the Project by the Borrower for its intended 
purposes: and (v) easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, reservations, 
covenants. conditions or restrictions established following the date of recordation of the Deed of Trust, which 
the Borrower certifies in ...,-jting "'ill not materially impair the use of the Project by the Borrower for its 
intended purposes. 

The term "person" shall mean an individual. a corporation, a partnership, a limited liability company, a trust, 
an unincorporated organization or a government or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

The term ·Principal Office," with respect to the Trustee, shall mean the principal corporate trust otlice of the 
Trustee located at the address set forth in the Indenture or at such other place as the Trustee shall designate by 
notice given Wider the Indenture. 

The term "Principal Payment Date" shall mean any date on which principal of the Loan is due and payable 
under the Loan Agreement 

The term "Project" shall mean the costs of acquiring, improving, remodeling, renovating and equipping that 
certain apartment complex located at 300 Golden Eagle Avenue, Quincy. California 95971. 
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The term "Project Costs"' means, to the extent authorized by the Code and the Regulations. any and all costs 
and expenses incurred by the Borrower or the Authority with respect to the acquisition. financing, refinancing, 
andlor operation of the Project, including, without limitation. Issuance Costs. costs for the acquisition and/or 
refinancing of property, the cost of consultant. accounting and legal services. appraisal costs, administrative 
expenses. translers into the Bond Fund established under the Indenture, and all other costs approved 1,y Bond 
Counsel 

The term �Project Fund .. shall mean the fund established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The term "Pnrcbse Pricet for the purpose of computation of the Yield of the Series A Bonds, has 1he same 
meaning as the term "issue price'' in the Code, and in general means the initial offering price to the public 
(not including bond houses and brokers. or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of 
underwriters or wholesalers) at which price a substantial amount of the Tax-Exempt Bonds are sold or, if any 
Tax-Exempt Bonds are privately placed the price paid by the Original Purchaser of such Tax-Exempt Bonds 
or the acquisition cost of the Original Purchaser. 

The term "Rebate Accounf' shall mean the account by that name established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The term "Rebate Analyst .. shall mean any accountant. law finn o:r consultant experienced in the calculation 
of arbitrage rebate selected by the Borrower and approved by the Authority. 

The tenn "Record Date .. shall mean the close of business on the fifl:eenth (15th) day ofthe month (whether or 
not a Business Day) before such Interest Payment Date. 

The term "Regents" shall mean lbe Regents of the University of California. 

The term "Regulations" means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated by the Department of the Treasury 
pursuant to the Code from time to time or pursuant to any predecessor statute to the Code. 

The tem1 "Repair and Replacement Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

The tem1 "Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
the Loan Agreement. 

The tenn "Reserve Fund .. shall mean the fund established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The tenn "Reserve Fund Requirement" shall mean, as of any calculation date. the least of ( I )  the maximum 
annual Debt Service with respect to the Bo�,ds (in any Fiscal Year) or (2) 125% of the average annual Debt 
Service with respect to the Bonds (on a Fiscal Year basis). 

The term "Responsible Officer .. of the Trustee shall mean any officer of the Trustee assigned to administer its 
duties under the Indenture. 

The tem1 "Revenues" shall mean all amounts pledged under the Indenture to the payment of principal of: 
premium, if any. and interest on the Bonds. consisting of the following: (i) any portion of the net proceeds of 
the Bonds deposited with the Trustee under the Indenture, (ii) any income earned on investments pursuant to 
the Indenture, (iii) proceeds derived from the exercise of any remedies provided for under the Deed of Trust, 
(iv) proceeds derived from the exercise of ariy remedies under the Occupancy Agreement. and (v) at all times 
while any Bonds are Outstanding, (A) any repayments of the Loan (as defined in the Loan Agreement) 
required or permitted to be made by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement, (B) amounts drawn by the 
Trustee from the Reserve Fund or the Repair and Replacement Fund for transfer to the Bond Fund for payment 
of the Bonds, (C) all Net Proceeds including insurance proceeds and condemnation awards as set forth in the 
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Loan Agreement and (D) any Gross Project Revenues received by the Trustee pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement; but such term shall not include payments to the United States, the Authority or the Trustee 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement or the Indenture. 

TI1e term '"Securities Depositories"' shall mean The Depository Trust Company, 55 Water Street. New York, 
New York 10041, Fax (212) 855-7320 and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. such other addresses and/or such other securities depositories as the Authority may 
designate in a Written Request of the Authority delivered to the Trustee. 

The term "Series A Bonds" shall mean the California Community College Financing Authority, Student 
Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River Community College District Project) Series 2002A Tax-Exempt, 
issued and outstanding under the Indenture. 

The term "Series B Bonds'" shall mean the California Community College Financing Authority Student 
Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River Community College District Project) Series 20028 Taxable. issued 
and outstanding under the Indenture. 

The tenn "Short-Term Indebtedness·· means all indebtedness of the Borrower having an original maturity 
less than or equal to one year and not renewable at the option of the Borrower for a term greater than one year 
from the date of original incurrence or issuance. 

The tenn •·snpplemental indenture'" or "indentnre supplemental to the Indenture'" shall mean any 
indenture duly authorized and entered into between the Authority and the Trustee in accordance with the 
provisions of the Indenture. 

The term •·surplus Fund'" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to the Indenture. 

The term "Tax Certificate" means the Tax Certificate executed by the Borrower and the Authority relating to 
the Tax-Exempt Bonds, dated the date of issuance of the Bonds, as the same may be amended or supplemented 
in accordance with its terms, including the exhibits thereto. 

The term "Tax-Exempt" means, with respect to interest on any obligations of a state or local government, 
including the Tax-Exempt Bonds, that such interest is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes whether <r not such interest is includable as an item onax preference or otherwise includable directly 
or indirectly for purposes of calculating tax liabilities, including any alternative minimum tax or environmental 
tax, under the Code. 

The term "Tax-Exempt Bonds" shall mean the Series A Bonds. 

The term "Trnstee" shall mean U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association organized 
under the laws of the United States of America, or its successor as Trustee under the Indenture. 

The terms "Written Consent," "Written Demand." "Written Direction," "Written Election." "Written 
Notice,� "Written Order," "Written Reqnest" and "Written Reqnisition" of the Authority or the Borrower 
shall mean, respectively, a written consent, demand, direction, election. notice, order, request or requisition 
signed on behalf of the Authority by an Authorized Authority Representative or on behalf of the Borrower by 
an Authorized Borrower Representative. 

The term "Yield" means that yield which, when used in computing the present worth of all payments of 
principal and interest (or other payments in the case ofNonpurpose Obligations which require payments in a 
form not characterized as principal and interest) on a Nonpurpose Obligation, all computed as prescribed in 
applicable Regulations and, in the case of variable rate obligations, as lilrther prescribed in the Indenture. 
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THE BONDS 

Payment. Both the principal and :redemption price. including any premium, of the Bonds shall be 
payable by check in lawful money of the United States of America only upon presentation and surrender 
thereof at the Principal Office of the Trustee. Payment o(the interest on any Bond shall be made in like lawful 
money to the person appearing on the bond registration books of the Trustee as the registered owner thereof on 
the applicable Record Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed on the Interest Payment Date by first class 
mail postage prepaid to the registered ooner at its address as it appears on such registration books. except that 
the Trustee wi!L at the request of any registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of 
Bonds. make payments of principal. premium and interest on such Bonds by wire transfer to the account 
within the United States designated by such o"ner to the Trustee in writing at least 1 5  days before the Record 
Date for such payments, any such designation to remain in effect until withdrawn in writing. 

Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. Any Bond may, in acc,ordance with the terms of the Indenture. be 
transferred upon the books of the Trustee, required to be kept pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture. by 
the person in \\hose name it is registered. in person or by its duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such 
Bond for cancellation at the Principal Office of the Trustee, accompanied by a "Titten instrument of transfer in 
a form acceptable to the Trustee, duly executed Bonds may be exchanged at the Principal Office of the 
Trustee for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same Series of other Authorized Denominations. 
Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered for transfer or exchange, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee 
shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the same Series, for a like aggregate principal amount. 

The Trustee shall require the payment by the Bondholder requesting any such transfer or exchange 
of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange, and 
may, in connection with any exchange, coll,ect a charge equal to a customary fee charged by the Trustee for 
such exchange. but any such transfer or exchange shall otherwise be made without charge to the Bondholder 
requesting the same. The cost of printing any Bonds and any services rendered or any expenses incurred by 
the Trustee in connection therewith shall be paid by the Borrower. 

No transfer or exchange shall be required to be made of any Bonds (i) called for redemption, 
(ii) during the ten ( I 0) days next preceding the giving of any notice of redemption. or (iii) during the period of 
time between any Record Date and the next related Interest Payment Date. 

Bond Register. The Authority has appointed the Trustee as registrar and authenticating agent for the 
Bonds. The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept at their respective Principal Office sufficient books for the 
transfer of the Bonds, which shall at all reasonable times upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by the 
Authority and the Borrower. and, upon presentation for such purpose, the Trustee as registrar shall, under such 
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, transfer or cause to be transferred, on said books, Bonds. 

Temporary Bonds. The Bonds may be issued initially in t,�mporary form exchangeable for definitive 
Bonds when ready for delivery. The temporary Bonds may be printed. lithographed or typewritten. shall be of 
such Authorized Denominations as may be determined by the Authority and may contain such referem,e to any 
of the provisions of the Indenture as may be appropriate. Every temporary Bond shall be executed by the 
Authority and be authenticated and registered by the Trustee upon the same conditions and in substantially the 
same manner as the definitive Bonds. If the Authority issues temporary Bonds, it will execute and furnish 
"ithout unreasonable delay definitive Bonds, which may be printed, lithographed or typewritten, and 
thereupon the temporary Bonds may be su1Tendered for cancellation, in exchange therefor at the Principal 
Office of the Trustee, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for such temporary Bonds an 
equal aggregate principal amount of defmitive Bonds of Authorized Denominations. Until so exchanged, the 
temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits under the Indenture as defmitive Bonds authenticated 
and delivered under the Indenture. 
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Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen. If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Authority. at 
the expense of the holder of said Bond, shall execute, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, 
a new Bond of like tenor and principal amount in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but 
only upon surrender to the Trustee of the Bonds so mutilated. Every mutilated Bond so surrendered 1o the 
Trustee shall be canceled by it and delivered to. or upon the written order of the Authority. If any Bond issued 
under the Indenture shall be lost. destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss. destruction or theft may be 
submitted 1o the Trustee. and if such evidence is satisfactory to the Trustee and indemnity for the Authority 
and the Trustee satisfaclory to the Trustee shall be given. the Authority, at the expense of the holder, shall 
execute. and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver. a new Bond of like tenor and number in lieu 
of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen (or if any such Bond shall have matured or shall 
have been called for redemption. instead of issuing a substitute Bond. the Trustee on behalf of the Authority 
may pay the same without surrender thereof upon receipt of indemnity for the Authority and the Trustee 
satisfactory to. the Trustee). The Authority may require payment of a reasonable fee for each new Bond 
delivered under the Indenture and payment of the expenses which may be incwred by the Authority and the 
Trustee. Any Bond delivered under the provisions of the Indenture in lieu of any Bond alleged to be lost. 
destroyed or stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation on the part of the Authority 
whether or not the Bond so alleged to be lost. destroyed or stolen be at any time enforceable by anyone, and 
shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits of the Indenture with all other Bonds secured by 
the Indenture. 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS; APPUCA TJON OF PROCEEDS 

Project Fund. There is created and established with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture a separate 
trust fimd which shall be designated the •·Project Fund." Upon the initial delivery of the Bonds, there shall be 
deposited in the Project Fund the amounts specified in the Indenture. Amounts deposited or held in such 
account shall be applied for the payment of Project Costs. The Trustee will transfer moneys from the Project 
Fund in accordance with a flDlding requisition certified by the Borrower which contains the amount to be paid, 
the entity to which the money shall be paid and the Borrower's representation that the full amount of such 
disbursement is for the payment or reimbursement of Project Costs. Neither the Trustee nor the Authority shall 
be responsible for the application by the Borrower of moneys disbursed to the Borrower in accordance with the 
Indenture. 

Cost of Issuance Fund. There is created and established with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture a 
separate trust fund which shall be designated the '"Cost of Issuance Fund," which shall be applied only as 
provided in the Indenture. Upon the initial delivery of the Bonds, there shall be deposited in the Cost of 
Issuance FIDtd the amounts specified in the Indenture. The amount in the Cost of Issuance Fund shall be used 
to pay Issuance Costs. 

Before each payment is made from the Cost of Issuance Fund by the Trustee, there shall be filed 
with the Trustee a Written Requisition of the Borrower. accompanied by copies of appropriate invoices or 
other evidence of amounts due, and stating with respect to each payment to be made: (i) the requisition 
number; (ii) the name and address of the person to whom payment is due (which may be the Borrower if the 
payment is to reimburse the Borrower for amounts previously paid); (iii) the purpose for which the payment is 
to be made: (iv)the amount to be paid; (v) that each obligation mentioned therein has been properly incwTed 
and is a proper charge against the Cost oflssuance Fund; and (vi) that none of the items for which payment is 
requested has been previously paid or reimbursed from the Cost of Issuance Fund. The Trustee is authorized 
to act thereon without farther inquiry. 

Any amounts remaining in the Cost of Issuance Fund on the date six ( 6) months after the Closing 
Date and not expected by the Borrower and the Authority (as set forth in a Certificate of the Borrower) to be 
required to pay other costs payable from such fund shall be transferTed by the Trustee to the BorTower and the 
Trustee shall close the Cost oflssuance Fund. 
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No amount in any other fund or account created by the In.ieoture shaU be expended for Issuance 
Costs. 
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REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Selection of Bonds for Redemption. In instances other than a mandatory sinking fond redemption 
effected pursuant to the Indenture. Bonds to be redeemed under the Indenture shall be. in the case of an 
optional redemption effected pursuant to the Indenture, selected by the Borrower and if not so selected or in 
the instance of any redemption undertaken hereunder by reason other than an optional redemption effected 
pursuant to the Indenture. Bonds will be redeemed in inverse order of maturity. If less than all the Bonds of a 
maturity are to be redeemed the Trustee shall select the Bonds within such maturity to be redeemed by lot. in 
whole multiples of Authorized Denominations. In no event shall Bonds be redeemed in amounts other than 
whole multiples of minimum Authorized Denominations. For pu1poses of a redemption pursuant to the 
Indenture. the Trustee may round down to the nearest Authorized Denomination. For purposes of redeeming 
Bonds in denominations greater than minimum Authorized Denominations. the Trustee shall assign to such 
Bonds a distinctive number for each such principal amount and, in selecting Bonds for redemption by lot. shall 
treat such amow1ts as separate Bonds. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Authority and the Bo1wwer in 
writing of the numbers of the Bonds selected for redemption. 

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be given by the Trustee for. to. and on behalf of 
the Authority, by first class mail. not less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, or. in the case of 
an extraordinary redemption pursuant to the Indenture, not less than five ( 5) days before the redemption date, 
to (i) the Securities Depositories and Information Services and (ii) the registered owner of each Bond called for 
redemption. at its address as it appears on the registration books. but neither failure to mail such notice nor any 
defect in any notice so mailed shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of any of the 
Bonds with respect to which such failure or defect shall have occurred. Each notice of redemption shall state 
the redemption date, the place of redemption, the principal amount and. if less than all. the distinctive numbers 
of the Bonds to be redeemed. and shall also state that the interest on the Bonds in such notice designated for 
redemption ( other than the unredeemed portions, if any, thereof) shall cease to accrue from and after such 
redemption date and that on said date there will become due and payable on each of said Bonds the principal 
amount thereof to be redeemed. interest accrued thereon to the redemption date and the premium, if any, 
thereon (such premium to be specified). Neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility for 
any defect in the CUSIP number that appears on any Bond or in any redemption notice with respect thereto, 
and any such redemption notice may contain a statement to the effect that CUSIP numbers have been assigned 
by an independent service for convenience of reference and that neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall be 
liable for any inaccuracy in such numbers. 

Partial Redemption of Bonds. Any Bond may be redeemed in whole or in part, but no part of any 
Bond shall be redeemed in an amount less than an Authorized Denomination, and Bonds remaining after any 
redemption shall, to the extent practicable, be in Authorized Denominations. Upon surrender of any Bond 
redeemed in part only, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the 
registered o�vner thereof, without charge to the 0V1ner thereof, a new Bond oflike Series and maturity and of 
Authorized Denominations designated by such owner equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed 
portion of the Bond surrendered. 

Effect of Redemption Notice of redemption having been duly given as aforesaid, and moneys for 
payment of the redemption price being held by the Trustee, the Bonds so called for redemption shall, on the 
redemption date designated in sucll notice, become due and payable at the redemption price specified in such 
notice, interest on the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, said Bonds shall cease to be 
entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the Indenture, and the holders of said Bonds shall have no rights 
in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption price thereof. 
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REVENUES 

Bond Fund. There is created and established \\itb the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture a separate 
trust fund which shall be designated the "Bond Fund.'. The Bond Fund shall be applied only as provided in the 
Indenture. 

The Trustee shall deposit in the Bond Fund, from time to time. upon receipt thereof, all Revenues. 
including insurance proceeds and condemnation awards used to prepay the Loan and other Loan payments or 
prepayments received from or for the account of the Borrower and all amonnts received under the Occupancy 
Agreement. The Trustee shall establish a separate subaccount in the Bond Fund for each of the following 
categories of payment into the Bond Fund: (i) payments of Revmues into the Bond Fund except for the 
payments described in clauses (ii) and (iii) of this sentence (which account shall be called the "Revenues 
Acconnt"), (ii) prepayment of the Loan pursuant to the Indenture and the Loan Agreement (which account 
shall be called the "Redemption Account"), and (iii) Available A.mounts received by the Trustee (which 
acconnt shall be called the ·· Available Amounts Account"). 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, moneys in 1he Bond Fund shall be used solely for the 
payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due, 
whether at maturity or upon redemption or acceleration or otherwise. In making payments of principal ot: 
premium. if any, and interest on the Bonds, the Trustee shall, in the following order of priority (a) use all other 
Available Amounts held in the Bond Fund. and (b) then use any other Revenues received by the Trustee. 

On each date on which principal of or interest or premium on the Bonds is due and payable, in the 
event that there are insufficient funds on any date in the Bond Fund to pay principal of or interest or any 
premium on the Bonds then due and payable, the Trustee shall draw on (i) the Surplus Fund to the extent of 
any funds on deposit therein (in accordance with the Indenture), (ii) the Repair and Replacement Fund to the 
extent of any funds on deposit therein (in accordance with the Indenture), and (iii) the Reserve Fund to the 
extent of any funds on deposit therein (in accordance with the Indenture), in each case only in an amount 
necessary to cure the deficiency. 

Repair and Replacement Fund. The Trustee shall initially deposit in the Repair and Replacement 
Fund the amount transferred to the Trustee for deposit therein as provided by the Occupancy Agreement. 
Amounts shall be deposited into the Repair and Replacement F1md as provided in the Loan Agreement. 
Moneys in the Repair and Replacement F1md shall be expended and used only for capital costs. including 
structural repairs to and reroofing of the Prc!iect, repair and replacement of major mechanical components of 
the project, the repair or replacement of equipment, furniture and fixtures used in the Project and any other 
capital costs and extraordinary maintenance 1,xpenses of the Project, for the purpose of maintaining the Project, 
upon receipt by the Trustee of a Written Requisition of the Borrower stating the specific purpose for which 
such moneys are to be expended and that such expenditure is in accordance with the Indentnre. 

Whenever and to the extent that moneys in the Bond Fund and the Surplus Fund are insuffitient for 
the purpose of paying principal ot: redemption price or interest on the Bonds for payment of such amounts as 
the case may be. whether at the stated payment date, by redemption of Bonds or upon acceleration, money on 
deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall be transferred by the Trustee for such purposes to the Bond 
Fund on such date without further authorization or direction. 

Reserve Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Reserve Fund the amount set forth in the Indenture. 
Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower is thereafter obligated to transfer to the Trustee for deposit by 
the Trustee in the Reserve Fund an amount. if necessary. to restore the Reserve Fnnd to the Reserve Fund 
Requirement. The Trustee shall also deposit into the Reserve Fund any other amounts deposited with the 
Trnstee by the Borrower with written instructions that they be deposited in the Reserve Fund, and amounts 
required to be deposited therein under the Indenture. 
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On each Interest Payment Date, if any amounts remain on deposit in the Bond Fund following 
payment on the Bonds on such date, the amounts shall be transferred by the Trustee from the Bond Fund to the 
Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to bring the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund up to the Reserve 
Fund Requirement. No such transfer shall exceed the amounts then in the Bond Fund and not otherwise 
needed to pay Debt Service on the Bonds on such date. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture. all investment earnings on amounts in the 
Reserve Fund shall be retained in the Resetve Fund. to be used for purposes of the Reserve Fund. 

Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Fund shall be transferred pursuant to the Indenture by the Trustee to 
the Bond Fund on each date on which principal or interest on the Bonds is payable. without further 
authorization or direction. whenever and to the extent that moneys in the Bond Fund ( after draws have been 
made on the funds on deposit in the Surplus Fund and the Repair and Replacement Fund and such amounts 
have been credited to the Bond Fund) on any Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date are insufficient 
for the purpose of paying principal of, redemption price or interest on the Bonds, as the case may be, on such 
Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date. The Trustee shall provide the Borrower and the Authority 
with notice of any such transfer pursuant to the Indenture. 

If on the Business Day prior to each Interest Payment Date, the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund 
shall exceed the Reserve Fund Requirement, such excess shall be transferred to the Bond Fund. 

Investment of Moneys. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any moneys in any of the 
funds and accounts to be established by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture shall be invested by the Trustee 
in Investment Securities selected and directed in writing by the Borrower, with respect to which payments of 
principal thereof and interest thereon are scheduled or otherwise payable not later than one day prior to the 
date on which it is estimated that such moneys will be required by the Trustee. In the absence of such 
directions, the Trustee shall invest such moneys in Investment Securities described in clauses (a) or (b) of the 
definition thereof and any such investments shall mature on a date on which it is estimated that such moneys 
will be required by the Trustee. Available Amounts held in the Bond Fund shall be invested only in 
Investment Securities described in clause (a) of the definition thereof maturing or subject to payment upon 
demand of the holder thereof within 30 days after the acquisition of any such investment and in any event not 
later than the date on which it is estimated that such moneys will be required by the Trustee. Neither the 
Trustee nor the Authority shall have any liability or responsibility for any loss resulting from any investment 
made in accordance with the Indenture. 

Except as otherwise provided in the next sentence, all investments of amounts deposited in any fund 
or account created by or pursuant to the Indenture, or otherwise containing Gross Proceeds of the Bonds shall 
be acquired, disposed Ii", and valued (as of the date that valuation is required by the Indenture or the Code) at 
Fair Market Value. The Borrower shall ensure that investments in funds or accounts (or portions thereof) that 
are subject to a yield restriction under applicable provisions of the Code and (unless valuation is undertaken at 
least annually) investments in the Reserve Fund shall be valued at their present value (within the meaning of 
the Code) for purposes of calculating arbitrage rebate amounts. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any interest, earnings or profit on such investment of 
moneys in any fund or account shall be credited to the Gross Project Revenue Fund and any loss on such 
investment of moneys shall be charged to the respective funds or accounts from which such investments are 
made, except as otherwise provided in the Indenture. The Trustee may sell or present for redemption any 
obligations so purchased whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any payment, and 
the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from such sale or redemption. 

The Trustee may make any and all investments permitted under the Indenture through its own bond 
deparbnent or any affiliate and may pay said bond department reasonable, customary fees for placing such 
investments. The Trustee and its affiliates may act as principal, agent, sponsor, advisor or depository with 
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respect to Investment Securities under the Indenture. The Trustee may connningle moneys on deposit in the 
funds and accounts established under the Indenture for purposes of investment. Any Investment Se,;auities that 
are registrable securities shall be registered in the name of the Trustee. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture. the Authority covenants that all investments of 
amounts deposited in any fund or account created by or pursuant to the Indenture, or otherwise containing 
gross proceeds of the Bonds (within the meaning of the Code) shall be acquired, disposed of, and valued (as of 
the date that valuation is required by the Indenture or the Code) at Fair Market Value. 

Investments in funds or accounts (or portions thereof) that are sul!ject to a yield restriction under 
applicable provisions of the Code shall be valued at their present value (within the meaning of the Code). 

Assignment to Trustee; Enforcemc,nt ofObigations. The Authority transfers, assigns and sets over 
to the Trustee. for the benefit of the Bondhollders. and the Trustee accepts. all of the Revenues. all moneys, at 
any time held in the Bond Fund and the Reserve Fund established ·wider the Indenture and any and all rights 
and privileges the Authority has under the Loan Agreement (acept for the Authority's right under the Loan 
Agreement, and maintenance of the exclusion from gross income fer federal tax purposes of interest on the 
Bonds): and any Revenues or other amounts payable to the Trustee under the Indenture or under the Loan 
Agreement which are collected or received by the Authority shall be deemed to be held. and to have been 
collected or received, by the Authority as the agent of the Trustee, and shall forthwith be paid by the Authority 
to the Trustee. The Trustee also shall be entitled to take all steps, actions and proceedings reasonably 
necessary in its judgment: ( 1 )  to enforce the terms, covenants and conditions of. and preserve and protect the 
priority of its interest in and under. the Loan Agreement and the Deed of Trust, and (2) to request compliance 
with all covenants, agreements and conditions on the part of the Authority contained in the Indenture with 
respect to the Revenues. 

Amounts Remaining in the Bond I�und. When there are no longer any Bonds outstanding, and all 
fees. charges and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agents have been paid or provided for. all fees and 
expenses of the Authority rellting to the Project and the Indenture have been paid or provided for, all other 
amounts payable under the Indenture and under the Loan Agreement have been paid. and the Indenture has 
been discharged and satisfied, the Trustee shall pay to the Borrower ;my moneys remaining in the Bond Fund. 

COVENANTS OF THE AUTI-IORITY 

Payment of Principal and Interest. The Authority shall punctually pay, but only out of Revenues as 
in the Indenture provided, the principal and the interest (and premiun1, if any) to become due in respect of 
every Bond issued under the Indenture at the times and places and in the manner provided in the Indenture and 
in the Bonds, according to the true intent and meaning thereof. When and as paid in foll. all Bonds shall be 
delivered to the Trustee and shall forthwith be destroyed. 

Paying Agents. The Trustee, with notice to the Authority, may appoint and at all times have one or 
more paying agents in such place or places as the either may designate, for the payment of the principal of. and 
the interest (and premium. if any) on, any Seiies of the Bonds. It shall be the duty of the Trustee to make such 
arrangements with any such paying agent as may be necessary and feasible to assure, to the extent of the 
moneys held by the Trustee for such pa)ment, the availability of funds for the prompt payment of the principal 
of and interest and premiwn, if any, on the Bonds presented at either place of payment. The paying agent 
initially appointed under the Indenture is the Trustee. 

Preservation of Revennes; Amendment of Documents. The Authority shall not take any action to 
interfere with or impair the pledge and assignment under the Indenture of Revenues and the assignment to the 
Trustee of rights of the Authority under the Loan Agreement or the Deed of Trust, or the Trustee•s 
enforcement of any rights under the Indenture or thereunder, shall not take any action to impair the validity or 
enforceability of the Loan Agreement or the Deed of Trust. and shall not waive any of its rights under or any 

C-17 



other provision of or pennit any amendment of the Loan Agreement or the Deed of Trust, without the prior 
written consent of the Trustee, provided that such consent of the Trustee shall not be required if the Trustee 
shall have received ID1 opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such amendment (a) is required to preseive 
the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes or compliance by the 
Bonds or the Project with the laws of the State of California; or (b) \\-ill not adversely affect the interests of the 
Bondholders. 

The Trustee may give such written consent, and may itself take any such action or consent to a waiver 
of any provision of or an amendment or modification to or replacement of the Loan Agreement, the Deed of 
Trust or any other document, instrument or agreement relating to the security for the Bonds, only if (i) such 
action or such waiver, amendment, modification or replacement (a) is authorized or required by the tenns of 
the Indenture, the Loan Agreement or the Deed of Trust or (b) will not, based on an Opinion of Counsel 
furnished to the Trustee, materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Bonds or result in any 
impainnent of the security by the Indenture given for the payment of the Bonds. or (c) has first been approved 
by the written COll!lent of the holders of at least sixty percent (60%) in principal amount of the Bonds then 
outstanding: (ii) any such action or such waiver. amendment, modification or replacement will not have the 
effect of extending the time for payment or reducing the amount due and payable: and (iii) the Trustee shall 
have first obtained ID1 opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such action or such waiver, amendment, 
modification or replacement will not adversely affect the exclusion ofinterest on the Bonds from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes or confonnance of the Bonds and the Project with the laws of the State of 
California relating to the Bonds. 

Compliance with Indenture. The Authority shall not issue, or pennit to be issued. any Bonds 
secured or payable in any manner out of Revenues in any manner other than in accordance with the provisions 
of the Indenture; it being understood that the Authority reserves the right to issue obligations payable from and 
secured by sources other than the Revenues and the assets assigned in the Indenture. The Authority shall not 
suffer or permit any default to occur under the Indenture. but shall faithfully obseive and perform all the 
covenants, conditions and requirements of the Indenture. So long as any Bonds are outstanding. the Authority 
shall not create or suffoer to be created any pledge, lien or charge of any type whatsoever upon all or any part of 
the Revenues, other than the lien of the Indenture. 

No Arbitrage. The Authority shall not take, nor pennit nor suffoer to be taken by the Trustee or 
otherwise, any action with respect to the gross proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds which if such action had 
been reasonably expected to have been taken. or had been deliberately and intentionally taken. on the date of 
the issuance of the Bonds would have caused the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be �arbitrage bonds" within the 
meaning of the Code and Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Rebate of Excess Investment Earnings to United States. The Authority covenants with respect to 
the Tax-Exempt Bonds to cause the Borrower to retain the Rebate Analyst to calculate excess investment 
earnings to the extent required by the Code and to cause payment of an amount equal to excess investment 
earnings to the United States in accordance with the Regulations. The Borrower has agreed in the Loan 
Agreement to make or cause to be made such excess investment earnings calculations which are required 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement to be rebated to the United States. Such amounts shall be deposited by the 
Trustee in an account to be called the Rebate Account which the Trustee shall establish for such purpose, upon 
receipt from the Bmwwer. 

Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The Authority shall take no action nor pennit nor suffer any action 
to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be '"federally guaranteed'' 
within the meaning of the Code. 
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Immunities and Limitations of Responsibility of Authority. The Authority shall be entitled to the 
advice of counsel (who, except as otherwise provided, may be counsel for any Bondholder), and the Authority 
shall be wholly protected as to action taken or omitted in good faith in reliance on such advice. The Authority 
may rely conclusively on any communication or other document furnished to it under the Indenture and 
reasonably believed by it to be genuine. Toe Authority shall not be liable for any action (a) taken by it in good 
faith and reasonably believed by it to be within its discretion or powers under the Indenture. or (b) in good 
faith omitted to be taken by it because such action was reasonably believed to be beyond its discretion or 
powers under the Indenture. or (c) taken by it pursuant to any direction or instruction by which it is governed 
under the Indenture. or ( d) omitted to be taken by it by reason of the lack of any direction or instruction 
required by the Indenture for such action; nor shall it be responsible for the consequences of any error of 
judgment reasonably made by it. The Authority shall in no event be liable for the application or 
misapplication of fonds or for other acts or defaults by any person. except its own officers and employees. 
When any payment or consent or other action by it is called for by the Indenture, it may defer such action 
pending receipt of such evidence (if any) as it may require in support thereof.. The Authority shall not be 
required to take any remedial action (other than the giving of notice) unless indemnity in a form acceptable to 
the Authority is furnished for any expense or liability to be incurred in connection v.ith such remedial action, 
other than liability for failure to meet the standards set forth in the Indenture. The Authority shall be entitled, 
following written notice to the Borrower. to reimbursement from the Borrower for its expenses reasonably 
incurred or advances reasonably made. with interest at the rate of interest on the Bonds, in the exercise of its 
rights or the performance of its obligations under the Indenture, to the extent that it acts without previously 
obtaining indemnity. No permissive right or power to act which the Authority may have shall be construed as 
a requirement to act; and no delay in the exercise of a right or power shall affect its subsequent exercise of the 
right or power. 

Maintenance of TH Ellemptioo. The Authority shall take all actions necessary to assure the 
exclusion of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds from the gross income of the Owners of the Tax-Exempt 
Bonds to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross income under the Code as in 
effect on the Closing Date. 

DEFAULT 

,Events of Default; Acceleration; Waiver of Default. Each of the following events shall constitute 
an ''Event of Default" under the Indenture: (i) failure to pay the principal of or premium (if any) on any Bond 
when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as therein e,qressed, by proceedings 
for redemption, by declaration or otherwise; (ii) failure to pay any installment of interest on any Bond when 
such interest installment shall become due and payable; (iii) failure by the Authority to perform or observe any 
other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the Indenture or in the Bonds, and the 
continuation of such failure for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof, specifying such default 
and requiring the same to be remedied, shall have been given to the Authority and the Borrower by the Trustee, 
or to the Authority, the Borrower and the Trustee by the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding; and (iv) if an "Event of Default" under the Loan 
Agreement has occurred and is continuing. 

No default specified in (iii) above shall constitute an Event of Default unless the Authority and the 
Borrower shall have failed to correct such default within the applicable period; provided, however, that if the 
default shall be such that it cannot be corrected within such period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if 
corrective action is instituted by the Authority or the Borrower within the applicable period and diligently 
pursued until the default is corrected (provided that a default by reason of nonpayment of Trustee's fees and 
expenses may only be waived by the Trustee). With regard to any alleged default concerning which notice is 
given to the Borrower under the provisions of (iii) above, the Authority grants the Borrower full control for the 
account of the Authority to perform any covenant or obligation the non-performance of which is alleged in said 
notice to constitute a default in the name and stead of the Authority with full power to do any and all things 
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and acts to the same extent that the Authority could do and perf,orm any such things and acts and with power of 
substitution 

During the continuance of an Event of Default described in (i) or (ii) above. unless the principal of all 
the Bonds shall have already become due and payable, the Trustee may, and. upon the written request of the 
owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding, the Trustee shall. by 
notice in writing to the Authority and the Borrower. declare the principal of all the Bonds then outstanding. 
and the interest accrued thereon. to be due and payable immediately. and upon any such declaration the same 
shall become and shall be immediately due and payable. Upon any such declaration of acceleration, the 
Trustee shall fix a date for payment of the Bonds, which date shall be as soon as practicable after such 
declaration 

The preceding paragraph, however, is subje(rt to the condition that if. at any time after the principal of 
the Bonds shall have been so declared due and payable, and before any judgment or decree for the payment of 
the moneys due shall have been obtained or entered as in the Indenture provided. there shall have been 
deposited with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay all the principal of the Bonds matured or required to be 
redeemed prior to such declaration and all matured installments of interest (if any) upon all the Bonds. \lllith 
interest on such overdue installments of principal, and the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee. its 
agents and counsel. and any and all other defaults actually known to a Responsible Officer of the Trustee 
( other than in the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds due and payable solely by reason of such 
declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the reasonable satisfaction of the Trustee or provision 
deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then, and in every such case. the holders 
of at least sixty percent in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, by written notice to the 
Authority and to the Trustee and with indemnification satisfactory to the Trustee, may, on behalf of the holders 
of all the Bonds. rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences and waive such default; but no such 
rescission, annulment or waiver shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default, or shall impair or 
exhaust any right or power consequent thereon. 

lqstitption of Leg@l Proceedings by Trustee. If one or more of the Events of Default shall occur and 
be continuing. the Trustee in its discretion may. and upon the written request of the holders of a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding and, in the case of an Event of Default described (iii) of the 
first paragraph of the preceding section, upon being indemnified to its satisfaction therefor the Trustee shalL 
proceed to protect or enforce its rights or the rights of the holders of Bonds under the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement by a suit in equity or action at law, either for the specific performance of any covenant or 
agreement contained in the Indenture or therein, or in aid of the execution of any power in the Indenture or 
therein granted. or by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding for the enforcement of any other legal or 
equitable remedy as the Trustee shall deem most effectual in support of any of its rights or duties under the 
Indenture: provided that any such request from the Bondholders shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or 
with the Indenture. expose the Trustee to personal liability or be unduly prejudicial to Bondholders not joining 
therein. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of the Indenture. the Deed of Trust, the Trustee 
shall not be required to initiate foreclosure proceedings with respect to the Project, and shall not otherwise be 
required to acquire possession of, or take other action with respect to the Project which could cause it to be 
considered an "owner" or .. operator" as described in the Loan Agreement. unless the requirements of the Loan 
Agreement are satisfied. The Trustee shall be entitled. as a matter of right and the Borrower agrees, to the 
appointment of a receiver for the property encumbered by the Deed of Trust or the Revenues. 
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Application of Moneys Collected by Trustee. Any moneys held in the funds and accounts under the 
Indenture and any money collected by the Trustee resulting from the legal proceedings referred to in the 
preceding section shall be applied in the order following, at the date or dates fixed by the Trustee and, in the 
case of distribution of such moneys on acco,mt of principal (or premium, if any) or interest, upon presentation 
of the Bonds and stamping thereon the payment, if only partially paid, and upon surrender thereof. if fully 
paid: 

First: For payment of all amounts due to the Trustee under the Indenture. 

Second· For deposit in the Bond Fund to be applied to payment of the principal of all Bonds 
then due and unpaid and the premium, if any. and interest thereon; ratably to the persons entitled thereto 
without discrimination or preference: except that no payment of principal premium or interest shall be made 
with respect to. any Bonds registered in the name of the Authority or the Borrower. or actually known by the 
Trustee to be registered in the name of any member, director or guarantor of the Borrower or any nominee of 
the Authority, the Borrower or any director or guarantor of the Borrower. until all amounts due on all Bonds 
not so registered have been paid (provided that the Trustee shall have no duty to investigate whether the Bonds 
are registered in the name of any member, director or guarantor of the Borrower). 

Third: For payment of all other amounts due to any person under the Indenture or w1der the 
Loan Agreement, and. thereafter. to the Borrower. 

Effect of Delay or Omission to Pursue Remedy. No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any 
holder of Bonds to exercise any right or pow�r arising from any default shall impair any such right or power or 
shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and every power and remedy 
given by the Indenture to the Trustee or to lhe holders of Bonds may be exercised from time to time and as 
often as shall be deemed expedient. In case the Trustee shall have proceeded to enforce any right wider the 
Indenture, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned because of waiver or for any other 
reason. or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case the Authority, the 
Trustee and the holders of the Bonds. severally and respectively, shall be restored to their former positions and 
rights under the Indenture in respect to the trust estate; and all remedies, rights and powers of the Authority, 
the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds shall continue as though no such proceedings had been taken. 

Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred in the Indenture upon or reserved to the Trustee or to 
any holder of the Bonds is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 1mder the Indenture or existing at law or in 
equity. 

Covenant to Pay Bonds in Event of Default. The Authority covenants that, upon the happening of 
any Event of Default. the Authority will pay to the Trustee upon demand, but only out of Revenues, for the 
benefit of the holders of the Bonds. the whole amount then due and payable thereon (by declaration or 
otherwise) for interest or for principal and premium, or both, as the case may be, and all other sums which may 
be due under the Indenture or secured by the Indenture, including reasonable compensation to the Trustee, its 
agents and counsel, and any expenses or liabilities incurred by the Trustee under the Indenture. In case the 
Authority shall fail to pay the same forthwith upon such demand, the Trustee, in its own name and as trustee of 
an express trust, and upon being indemnified to its satisfaction shall be entitled to institute proceedings at law 
or in equity in any court of competent jurisdiction to recover judgment for the whole amount due and unpaid, 
together with costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, subject, however, to the condition that such judgment. if 
any, shall be limited to. and payable solely out of, Revenues and any other assets pledged, transferred or 
assigned to the Trustee under the Indenture as in the Indenture provided and not otherwise. The Trustee shall 
be entitled to recover such judgment as aforesaid. either before or after or during the pendency of any 
pro ceedings for the enforcement of the Indenture, and the right of the Trustee to recover such judgment shall 
not be affected by the exercise of any other right, power or remedy for the enforcement of the provisions of tile 
Indenture. 
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Trustee Appointed Agent for Bondholders. The Trustee is appointed the agent of the holders of all 
Bonds outstanding under the Indenture for the purpose of filing any claims relating to the Bonds. 

Power of Tnstee to Control Proceedings. In the event that the Trustee. upon the happening of an 
Event of Default. shall have taken any action, by judicial proceedings or otherwise. pursuant to its duties under 
the Indenture. whether upon its own discretion or upon the written request of holders of a majority in principal 
amount of the Bonds then outstanding or. in the case of an Event of Default described in the Indenture. it shall 
have full power, in the exercise of its discretion for the best interests of the holders of the Bonds, with respect 
to the continuance. discontinuance. withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action: 
provided. however. that the Trustee shall not. unless there no longer continues an Event of Default Wider the 
Indenture. discontinue, withdraw. compromise or settle, or otherwise dispose of any litigation pending at law 
or in equity, if at the time there has been filed with it a written request signed by the holders of at least a 
majority in principal amount of the Bonds outstanding under the Indenture opposing such discontinuance. 
withdrawal, compromise. settlement or other disposal of such litigation. 

Limitatiop on Bondholders' Right to Sue. No holder of any Bond issued Wider the Indenture shall 
have the right to institute any suit. action or proceeding at law or in 11quity, for any remedy under or upon the 
Indenture. unless (a) such holder shall have previously given to the Trustee \\-Titten notice of the occurrence of 
an Event of Default under the Indenture; (b) the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of 
all the Bonds then outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers granted 
or to institute such action. suit or proceeding in its own name� (c) said holders shall have tendered to the 
Trustee indemnity satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with 
such request; and (d) the Trustee shall have refused or omitted to comply with such request for a period of 
thirty (30) days after such written request shall have been received by. and said tender of indemnity shall have 
been made to, the Trustee. 

Such notification, request. tender of indemnity and refusal or omission are declared. in every case, to 
be conditions precedent to the exercise by any holder of Bonds of any remedy under the Indenture; it being 
understood and intended that no one or more holders of Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatever by 
its or their action to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture, and 
that all proceedings at law or in equity to enforce any provision of the Indenture shall be instituted. had and 
maintained in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal benefit of all holders of the outstanding 
Bonds. 

The right of any holder of any Bond to receive payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and 
interest on such Bond out of Revenues. as in the Indenture and therein provided. on and after the respective 
due dates expressed in such Bond. or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such 
respective dates, shall not be impaired or affected without the consent of such holder, notwithstanding the 
foregoing provisions of the Indenture or any other provision of the Indenture. 

Limitatiop of Liability to Revenues. Notwithstanding anything in the Indentlll'C contained, the 
Authority shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from the proceeds of taxes collected by the 
Authority or any of its Members, by the State of California or by any political subdivision thereof or from any 
source of income of any of the foregoing other than the Revenues. for any of the purposes mentioned in the 
Indenture, whether for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds or for any other purpose of the 
Indenture. The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority. and are payable from and secured by the 
Revenues only. 
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THE TRUSTEE AND AGENTS 

Duties. Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee. The Trustee shall perform such duties and only such 
duties as are specifically set forth in the Indernture and no additional covenants or duties of the Trustee shall be 
implied in the Indenture. the Loan Agreement or otherwise. The Trustee shall. during the existence of any 
Event of Default (which has not been cured), exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by the 
Indenture. and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as reasonable persons familiar with such 
matters would exercise or use under similar circumstances in the conduct of their own affairs. 

No provision of the Indenture shall be construed to relieve the Trustee from liability for its own willful 
misconduct. its own negligent action or its own negligent failure to act. except that: (i) the duties and 
obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the express provisions of the Indenture, the Trustee 
shall not be liable except for the performance of such duties and obligations as are specifically set forth in the 
Indenture, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into the Indenture against the Trustee; and in 
the absence of bad faith on die part of the Trustee, the Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the 
statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein. upon any certificate or opinion furnished to 
the Trustee conforming to the procedural requirements of the Indenture; but in the case of any such certificate 
or opinion which by any provision of the Indenture is specifically required to be furnished to the Trustee, the 
Trustee shall be under a duty to examine the same to determine whether or not it conforms to the procedural 
requirements of the Indenture: (ii) at all times. regardless of whether or not any Event of Default shall exist, 
( I )  the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible Officer or 
officers or by any agent or attorney of the Trustee appointed with due care unless (except as otherwise 
provided in the Indenture) the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts; and (2) the Trustee 
shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with 
the direction of the Authority, accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel as provided in the Indenture or in 
accordance with the directions of the holders of not less than a �jority, or such other percentage as may be 
required under the Indenture, in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding relating to the 
time. method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising 
any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) the Trustee shall not be required to take 
notice or be deemed to have notice of any default under the Indenture or under the Loan Agreement except 
defaults under the Indenture, unless a Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall be specifically notified in 
writing of such default by the Autholity or the owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
principal amount of all Bonds then outstanding; (iv) before taking any action under the Indenture at the request 
or direction of the Bondholders or the Trustee may require that a satisfactory indemnity bond be furnished by 
the Bondholders, for the reimbursemeut of all expenses to which it may be put and to protect it against all 
liability. except liability which is adjudicated to have resulted front its negligence or willful misconduct in 
connection with any action so taken; provided, however. the Trustee shall make payments of the principal and 
purchase price of and redemption premium, 1if any. and interest on the Bonds when due and payable, all as set 
forth in the Indenture, and shall efiect any redemption of Bonds or acceleration of Bonds, all as set fonb in the 
Indenture, notwithstanding any requirement by the Trustee for the provision of an indemnity bond as set forth 
above: (v) upon any applicatiou or request by the Authority to the Trustee to take any action under any 
provision of the Indenture, the Authority shall fomish to the Trustee a Certificate of the Authority stating that 
all conditions precedent. if any, provided for in the Indenture relating to the proposed action have been 
complied with, and an Opinion of Counsel stating that in the opinion of such Counsel all such conditions 
precedent. if any, have been complied with, except that in the case of any such application or request as to 
which the furnishing of such documents is specifically required by any provision of the Indenture relating to 
such particular application or request, no additional certificate or opinion need be furnished; (vi) the Trustee 
may execute any of the trusts or powers under the Indenture or perfonn any duties under the Indenture or under 
the Loan Agreement either directly or through agents or attorneys and the Trustee shall not be responsible for 
any negligence or misconduct on the part of any agent or attorney appointed with due care by it under the 
Indenture; (vii) neither the Authority nor the Borrower shall be deemed to be agents of the Trustee for any 
purpose, and the Trustee shall not be liable for any noncompliance of any of them in connection with their 
respective duties under the Indenture or in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Indenture; 
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(viii) the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon telephonic notice for all purposes whatsoever so long as the 
Trustee reasonably believes such telephonic notice has been given by a person authorized to give such notice; 
(ix) the inununities extended to the Trustee also extend to its directors, officers, employees and agents: (x) 
under no circwnstances shall the Trustee be liable in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by 
the Bonds. it being the sole obligation of the Trustee to administer. for the benefit of the Bondholders. the 
various funds and accounts established under the Indenture; and (xi) no permissive power. right or remedy 
conferred upon the Trustee under the Indenture shall be construed to impose a duty to exercise such power. 
right or remedy. 

None of the provisions contained in the Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its <Mn 
funds or otherwise incur individual financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or in the exercise 
of any of its rights or powers. Whether or not therein expressly so provided. every provision of the Indenture, 
the Loan Agreement, the Deed of Trust or any other document relating to the conduct. powers or duties ot: or 
affecting the liability of� or affording protection to. the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of the 
Indenture. 

Bf1ht of Trustee to Rely Upon Documents. Etc. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture: (i) 
the Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any written resolution. 
certificate. statement. instnunent. opinion. report. notice, request. consent. order. bond or other paper or 
document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties; (ii) 
in order to be binding upon the Trustee, any consent, demand. direction, election. notice. order or request of 
the Authority mentioned in the Indenture shall be sufficiently evidenced by a Written Consent, Written 
Demand, Written Direction, Written Election, Written Notice, Written Order or Written Request of the 
Authority. and any resolution of the Authority may be evidenced to the Trustee by a Certified Resolution; (iii) 
the Trustee may consult with counsel (who may be counsel for the Authority. counsel for the Trustee or Bond 
Counsel) and the opinion of such" counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of 
any action taken or suffered by it under the Indenture in good faith and in accordance with the opinion of such 
counsel; (iv) whenever in the administration of the trusts of the Indenture the Trustee shall deem it necessary 
or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any action under the Indenture, 
such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be in the Indenture specifically prescribed) may. in the 
absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be deemed to be conclusively proved and 
established by a Certificate of the Authority; and such Certificate of the Authority shall, in the absence of 
negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee. be fill) warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered 
by it under the provisions of the Indenture upon the faith thereof, and (v) the Trustee shall not be bound to 
make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, certificate. statement, instrument, 
opinion. report, notice, request. direction. consent, order, bond, debenture or other paper or document, but the 
Trustee, in its discretion, may make such further inquiry or investigation into such facts or matters as it may 
see fit and. if the Trustee shall determine to make such further inquiry or investigation. it shall be entitled to 
examine the books, records and premises of the Agency and the Borrower personally or by agent or attorney. 

Intervention by Trustee. The Trustee may intervene on behalf of the Bondholders in any judicial 
proceeding to which the Authority is a party and which. in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel, has a 
substantial bearing on the interests of owners of the Bonds and. subject to the provisions of the Indentme, shall 
do so if requested in writing by the O\.\ners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds then 
outstanding. 

Monm Received by Trustee to be Held in Trust. All moneys received by the Trustee shall. until 
used or applied as in the Indenture provided, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received, but 
need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law or as otherwise provided in the 
Indenture. The Trustee shall be under no liability for interest on any moneys received by it under the Indenture 
except such as it may agree with the Authority to pay thereon. Any moneys held by the Trustee may be 
deposited by it in its banking department and invested in Investment Securities. 



Qualifications of Trustee. lbere shall at all times be a trustee under the Indenture which shall be a 
corporation or banking association organized and doing business under the Jaws of the United States or of a 
state thereof, authorized under such Jaws to ,exercise corporate trust powers. having ( or if such corporation or 
banking association is a member of a bank holding company system. its bank holding company has) a 
combined capital and surplus of at least $50..000.000. and subject to supervision or examination by federal or 
state authority. If such C01pDration or banking association publishes reports of condition at least annually. 
pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to. then for the 
purposes of the Indenture the combined capital and surplus of such corporation or banking association shall be 
deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so published. 
In case at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance >'<ith the provisions of the Indenture. the 
Trustee shall resign immediately in the mann,:r and with the effect specified in the Indenture. 

Resignation and Removal of Trustee and Appointment of Successor Trustee. The Trustee may at 
any time resign by giviug written notice delivered ti the Authority and the Borrower and by giving written 
notice to the Bondholders by first class mail. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Authority shall 
promptly appoint a successor trustee by an instrument in writing. If no successor trustee shall have been so 
appointed and have accepted appointment within 45 days after the giving of such notice of resignation. the 
resigning trustee may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor trustee, or 
any Bondholder who has been a bona fide holder of a Bond for at least six months may, on behalf of itself and 
others similarly situated, petition any such court for the appointment of a successor trustee. Such court may 
thereupon. after such notice. if any, as it may deem pr� and may prescribe. appoint a successor U11stee. 

In case at any time either ( I )  the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of 
the Indenture and shall fail to resign after written request therefor by the Authority or by any Bondholder who 
has been a bona fide holder of a Bond for at least six months. or (2) the Trustee shall become incapable of 
acting. or shall be adjudged to be bankrupt or insolvent. or a receivc:r of the Trustee or of its property shall be 
appointed, or any public officer shall take charge or control of the Trustee or of its property or affairs for the 
purpose of rehabilitation. conservation or liquidation. then, in any ,1uch case, the Authority shall remove the 
Trustee and, upon such removal or upon any removal pursuant to paragraph ( c) of the Indenture. except as 
otherwise provided in said paragraph ( c ). shall appoint a successor trustee by an instrument in writing. or any 
such Bondholder may, on behalf of itself and all otlters similarly situated, petition any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a successor trustee. Such court may 
thereupon, after such notice, if any. as it may deem proper and may prescribe, remove the Trustee and appoint 
a successor trustee 

The Authority, or if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the holders of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding may at any time upon 30 days' prior written 
notice remove the Trustee and may appoint a successor trustee, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in 
writing signed by the Authority or such Borullholders. as the case may be, and delivered to the Trustee and the 
Authority. 

Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor trustee pursuant to any of 
the provisions of the Indenture shall become effective only upon acc,eptance of appointment and assumption of 
duties by the successor trustee as provided in the Indenture. 

Acceptance of Trust by Successor Trustee. Any successor trustee appointed as provided in the 
Indenture shall execute. acknowledge and deliver to the Authority and to its predecessor trustee an instrument 
accepting such appointment under the Indent11l'e, aad thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor 
trustee shall become effective aad such succ,essor trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall 
become vested with and shall assume all the rights, powers, trusts. duties and obligations of its predecessor in 
the trusts under the Indenture, with like effect as if originally named as Trustee in the Indenture; but, 
nevertheless, on the Written Request of the Authority or the request of the successor trustee, the trustee ceasing 
to act shall execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor trustee, upon the trusts in the 
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Indenture expressed. all the rights. powers and trusts of the trustee so ceasing to act. Upon request of any such 
successor trustee. the Authority shall execute any and all instruments in "'riting necessary or desirable for more 
fully and certainly vesting in and confim1ing to such successor trustee all such rights, powers and duties. Any 
trustee ceasing to act shall. nevertheless., retain a lien upon all property or funds held or collected by such 
trustee to secure the amounts due it as compensation. reimbursement. expenses and indemnity afforded to it by 
the Indenture. 

No successor trustee shall accept appointment as provided in the Indenture unless at the time of such 
acceptance such successor trustee shall be eligible under the provisions of the Indenture. 

Upon acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee as provided in the Indenture, the Authority or 
such successor trustee shall give Bondholders notice by first class mail of the succession of such trustee to the 
trusts under the Indenture. 

In the event of the appointment of a successor Trustee. the predecessor Trustee which has resigned or 
been removed shall cease to be Trustee of the funds under the Indenture and bond registrar and paying agent 
for the Bonds. and the successor Trustee shall become such kustee and shall accept such other appointments as 
the trustee may hold, including the offices of bond registrar and paying agent under the Indenture. 

Merger or Consolidation of Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be 
merged or with which it may be consolidated, or any corporation or association resulting from any merger or 
consolidation to which the Trustee shall be a party, or any corporation or association succeeding to the 
corporate trust business of the Trustee. shall be the successor of the Trustee under the Indenture without the 
execution or filing of any paper or any further act. anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, 
provided that such successor trustee shall be eligible under the provisions of the Indenture. 

MODIFICATION OF INDENTURE 

Modifiqtion of Indenture without Consent of Bondholders. The Authority and the Trustee. with 
the written consent of the Borrower, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, from time to time and 
at any time. subject to the conditions and restrictions in the Indenture contained. may enter into an indenture or 
indentures supplemental to the Indenture, which indenture or indentures thereafter shall form a part of the 
Indenture, for any one or more of the following purposes: ( i) to add to the covenants and agreements of the 
Authority in the Indenture contained. other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, or to assign or 
pledge additional security for the Bonds. or to surrender any right or power in the Indenture reserved to or 
conferred upon the Authority: provided that no such covenant, agreement. assignment, pledge or surrender 
shall materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Bonds; (ii) to evidence the succession of a 
new Trustee under the Indenture. or to provide for the appointment of a co-trustee or for a paying agent in 
addition to the Trustee: (iii) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency or 
omission, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision contained in the Indenture. or in 
regard t o  matters or questions arising under the Indenture, as the Authority may deem necessary o r  desirable 
and not inconsistent with the Indenture and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the 
holders of the Bonds; ( iv) to provide for the issuance of coupon bonds or to provide for the use of a book-entry 
system� provided. however, that the Authority and the Trustee shall have received an opinion of Bond Counsel 
to the effect that issuance of the Bonds in coupon form or the use of a book-entry system, respectively, 
complies with all applicable laws and will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Tax-Exempt 
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (v) to modify, amend or supplement the Indenture 
or any indenture supplemental to the Indenture to in such manner as to permit the qualification of the Indenture 
or thereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. or any similar federal statute in effect, and, if 
they so determine, to add to the Indenture o r  any indenture supplemental to  such other terms, conditions and 
provisions as may be permitted by said Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or similar federal statute, and 
which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Bonds; and (vi) to make such 
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additions, deletions or modifications as may be necessary to assure compliance with the Code. or otherwise to 
assure the exclusion from gross income under federal tax law ofinterest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

Any supplemental indenture authmized by the provisions of the Indenture may be executed by the 
Authority and the Trustee without the consent of or. notice to the: holders of any of the Bonds at the time 
outstanding. notwithstanding any of the provisions of the Indenture. but (i) the Trustee shall not be obligated to 
enter into any such supplemental indenture which affects the Trustee's own rights. duties or immunities under 
the Indenture or otherwise; and (ii) the Trustee shall not enter into any such supplemental indenture which 
affects the rights or obligations of the Borrower under the Indenture. under the Occupancy Agreement or under 
the Loan Agreement without first obtaining the written consent of the Borrower and the Authority. 

Modification of Indenture with Cousent of Bondholders. With the prior written consent of the 
Borrower and the consent of the holders ofnot less than sixty perci::nt (60%) in aggregate principal amount of 
each series of Bonds at the time outstanding. evidenced as provided in the Indenture. the Authority and the 
Trustee may from time to time and at any time enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the 
Indenture for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the 
provisions of the Indenture or of any supplemental indenture; provided, however. that. except to the extent 
permitted by the Indenture, no such supplemental indenture shall ( I) extend the fixed maturity of any Bond or 
reduce the rate of interest thereon or extend the time of payment of interest. or reduce the amount of the 
principal thereof, or reduce any premium payable on the redemption thereof, without the consent of the holder 
of each Bond so affected. or (2) reduce the aforesaid percentage of holders of Bonds whose consent is required 
for the execution of such supplemental indentures, or permit the creation of any lien on the Revenues prior to 
or on a parity with the lien of the Indenture. except as permitted in the Indenture, or permit the creation of any 
preference of any Bondholder over any other Bondholder or deprive the holders of the Bonds of the lien 
created by the Indenture upon the Revenues, or impair the right of the owners of Bonds to demand purchase 
thereof pursuant to the Indenture. without in each case the consent of the holders of all the Bonds then 
outstanding. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as making necessary the approval of any 
Bondholder of any supplemental indenture permitted by the  provisions of the Indenture. Upon receipt by the 
Trustee of a Certified Resolution authorizing the execution of any such supplemental indenture. and upon the 
filing with the Trustee of evidence of the consent of Bondholders, as aforesaid, the Trustee shall join with the 
Authority in the execution of such supplemental indenture, unless (i) such supplemental indenture aftects the 
Trustee's own rights. duties or immunities under the Indenture or otherwise, in which case the Trustee may in 
its discretion, but shall not be obligated to. enter into such supplemental indenture: or (ii) such supplemental 
indenture affects the rights or obligations of the Borrower under the Indenture or under the Loan Agreement. in 
which case the Trustee shall enter into such supplemental indenture only if the Trustee has received the 
Borrower's written consent thereto. 

It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Bondholders under the Indenture to approve the 
particular form of any proposed supplemental indenture. but it shall be sufficient if such consent shall approve 
the substance thereof: Promptly after the c,xecution by the Authority and the Trustee of any supplemental 
indenture pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture. the Trustee shall give the Bondholders, by first class 
mail, a notice setting forth in general terms the substance of such supplemental indenture. Any failure of the 
Trustee to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not. however, in any way impair or affect the validity 
of any such supplemental indenture. 

Effect of Supplemental Indenture Upon the execution of any supplemental indenture pursuant to 
the provisions of the Indenture. the Indenture shall be and be deemed to be modified and amended in 
accordance therewith. and the respective rights, duties and obligations under the Indenture of the Authority, the 
Trustee and all holders of outstanding Bonds shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enfon:ed under the 
Indenture subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments, and all the terms and conditions of any 
such supplemental indenture shall be part of the terms and conditions of the Indenture for any and all purposes. 
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Opinion of Counsel as to Supplemental Indenture. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture. the 
Trustee shall be entitled to receive. and shall be fully protected in relying upon, an Opinion of Counsel as 
conclusive evidence that any supplemental indenture executed pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture is 
authorized and permitted by the Indenture and does not have a material adverse affect on the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax pwposes of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

DEFEASANCE 

Discharge of Indenture. If the entire indebtedness on all Bonds outstanding shall be paid and 
discharged in any one or more of the following ways: (i) by the payment of the principal of (including 
redemption premium. if any) and interest on all Bonds outstanding; or (ii) by the deposit or credit to the 
account of the Trustee, in trusl at or before maturity, of money or securities in the necessary amount (as 
provided in the Indenture) to pay or redeem Bonds outstanding. whether by redemption or otherwise: or (iii) by 
the delivery to the Trustee, for cancellation by it, of all Bonds outstanding: and if all other sums payable under 
the Indenture by the Authority shall be paid and discharged, then and in that case the Indenture shall cease. 
terminate and become null and void, except only as provided, in the Indenture, and thereupon the Trustee shall, 
upon Written Request of the Authority, and upon receipt by the Trustee of a Cerlificate of the Authority and an 
Opinion of Counsel, each stating that in the opinion of the signers all conditions precedent to the satisfaction 
and discharge of the Indenture have been complied with, forthwith execute proper instruments acknowledging 
satisfaction of and discharging the Indenture. 1be fees, expenses and charges of the Trustee (including 
reasmable counsel fees) must be paid in order to effect such discharge. The satisfaction and discharge of the 
Indenture shall be without prejudice to the rights of the Trustee to charge and be reimbursed by the Borrower 
for any expenditures which it may thereafter incur in connection with the Indenture. 

Discharge of Liabilicy on Bonds. Upon the deposit with the Trustee, in trust, at or before maturity, of 
money or securities in the necessary amount (as provided in the Indenture) to pay or redeem outstanding Bonds 
(whether upon or prior to their maturity or the redemption date of such Bonds) provided thal if such Bonds are 
to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall have been given as in the 
Indenture provided or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice, 
all liability of the Allhority in respect of such Bonds shall cease, terminate and be completely discharged, 
except only that thereafter the holders thereof shall be entitled to payment by the Authority. and the Authority 
shall remain liable for such paymenl but only out of the money or securities deposited with the Trustee as 
aforesaid fortheirpayment, subject. however, to the provisions of the Indenture. 

Payment of Bonds after Discharge of Indenture. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Indenture, 
any moneys deposited with the Trustee or any paying agent in trust for the payment of the principal of. or 
interest or premium on, any Bonds remaining unclaimed for two years after the principal of all the outstanding 
Bonds, or any interest thereon, has become due and payable ( "1lether at maturity or upon call for redemption 
or by declaration as provided in the Indenture), shall then be paid to the Authority. and the holders of such 
Bonds shall thereafter be entitled to look only to the Authority for payment thereof, and only to the extent of 
the amount so paid to the Authority, and all liability of the Trustee or any paying agent with respect to such 
moneys shall thereupon cease. In the event of the payment of any such moneys to the Authority as aforesaid, 
the holders of the Bonds in respect of which such moneys were deposited shall thereafter be deemed to be 
unsecured creditors of the Authority for amounts equivalent to the respective ammmts deposited for the 
payment of such Bonds and so paid to the Authority (without interest thereon). 

Deposit of Money or Securities with Trustee. When ever in the Indenture it is provided or permitted 
that there be deposited with or credited to the account of or held in trust by the Trustee money or securities in 
the necessary amount to pay or redeem any Bonds, the money or securilies so to be deposited or held shall be 
Available Amounts (or Federal Securities purchased with Available Amounts) conslituting: (i) lawflll money 
of the United States of America in an amount equal to the principal amount of such Bonds and all unpaid 
interest thereon to maturity, except that, in the case of Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to maturity and in 
respect of which there shall have been furnished to the Trustee proof satisfactory to it that notice of such 
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redemption on a specified redemption date has been duly given or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall he 
made for such notice. the amount so to be deposited or held shall be the principal amount of such Bonds and 
interest thereon to the redemption date. together with the redemption premium, if any; or (ii) noncallable and 
nonprepayable direct obligations of the United States of Ame1ica or noncallable and nonprepayable obligations 
which as to principal and interest constitute full faith and credit obligations of the United States of Ame1ica, in 
such amounts and maturing at such times that the proceeds of said obligations received upon their respective 
maturities and interest payment dates, without further reinvesun.:nl will provide funds sufficient. in the 
opinion of a nationally recognized firm of certified public accounta111ts, to pay the principal. premium, if any, 
and interest to maturity. or to the redemption date. as the case may be. with respect to all of the Bonds to be 
paid or redeemed. as such principal, premium and interest become due; provided that the Trustee shall have 
been irrevocably instructed by the Authority to apply the proceeds of said obligations to the payment of said 
principal. premium. if any, and interest with respect to such Bonds. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Limitation of Rights to Parties 11nd Bondholders. Nothing in the Indenture or in the Bonds 
expressed or implied is intended or shall b,: construed to give to any person other than the Authority, the 
Trustee. the Agents, the Borrower and the holders of the Bonds issued under the Indenture any legal or 
equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of the Indenture or any covenant. condition or provision 
therein or in the Indenture contained; and all such covenants, conditions and provisions are and shall be held to 
be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the Trustee. the Borrower and the holders of the Bonds 
issued under the Indenture. 

Evidence of Rights of Bondholders. Any request. consent or other instrument required by the 
Indenture to be signed and executed by Bondholders may be in any number of concurrent writings of 
substantially similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Bondholders in person or by agent or agents 
duly appointed in writing. Proof of the exe:cution of any such ret1uest, consent or other instrument or of a 
writing appointing any such agent or of the ownership of any Bonds, shall be sufficient for any purpose of the 
Indenture and shall be conclusive in favor of the Trustee and of the Authority if made in the manner provided 
in the Indenture. 

"lbe fact and date of the execution by any person of any such request, consent or other instrument or 
writing may be proved by the affidavit of a "'itness of such execution or by the certificate of any notary public 
or other officer of any jurisdiction. authmized by the Jaws thereof to take acknowledgments of deeds, 
certifying that the person signing such request, consent or other instrument or writing acknowledged to him the 
execution thereof. 

The ownership of Bonds shall be pr,oved by the Bond regi:lter maintained pursuant to the Indenture. 
The fact and the date of execution of any request, consent or other instrument and the amount and 
distinguishing numbers of Bonds held by th,e person so executing such request, consent or other instrument 
may also be proved in any other manner which the Trustee may deem sufficient. The Trustee may 
nevertheless, in its discretion. require further proof in cases where it may deem further proof desirable. 

Any request, consent or vote of the holder of any Bond shall bind every future holder of the same 
Bond and the holder of any Bond issued in exchange therefor or in lieu thereof, in respect of anything done or 
suffered to be done by the Trustee or the Authority in pursuance of such request, consent or vote. 

In determining whether the holders of the r11quisite aggregate principal amount of Bonds have 
concurred in any demand, request, direction, consent or waiver under the Indenture. Bonds which are owned 
by the Authority or by any other direct or indirect obligor on the Bonds, or by any person directly or indirectly 
controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, the Authority or any other direct 
or indirect obligor on the Bonds, shall be disregarded and deemed not to be outstanding for the purpose of any 
such determination, provided that, for the purpose of determining whether the Trustee shall be protected in 
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relying on any such demand, request. direction, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Trustee knows to be 
so owned shall be disregarded. Bonds so owned which have been pledged in good faith may be regarded as 
outstanding for the purposes of this subsection if the pledgee shall establish to the satisfadion of the Trustee 
and the Authority the pledgee' s right to vote such Bonds and that the pledgee is not a person diredly or 
indirectly controlling or controlled by. or under dired or indired common control with, the Authority or any 
other dired or indired obligor on the Bonds. In case of a dispute as to such right any decision by the Trustee 
taken upon the advice of counsel shall be full protection to the Trustee. Solely for purposes of the limitation 
expressed in this paragraph, the Borrower shall be deemed to be an indired obligor on the Bonds. 

In lieu of obtaining any demand. request. direction, consent or waiver in writing, the Trustee may call 
and hold a meeting of the Bondholders upon such notice and in accordance with such rules and regulations as 
the Trustee considers fair and reasonable for the purpose of obtaining any such adion. 

Waiver of Personal Liability. No officer. agent or employee of the Authority, and no officer, 
dficial, agent or employee of the State of California or any department, board or agency of any of the 
foregoing. shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the principal of or premium or interest 
on the Bonds or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof; but 
nothing in the Indenture contained shall relieve any such person from the performance of any official duty 
provided by the Indenture. 

Goverpiag Law. The Indenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

THE LOAN AGREEMENT 

FINANCING OF THE PROJECT; ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS 

Disbursement From the Project Fud. The Authority has authorized and directed the Trustee to 
disburse proceeds of the Bonds from the Projed Fund created pursuant to the Indenture to pay for Project 
Costs pursuant the Indenture. Neither the Trustee nor the Authority shall be responsible for the application by 
the Borrower of moneys disbursed in accordance with the Loan Agreement. 

Gross Prolect Reven•e F•nd. The Borrower agrees that. so long as any amounts due the Loan 
Agreement remain unpaid. all of the Gross Projed Revenues shall be deposited as soon as practicable upon 
receipt by the Borrower (but in any event within three (3) Business Days of receipt) in a ftmd designated as the 
'"Gross Project Revenue FWld" which the Borrower shall establish and maintain with the Trustee. subjed to the 
provisions of the Loan Agreement, in an account or accounts established for such purpose. Subject only to the 
provisions of the Loan Agreement permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement, the Borrower pledges. and to the extent permitted by law grants a 
security interest to the Trustee in. the Gross Projed Revenue Fund and all of the Gross Project Revenues to 
secure the payment of the Loan and the perf.ormance by the Borrower of its other obligations under the Loan 
Agreement. 

The Loan Agreement creates a valid and binding lien in favor of the Trustee as security for payment of 
the Bonds, enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement. 

Amounts deposited by the Borrower in the Gross Project Revenue Fund shall be applied pmsuant to 
the provisions oft he Loan Agreement. 

Neither the Trustee nor the Authority shall be liable for the application by the Bo1rower of any funds 
withdrawn from the Operation and Maintenance Fund under the Loan Agreement. 
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Investment of Moneys; Arbitrage. Upon written direction of the Borrower and otherwise as 
provided in the Indenture, any moneys in any fund or account held by the Trustee under the Loan Agreement 
shall be invested or reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Securities, subject to the covenants of the Loan 
Agreement. 

Limited Liability. All obligations of the Authority incurred under the Loan Agreement shall be 
limited obligations of the Authority. payable solely and only from Proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, the 
Project. Gross Project Revenues pledged under the Loan Agreement and from the funds and accounts pledged 
therefor under the Indenture. The Bonds. and the interest thereon. do not constitute a debt. liability. general or 
moral obligation or pledge of the faith or loan of the credit of the Authority, any of its Members or the State or 
any other political subdivision of the State. within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation or 
provisions. Neither the faith and credit of the Authority, any of its Members nor the taxing power of the State 
or any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or premium, if any. or interest 
on the Bonds or any other costs incident thereto. 

Operation and Maintenance Fund, Sul!ject only to the provisions of the Loan Agreement 
permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Loan 
Agreement, the Borrower by the Loan Agreement pledges and, to the extent permitted by law. grants a security 
interest to the Trustee in such Operation and Maintenance Fund. 

The Borrower shall pay annual Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project. as set forth in the 
Operating Budget for such year. from moneys deposited into the Operation and Maintenance Fund. Any 
amounts remaining in the Operation and Maintenance Fund at the end of any Fiscal Year after payment of the 
Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project for such period in excess 1/6 of the Expenses of Operating 
and Maintaining the Project budgeted for the next succeeding Fiscal Year shall be transfCJTed to the Gross 
Project Revenue Fund and applied in accordance with the Loan Agreement. 

Amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Fund. if any, may be used and withdrawn by the 
Borrower, upon Written Request of the Borrower provided to the Trustee, at any time for any lawful pUTpose 
consistent with the Operating Budget for the Project provided pursuant to the Loan Agreement. except as 
provided in the Loan Agreement. In the event that ( i) the Boirower is delinquent in the rq>ayment of the Loan 
under the Loan Agreement, or (ii) an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement has occurred which has not 
been cured, the Trustee may, unless and until such delinquency and/or default is cured in accordance with 
applicable cure periods. thereafter exercise its rights as a secured party in the Operation and Maintenance 
Fund. During any such period, deposits of Gross Project Revenues to the Operations and Maintenance Fund 
shall be made after the payment to the Bond Fund pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 

During any period that the Trustee is required to exercise its rights as a secured party as set forth in the 
preceding paragraph, the Trustee shall use and withdraw amounts in Operation and Maintenance Fund from 
lime to time, without the need for any consent or request of (but with prior written notice to) the Borrower, to 
make Loan repayments and the other payments required of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, in 
accordance with the Loan Agreement. During such pC!iod, the Borrower shall not be entitled to use or 
withdraw any of the amounts on deposit in the Operation and Maintenance Fund ( or any Gross Project 
Revenues) for the payment of current or past due operating expenses of the Borrower, including fees due under 
any management agreement for the Project, unless and to the extent that the Trustee receives a certificate of the 
Borrower certifying that such moneys will be used for Expenses of Operating and Maintaining the Project or 
the Management Fee consistent with the Operating Budget for the Project provided pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement. and providing a description of(and a corresponding invoice for) the use thereof. 
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LOAN OF PROCEEDS: PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

Loan Repayment and Payment of Other Amonnts. 1be Borrower has agreed to repay the Loan in 
the amounts and at the times necessary to enable the Trustee, on behalf of the Authority, to pay when due all 
amounts payable with respect to the Bonds when due,, whether at maturity or by redemption (with premium. if 
applicable) or otherwise. 

The Borrower agrees: (i) to pay to the Trustee from time to time reasonable compensation for all 
services rendered by it under the Indenture and the other agreements relating to the Bonds to which the Trustee 
is a party; (ii) except as otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture or such other agreements. to reimburse 
the Trustee upon its request for all reasonable expenses. disbursements and advances (including reasonable 
counsel fees) incurred or made by the Trustee in accordance with any provision of the Indenture or other 
agreements to which the Trustee is a party or pursuant to which it is required to act (including the reasonable 
compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its agents and counsel), except any such expense, 
disbursement or �vanoe as may be attributable to the Trustee·s negligence or willful misconduct: (iii) to 
indemnify the Trustee for. and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability or expense incurred without 
negligence or bad faith on its part. arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of the 
trust under the Indenture or any other agreement relating to the Bonds to which the Trustee is a party or 
pursuant to which it is required to act, including the costs and expenses of def ending itself against any claim or 
liability in connection \\'ith the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties thereunder: and (iv) to 
pay any annual fee of any paying agents. and any other amounts referred to in the Indenture. 

The Borrower also agrees to pay within thirty (30) days after receipt of request for payment thereof. all 
expenses of the Authority directly related to the Project and the fmancing thereof that are not otherwise 
required to be paid by the Borrower under the terms of the Loan Agreement and are not paid from the Cost of 
Issuance Fund under the Indenture., which includes reasonable legal fees and expenses incurred in connection 
with the amendment, interpretation and enforcement of any documents relating to the Project or the Bonds, 
taxes and assessments of any type or character charged to the Authority in connection with the transactions 
contemplated by the Loan Agreement, such amounts as may be necessary to satisfy the rebate requirements in 
accordance with the Tax Certificate and to pay the cost of calculation of such rebate requirements, and any 
costs incuned by the Authority to provide notice required by the Indenture. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Loan Agreement to the contrary, the Borrower shall pay the 
Authority on February 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2004, an annual fee which shall equal to .01% 
of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding as of the immediately preceding January I .  

Unconditional ObUgations. Toe obligations of the Borrower to make the payments required by the 
Loan Agreement and to perform and observe the other agreements on its part contained in the Loan Agreement 
shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any defense or any rights of set-off. recoupment or 
counterclaim it might otherwise have against the Authority or the Trustee, and during the term of the Loan 
Agreement, the Borrower shall pay absolutely net the payments required under the Loan Agreement, free of 
any deductions and without abatement. diminution or set-off. Until such time as the principal of. premium, if 
any. and interest on the Bonds shall have been fully paid, or provision for the payment thereof shall have been 
made as required by the Indenture. the Borrower (i) will not suspend or discontinue any payments provided for 
in the Loan Agreement: (ii) will perform and observe all of its other covenants contained in the Loan 
Agreement; and (iii) except as provided in the Loan Agreement, will not terminate the Loan Agreement for 
any cause, including, without limitation, the occurrence of any act or circumstances that may constitute failure 
of consideration, destruction of or damage to the Project, commercial frustration of purpose, any change in the 
tax or other laws of the United States of America or of the State of California or any political subdivision or 
either of these, or any failure of the Authority or the Trustee to perform and observe any covenant, whether 
express or implied, or any duty. liability or obligation arising out of or connected with the Loan Agreement or 
the Indenture, except to the extent permitted by the Loan Agreement 
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Notwithstanding any provision of the Loan Agreement. the Occupancy Agreement or the Deed of 
Trust (collectively. the "Project Loan Documents'") to the contrary. the Borrower shall not be personally liable 
for the amounts owing under the Loan Agreement (other than for indemnity and fees and any rebate 
obligations as provided below) or under the Project Loan Documents: and the Authority's and the Trustee's 
remedies in the event of a default under the Loan Agreement or under the Project Loan Documents shall be 
limited to those remedies set forth in the Loan Agreement In the event of a default under the Loan Agreement 
or under the Deed of Trust except to the extent provided in the next sentence, neither the Authority nor the 
Trustee shall have the right to proceed directly against the Borrower (rather than the Project), or the right to 
obtain a deficiency judgment after foreclosure. Nothing in the Loan Agreement shall preclude the Authority or 
the Trustee from proceeding directly against the Borrower in connection with the following: (i) the obligation 
of the Borrower to indemnify the Authority and the Trustee under the Loan Agreement; (ii) the obligation of 
the Borrower to make any payment to the Authority, the Trustee or the federal government required to be paid 
by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions of the Loan Agreement; (iii) the application by the Borrower in 
violation of the Deed of Trust or the Loan Agreement of any condemnation award or insurance awards 
attributable to the Project (iv) the application of rents or security deposits attributable to the Project other than 
as permitted by the Deed of Trust and applicable law: (v) the obligation of the Borrower under any provision 
regarding hazardous materials: and (vi) any amounts owing under indemnity provisions set forth in the Project 
Loan Documents that relate to liabilities to 1hird parties resulting from acts or omissions of Borrower and/or 
from the ownership, occupancy or use of the Project all of which obligations shall constitute recourse 
obligations of the Borrower. 

Assignment of Authority's Rights, As security for the payment of the Bonds, the Authority in the 
Indenture assigns to the Trustee certain of the Authority"s rights under the Loan Agreement. including the right 
to receive payments under the Loan Agreement (except for the right of the Authority to receive certain 
payments, if any, with respect to fees. expenses and indemnification under the Loan Agreement and the 
Authority directs the Borrower to make the payments required 1mder the Loan Agreement (except such 
payments for Authority fees. expenses and indemnification) directly to the Trustee. The Borrower assents to 
such assignment and agrees to make payments directly to the Trustee without defense or set-off by reason of 
any dispute between the Borrower and the Authority or the Trustee. By virtue of such assignment. the Trustee 
shall have the right to enforce the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement 

SPECIAL COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Maintuance of E!i.ctense; Assignments. The Borrower agrees that during the term of the Loan 
Agreement it will remain in good standing and authorized to do business in the State of California and will 
maintain its existence as a nonprofit corporation, will not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially 
all of its assets and will not combine or consolidate with or merge into another entity or permit one or more 
other entities to consolidate with or merge into it provided, however, that the Borrower so combine, 
consolidate with, or merge into another entity existing under the laws of one of the states of the United States, 
or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into it. or sell or otherwise transfer to another 
entity all or substantially all of its assets as an entirety and thereafter dissolve. provided that the surviving, 
resulting or transferee entity, as the case may be, (i) assumes and agrees in writing to pay and perform all of 
the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement (ii) qualifies (if required under applicable law) to 
do business in the State of California, and (iii) will not cause a violation of any of the representations or 
warranties in the Loan Agreement and provided further that the Borrower shall provide prior written notice of 
any of the foregoing events to each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds and the Borrower 
shall confirm in writing with each such Rating Agency prior to effecting, or permitting to be effected, any of 
the foregoing events that the then rating on the Bonds will not be downgraded as a result of any such events. 

The rights and obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement may be assigned by the 
Borrower to any person in whole, in connection with and in proportion to, any conveyance of all or part of the 
Project; provided that (i) the assignee shall assume in writing the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan 
Agreement to the extent of the interest assigned, and a copy of such instrument of assumption shall be 
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delivered to the Authority and the Trustee within ten ( 10) days after the execution thereof; (ii) the Borrower 
shall remain liable for its obligations under the Loan Agreement to the extent of any interest not so assigned; 
(iii) the Borrower shall provide prior written notice of such assignment to any Rating Agency then maintaining 
a rating on the Bonds: (iv) the assignment will not cause a violation of any of the representations or warranties 
in the Loan Agreement; and (v) the Authority shall receive the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel 
that such assignment will have no adverse material affect on the exclusion from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes of the interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds and provided fwther that the Borrower shall 
provide prior written notice of any of the foregoing events to each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on 
the Bonds and the Borrower shall confirm in writing with each such Rating Agency prior to effecting. or 
permitting to be eflected, any of the foregoing events that the then rating on the Bonds will not be dO'wngraded 
as a result of any such events. 

Statement of Com.12liance; Notice of Certain Events. The Borrower will deliver to the Trustee. 
within 120 days after the end of each Fiscal Year, commencing with the Fiscal Year ending Jtme 30, 2003, a 
written statement signed by an Authorized Borrower Representative stating, as to the signer thereof. that (l)  a 
review of the activities of the Borrower during such year and of perfonnance under the Loan Agreement and 
the Deed of Trust has been made under their supervision. and (2) to the best of the knowledge of such 
Authorized B01Tower Representative. based on such review, the Borrower has fulfilled all its obligations under 
such documents throughout such year, or, if there has been a default in the fulfillment of any such obligation, 
specifying each such default known to such Representative and the nature and status thereof. 

The Borrower has covenanted to notify the Trustee in writing of the occurrence of any Event of 
Default wder the Loan Agreement or under the Deed of Trust or any event which. with the passage of time or 
service of notice, or both, would constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or under the Deed 
of Trust, specifying the nature and period of existence of such event and the actions being taken or proposed to 
be taken with respect thereto. Such notice shall be given promptly, and in no event less than ten (10) Business 
Days after the Borrower receives notice or knowledge of the occurrence of any such event The Borrower 
further agrees that it will give prompt written notice to the Trustee and the Authority if insurance proceeds or 
condemnation awards are received with respect to the Project and are not used to repair or replace the Project, 
which notice shall state the amount of such proceeds or award. 

Insurance; Maintenance and Repair. The Borrower agrees to insure the Project or cause the Project 
to be insured during the term of the Loan Agreement as follows: (a) at least S l.000.000 in public liability 
insurance; (b) insurance coverage in an amolDlt equal to the lesser of the replacement cost of the Project (as 
improved) or the Outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, against loss or damage to any part of the Project 
buildings and improvements by fire. and lightning, with extended coverage and vandalism and malicious 
mischief insurance which extended coverage insurance shall, as nearly as practicable. cover loss or damage by 
explosion. windstorm, riot, aircraft. vehicle damage. smoke and such other hazards as are normally covered by 
such insurance; (c) twelve months' rental interruption insurance; and (d) for such amounts and for such 
occurrences, if any. as are required under the Deed of Trust. 

The Borrower agrees to name the Trustee as an additional insured (or loss payees/mortgagees) on any 
insurance maintained by the Borrower with respect to the Project at all times while the Loan is outstanding. 
The Borrower shall submit to the Trustee an annual certificate evidencing compliance v.ith the requirements of 
this paragraph and the preceding paragraph within 30 days of each anniversary date of the Qosing Date. The 
Trustee is entitled to conclusively rely on such certificate and shall be under no duty to investigate the 
underlying facts. 

The Borrower shall not cancel any insurance policy maintained pursuant to the Loan Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the Trustee. 

The Borrower agrees to maintain the Project, or cause the Project to be maintained, during the term of 
the Loan Agreement (i) in a reasonably safe condition and (ii) in good repair and in good operating condition. 
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ordinary wear and tear excepted, making from time to time all necessary repairs thereto and renewals and 
replacements thereof. so that the Project may be continually ope111ted as a student housing facility. The 
Borrower agrees not to commit or suffer any waste with respect to the Project 

Financial Statements and Reports; Project Management. The Borrower shall prepare and present 
to the T111stee. \\ithin 90 days following the end of each Fiscal Year. commencing with the Fiscal Year ending 
June 30. 2004: (i) financial statements of the Borrower. Miich shall include all relevant aspects of the Project 
audited by an independent certified accountant or firrn of such accountants. and (ii) a report of an independent 
certified public accountant which details the projected and actual Gross Project Revenues (as defined in the 
Indenture). the disposition of those revenues showing the uses thereof and. in particular. the amounts used for 
each of the purposes described in the Loan Agreement, the current occupancy levels of the Pr�ject and any 
plans by the Borrower for major repair to or rehabilitation of the Project Each report described in clause (ii) 
above shall contain a certification by the Borrower that it is in compliance with all of its obligations under the 
Loan Agreement and under the Deed of Trust. or a detailed statement as to any covenant with respect to which 
it is not in compliance stating the reasons therefor and the actions being taken by the Borrower to return to 
compliance. 

The Borrower shall provide to the Trustee a preliminary annual budget 90 days prior to the beginning 
of the Borrower's Fiscal Year; provided that with respect to the Fiscal Year commencing July I, 2003 such 
preliminary annual budget need not be provided. In addition, on or prior to the 30th day preceding each Fiscal 
Year. the Borrower shall prepare an annual budget (an "Operating Budget"), detailed as to line items of 
anticipated Gross Project Revenues. expenses related to the Pro ject. including but not limited to Expenses of 
Operating and Maintaining the Project (as defined in the Indenture) (with separate line items for amo,mts due 
under ordinary and extraordinary repairs and reserve payments for the ensuing Fiscal Year and shall submit a 
copy of such budget to the Trustee: provided that with respect to 1he Fiscal Year commencing July I, 2003 
such Operating Budget shall be provided to the Trustee no later thain June 30, 2003. Such Operating Budget 
shall show that the Project in such Fiscal Year will be operated so as to allow the Borrower to satisfy the 
Coverage Requirement pursuant to the Loan Agreement The Operating Budget may be amended by Borrower 
from time to time, provided. however, the Borrower must, prior to undertaking any such amendment, certify to 
the Trustee that under the Operating Budget, as amended, the Coverage Requirement is  met; and provided 
further that copies of any amendments shall be given the Trustee. The Trustee shall have no duty to review 
any fmancial statements, reports or budgets pro,,ided to it and may rely upon the certifications of the Borrower 
furnished to it hereunder. 

The Borrower may manage the Project of its own accord or may engage a third-party manager. Any 
manager proposed by and engaged by the Bmrower to manage any unit in the Project. or all of such units, shall 
be an entity with prior experience in managing units of a comparable quality and number in California, and 
which is familiar with the requirements of the Code and the Act as they apply to the Project and the Project 
Loan Docwnents. Upon a failure to maintain the Coverage Requirement, the Borrower agrees to replace the 
then Manager at the Trustee's request If the Borrower fails to do so. the Trustee shall have the right (but not 
the obligation) to replace the Manager. The Trustee shall have the right (but not the obligation) to disapprove 
of any person or entity proposed as a Manager of all or any portion of the units comprising the Project, 
provided that the Trustee's approval may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. At least twenty days prior 
to the execution of any management agreement with respect to all or any of the units in the Project, the 
Borrower shall submit such agreement, along with a statement of the proposed manager's qualifications, to the 
Trustee and the Rating Agency. The Trustee shall approve or di5approve of the proposed manager within 
thirty (30) days after receiving the inforrnation described in the previous sentence. 

Negative Pledge, The Borrower shall not create or allow to exist any liens nn any of its property, 
including, but not limited. to the Gross Project Revenue Fund except Permitted Encumbrances. 
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Dispositions of Assets. 

Property Plant and Equipment C"PP&E"). The Borrower shall not sell or otherwise dispose of any 
PP&E unless (i) the PP&E is obsolete or worn out, or (ii) fair market value is received in return. or (iii) the 
market value of all PP&E disposed of in any fiscal year does not exceed five percent of the total market value 
of all PP&E of the Borrower. 

Cash. Investments and Other Current Assets ( .. Liquid Assets"). Toe Borrower shall not sell or 
othen\oise dispose of any Liquid Assets unless (i) fair market value is received in return. or (ii) the total market 
value of Liquid Assets disposed of in any fiscal year does not exceed one percent of all Liquid Assets of the 
Borrower. 

Accounts Receivable. Notwithstanding paragraph (b) above, the Borrower shall not sell, pledge. 
factor or otherwise dispose of accounts receivable under any circumstances. 

Indenture. The Borrower agrees to all of the tams and provisions of the Indenture and accepts each 
of its obligations expressed or implied thereunder. The Borrower hereby approves the initial appointment 
under the Indenture of the Trustee. 

Use Covenant. The Borrower agrees and covenants during the term of the Loan that the Project will 
be used exclusively for student housing for the benefit of the District. 

Deed of Trust. In order to provide additional security for the Bonds and its obligations under the 
Loan Agreement. the Borrower shall. concurrently with or before the Closing Date, execute and deliver the 
Deed of Trust. The Borrower shall comply with the provisions of the Deed of Trust. The Borrower has 
acknowledged that in the event of a default under the Deed of Trust which is not cured, such default will 
constitute a breach of this covenant and if such breach is not cured. the Loan may separately and independently 
be accelerated with or without an acceleration of the Bonds. 

Title to the Project. On or before the Closing Date, the Borrower shall have good and marketable 
title in the real property comprising the Project and ownership of the improveIDents then comprising the 
Project, free and clear of any lien or encumbrance except for Permitted Encumbrances. 

Design of the ProJect. The Borrower, or the Borrower's predecessor (to the best of the Borrowers 
knowledge), has caused the Project to be designed and constructed in accordance with all the applicable federal 
state and local laws or resolutions (including rules and regulations) relating to zoning. building. safety and 
environmental quality; and the Borrower has not failed, and will not fall, to obtain and maintain in effect any 
licenses, pennits. franchises or other governmental authorizations necessary for the operation of the Project. 

Additional Debt. The Borrower shall not enter into any contract, bond or other form of debt 
ins•ument that is secured by Gross Project Revenues. 

Federal Guarantee Prohibition. TI1e Borrower shall take no action nor permit nor suffer any action 
to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be .. federally guaranteed" 
within the meaning of the Code. 
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Occupancy Agreement; Further Security f'or the Loan and the Bonda, 

(a) The Borrower assigns to the Trustee, as additional security to the Authority for the repayment of 
the Loan, all of its right. title and interest in the Occupancy Agreement: provided. however. that Borrower 
affirms and covenants that notwithstanding such assignment it will abide by the terms and conditions of said 
Occupancy Agreement and take any and all actions required on its part under said Occupancy Agreement. 

(b) The Borrower covenants that it shall (i) provide written notice to the District and Trustee within 
five (5) business days of the conclusion of the second full calendar week of each Fall and Spring semester of 
the District (each an "Occupancy Measurement Date�) of (a) the number of beds in the Project made available 
for rent to College students for such semest=r and (b) the number of said beds that were not rented as of the 
Occupancy Measurement Date for the relevant semester and within ( 5) business days of each Occupancy 
Measurement Date determine if the occupancy level for the respective semester as of the Occupancy 
Measurement Date is below the Occupancy Target (as defined in the Occupancy Agreement) and the amount 
of the Occupancy Guarantee Payment (as defined in the Occupancy Agreement), if any, then due frmn the 
District under the Occupancy Agreement and provide same day notice of such determinations, and, if 
applicable, an invoice demonstrating the Occupancy Guarantee Payment due for such semester, to the District 
(such payment to be paid pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement no later than thirty (30) days from the date the 
aforementioned notices relating to the Occupancy Guarantee Payment and occupancy statistics are given). 

(c) The Borrower, the Authority and the Trustee acknowledge and allinn that all payments made 
under, and all proceeds derived from the exercise of any right or remedy under, the Occupancy Agreement are 
to be deemed Gross Project Revenues. 

( d) The Trustee shall take all nec(:ssary actions to secure timely payment and effect all rights and 
remedies under the Occupancy Agreement, including promptly instituting collection proceedings against the 
District for failure to make required payments thereunder. 

Prohibited Facilities. The Borrower represents and warrants that no portion of the proceeds of the 
Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be used to provide any airplane. skybox or other private luxury box. health club 
facility. facility primarily used for gambling, or store the principal business of which is the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for consumption off premises, and no portion of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be 
used for an office unless the otlice is located on the premises of the facilities constituting the Pro!iect and 
unless not more than a de minimis amount of the functions to be performed at such office is not related to the 
day-to-day operations of the Project 

Operation of Bnsiness; Noncompetition with Project. The Borrower covenants to continue to 
operate its business in a business-like manner and to pursue all corporate opportunities to the Borrower. The 
Borrower further covenants that it will at no time during the term of the Loan Agreement acquire, construct, 
fund, invest in or in any manner support or promote any housing project within the geographical boundaries of 
the District or which might in any way compete for tenants with the Project, unless the Borrower shall provide 
prior written notice of any of the foregoing events to each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the 
Bonds and the Borrower shall confirm in writing with each such Rating Agency prior to undertaking any 
action in furtherance of housing projects of the nature contemplated in this sentence that the rating on the 
bonds then maintained by such Rating Agency will not be downgraded as a result of such action. 

Operation of the Project, 

General Operation. To the extent permitted by law and market conditions, the Borrower covenants to 
at all times fix, impose, charge and collect such rentals, rates. fees and charges for the services, privileges and 
facilities provided and made available by the Project and to manage, operate and maintain the Project in such a 
manner as to allow the Borrower to meet in a timely manner all of its financial and other duties, obligations, 
commitments and covenants set forth in the Loan Agreement and in lhe Indenture. 
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Compliance wiJh Debt Service Cover.ge Ret1uirements. To the extent permitted by law. Borrower 
covenants to establish and collect rents in connection \\ith the Project sufficient to comply in each Fiscal Year 
with the Coverage Requirement for the Bonds Outstanding. 

Failure of the Borrower to maintain the Coverage'Requirement shall not constitute an Event of Default 
under the Loan Agreement if Borrower shall. subject to existing law (i) immediately engage a Financial 
Consultant to under1ake a review of rents charged for the units in the Project. which review shall be set forth in 
a written report to be provided (within 30 days of delivery of the Borrower's Certificate identifying the 
coverage failure) to the Authority, each Rating Agency and the Trustee. for the putpose of determining such 
a<.\justments to rents as shall be necessary to thereafter generate sufficient Gross Project Revenues to allow the 
Borrower to satisfy the Coverage Requirement and (ii) undertake within sixty (60) days of completion of the 
rental review any adjustments recommended in the rental review and permitted by local. State and federal law; 
and if the coverage ratio does not fall below 1.00 in the then current month. 

Withdrawals from the Reserve Fund. The Trustee shall notify the Borrower in writing of any 
withdrawals of moneys from the Reserve Fund within three (3) Business Days of such withdrawal. Within 
seven (7) Business Days after the Borrower receives notice of such withdrawal. the Borrower shall engage a 
Financial Consultant to undertake a review of rents then charged for units in the Project in order to determine 
such adjustments to rents as shall be necessary to thereafter generate sufficient Gross Project Revenues to 
allow the Borrower to {i) make payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds as due, (ii) replenish the 
amount or amounts withdrawn from the Reserve Fund. and (iii) make the deposits required pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. The aforementioned rental review shall be set forth in a \\Titten report to be provided within 
30 days of the withdrawal from the Reserve Fund to the Authority. each Rating Agency and the Trustee. The 
Borrower shall implement to the extent such action does not jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the Tax· 
Exempt Bonds, any rental adjustments suggested by the review described in the previous sentence and 
permitted by local. State and federal law and the Leases within sixty ( 60) days from the date moneys were 
withdrawn from the Reserve Fund for such purposes. 

Continuing Disclosure. 

The Borrower covenants to comply with and carry out the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement. The Borrower agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of the Rule and to assume on behalf 
of the Authority any and all obligations. costs, fees. or expenses arising therefrom. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Loan Agreement, failure of the Borrower to comply with 
the Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be considered an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement; 
however. the Trustee. any Bondholder or beneficial owner, within the meaning of said Rule, may (and the 
Trustee, at the request of any underwriter subject to the requirements of the Rule or the holders of at least 25% 
aggregate principal amount in Outstanding Bonds, shall) take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking specific performance by comt order, to cause the Borrower to comply with its 
obligations under the Loan Agreement 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION; USE OF PROCEEDS 

Obligation to Continue Payments. If prior to full payment of the Bonds ( or provision for payment 
thereof in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture) the Project or any portion thereof is destroyed (in 
whole or in part) or is damaged by fire or other casualty, or title to. or the temporary use of� the Project or any 
portion thereof shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or 
by any person, firm or corporation acting under governmental authority, the Borrower shall nevertheless be 
obligated to continue to pay the amounts specified in the Loan Agreement, to the extent not prepaid in 
accordance with the Loan Agreement. 
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AppUcation of Net Proceeds. Toe Net Proceeds. if any of aoy insurance or condemnation awards 
resulting from the damage., destruction or condemnation of the Project or any portion thereof shall be applied 
in one or more of the following ways at the election of the Borrower, such election to be subjec.t to the 
conditions set forth in the Deed of Trust if the Net Proceeds are in excess of $500,000: 

(a) The prompt repair, restoration. relocation. modification or improvement of the damaged. 
destroyed or condemned portion of the Project to enable such portion of the Project to accomplish at least the 
same function as such portion of the Project was designed to accomplish prior to such damage. or destruction, 
or condemnation. 

(b) Prepayment of all or a porti.on of the Loan. subject to and in accordaoce with the Loan 
Agreement. and redemption of Bonds: provided that no part of the Net Proceeds may be applied for such 
purpose unless (I) the entire amount of the Loan is so prepaid and all of the outstanding Bonds are to be 
redeemed in accordance with the Indenture, or (2) in the event that only a portion of the Loao is so prepaid, the 
Borrower shall furnish to the Authority and the Trustee a certificate of the Authorized Borrower 
Representative acceptable to the Authority stating (i) that the property forming part of the portion of the 
Project that was damaged or destroyed by such casualty or was taken by such condemnation proceedings is not 
essential to the BOITOwer"s use or possession of the remaining portion of the Project or (ii) that such part of the 
portion of the Project theretofore completed has been repaired, replaced, restored; relocated, modified or 
improved to enable such portion of the Project to accomplish at least the same function as such portion of the 
Project was designed to accomplish prior to such damage or destruciion or the taking by such condemnation 
proceedings. 

lnsnfflciency of Net Proceeds. If the Project or a portion thereof is to be repaired, restored, relocated, 
modified or improved pursuant to the Loan Agreement. and if the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in full 
the cost of such repair, restoration. relocation. modification or improvement. the Borrower will nonetheless 
complete the work or cause the work to be completed and will pay or cause to be paid any cost in excess of the 
amount of the Net Proceeds. 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Events of Defanlt. 

Any one of the following which occurs and continues shall constitute an Event of Default (i) the 
occurrence of an Event of Default described in the Loan Agreement if, as set forth in a written opinion of Bond 
Counsel delivered to the Trustee. any of such defaults would result in interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
becoming includable in gross income of a holder for federal income tax pu1poses if the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
remain outstanding (an "Acceleration Default"); (ii) failure by the Borrower to pay any amounts required to be 
paid under the Loan Agreement at the times specified therein; (iii) failure by the Borrower to observe and 
perform any other covenant, condition or agreement on its part required to be observed or performed by the 
Loan Agreement. and which continues for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice., specifying such 
failure and requesting that it be remedied, given to the Borrower by the Authority or the Trustee., unless the 
Authority and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its eKpiration; provided, 
however, that if the failure stated in the notice caonot be corrected .. ithin such period but is correctll1ble, the 
Authority and the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an eKtension of such time if 
corrective action is instituted within such period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected; (iv) the 
making of any covenant, representation or warranty by the Borrower in the Loan Agreement or in any 
document executed in connection with the Loan Agreement which is false or misleading in any material 
respect when made: or if an "Event of Default" under the Indenture has occurred and is continuing. 

Neither the Trustee nor the Authority shall be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default 
under th,e Loan Agreement unless and until it shall have actual knowledge thereof or it shall have received 
written notice thereof. 
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Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred and shall continue, to cure 
any such default. the Authority and the Trustee may take any one or more of the following remedial steps: ( I)  
The Trustee, upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Default, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of 
Default under the Loan Agreement, by written notice to the Borrower. shall immediately declare to be due and 
payable immediately the unpaid balance of the Loan. (2) The Authority and the Trustee may have access to 
and may inspect, examine and make copies of the books and records and any and all accounts, data and federal 
income tax and other tax returns of the Borrower relating to the Project. (3) The Authority or the Trustee may 
take whatever action at law or in equity as may be necessary or desirable to collect the payments and other 
amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation.. 
agreement or covenant of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement. (4) The Trustee may institute any action 
or proceeding at law or in equity for the collection of any sums due and unpaid, and may prosecute any such 
action or proceeding to judgment or final decree. and may enforce any such judgment or final decree against 
the Bo1rower and collect in the manner provided by law the moneys adjudged or decreed to be payable. 

In case the Trustee or the Authority shall have proceeded to enforce its rights under the Loan 
Agreement and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or shall have been 
determined adversely to the Trustee or the Authority, then, and in every such case. the Borrower. the Trustee 
and the Authority shall be restored respectively to their several positions and rights under the Loan Agreement, 
and all rights, remedies and powers of the Borrower, the Trustee and the Authority shall continue as though no 
such action had been taken. 

In case proceedings shall be pending for the bankruptcy or for the reorganization of the Borrower 
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law, or in case a receiver or trustee shall have been 
appointed for the property of the Borrower or in the case of any other similar judicial proceedings relative to 
the Borrower, or the creditors or property of the Borrower, then the Trustee shall be entitled and empowered, 
by intervention in such proceedings or otherwise. to file and prove a claim or claims for the whole amount 
owing and unpaid pursuant to the Loan Agreement and, in case of any judicial proceedings, to file such proofs 
of claim and other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the 
Trustee allowed in such judicial proceedings relative to the Borrower, its creditors or its property, and to 
collect and receive any moneys or other property payable or deliverable on any such claims, and to distribute 
such amounts as provided in the Indenture after the deduction of its charges and expenses. Any receiver, 
assignee or trustee in bankruptcy or reorganization is authorized to make such payments to the Trustee, and to 
pay to the Trustee any reasonable amount due it for compensation and expenses, including expenses and fees 
of counsel incurred by it up to the date of such distribution. 

Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Eipenses. In the event the Authority or the Trustee should 
employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of the payments due under the Loan Agreement or 
the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the Borrower in 
the Loan Agreement contained, the Borrower agrees to pay to the Authority or the Trustee the reasonable fi:es 
of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred by the Authority or the Trustee. 

No Remedy E:ulusive. No remedy in the Loan Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the 
Authority or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and 
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under the Loan 
Agreement or existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power 
accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but 
any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In 
order to entitle the Authority or the Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved to it in the Loan Agreement, it 
shall not be necessary to give any notice. other than such notice as may be in the Loan Agreement expressly 
required or required by law to be given. Such rights and remedies as are given the Authority under the Loan 
Agreement shall also extend to the Trustee, and the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds shall be deemed third 
party beneficiaries of all covenants and agreements in the Loan Agreement contained. 
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No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any agreement or covenant contained 
in the Loan Agreement should be breached by the Borrower and thereafter waived by the Authority or the 
Trustee, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any 
other breach under the Loan Agreement 

PREPAYMENT 

Prepayment of Loan. The Loan shall not be prepaid except as provided in the Loan Agreement The 
Borrower shall be permitted or required to prepay, or shall be deemed to have prepaid. the Loan, in whole or in 
part. and the principal amount thereof shall be reduced accordingly. in an amount equal to the principal amount 
of Bonds redeemed and on the date of such redemption, as follows: 

The Borrower shall be required to prepay the Loan from the amount of any Net Proceeds of any 
insurance (other than proceeds from loss of rental insurance) or condemnation award which are not used to 
repair or replace th.e Project pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 

Tbe Borrower shall be required to prepay the full remaining balance of the Loan. upon the oet:urrence 
of an Acceleration Default and the acceleration of the Loan pursuant to the Loan Agreement. the acceleration 
of the loan following any other Event of Default under the Loan Agreement pursuant to said the Loan 
Agreement. 

The Borrower shall be required to prepay the Loan in whole or in part on the date necessary in order 
for the Bonds to be redeemed as provided in the Indenture. 

Redemption of Bonds Upon Prepayment. Upon any prepayment of the Loan as provided in the 
Loan Agreement, the Trustee is required by the Indenture to call all or part of the Bonds for redemption in the 
respecth-e amounts set forth in the applicable provision of the Indenture. 

Amount of Prepayment. In the event of any prepayment pursuant to the Loan Agreement., the 
amount of the Loan deemed to be prepaid shall be equal to the principal amount of Bonds redeemed as 
described in the Loan Agreement In the case of prepayment of the Loan in full, the Borrower shall pay to the 
Trustee an amount sufficient, together with other funds held by the Trustee and available for such pu11�ose, to 
pay all reasonable and necessary fees and expenses of the Authority. the Trustee and any paying agent accrued 
and to accrue through final payment of the Bonds and all other liabilities of the Borrower accrued and to 
accrue under the Loan Agreement., and shall pay to the Authority any amount required by the Loan Agreement 
In the case of partial prepayment of the Loan. the Borrower shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee an 
amount sufficient, together with other funds held by the Trustee and available for such purpose. to pay 
expenses ofredemption of the Bonds to be redeemed upon such prepayment. 

LIMlTA TION ON LIABILITY OF ISSUER; EXPENSES: INDEMNIFICATION 

Limitation on Liability of Authority. The Authority shall not be obligated to pay the principal of, or 
premium. if any, or interest on the Bonds, except from Revenues. The Borrower acilllowledges 1bat the 
Authority's sole source of moneys to repay the Bonds and to pay expenses related thereto will be provided by 
the payments made by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Al!lfeement together with other Revenues or 
investment income on certain funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture, and confinns that 
amounts available to pay all principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the san1e shall 
become due (whether by maturity. redemption, acceleration or otherwise), have been calculated to be at all 
times sufficient for such purpose. 

Any obligation or liability of the Authority created by or arising out of the Loan Agreement 
(including, without limitation, any liability created by or arising out of the representations, warranties or 
covenants set forth in the Loan Agreement 1r otherwise) shall not impose a debt or pecuniary liability upon the 
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Authority or a charge upon its general credit. but shall be payable solely out of the Revenues. Neither the 
issuance of the Bonds nor the delivery of the Loan Agreement shall, directly or indirectly or contingently, 
obligate the Authority to make any appropriation for their payment Nothing in the Bonds or in the Indenture 
or the Loan Agreement or the proceedings of the Authority authorizing the Bonds or in the Act or in any other 
related document shall be construed to authorize the Authority to create a debt of the Authority v.ithin the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision of the State or the United States of America. No breach of 
any pledge, obligation or agreement of the Authority under the Loan Agreement may impose any pecuniary 
liability upon the Authority or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing power. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Amendments, Changes and Modifications. Except as otherwise provided in the Loan Agreement or 
the Indenture. subsequent to the initial issuance of Bonds and prior to their payment in full. or provision for 
such payment having been made as provided in the Indenture. the Loan Agreement may be effectively 
amended. changed. modified. altered or terminated only by written instrument executed by the parties to the 
Loan Agreement 

Governing Law. The Loan Agreement shall be governed exclusively by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. 

Term of tbe Agreement. The Loan Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the date of the 
Loan Agreement and shall continue in effect as long as any of the Bonds are outstanding or the Trustee holds 
any moneys under the Indenture, whichever is later. 
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APPENDIX D 

FORM OF' BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

Upon the issuance and delivery of the Bonds. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, San Francisco, California, 
Bond Counsel. proposes to render its final approving opinion with respect to the Bonds substantially in the 
following form. 

May 29, 2003 

California Community College Financing Authority 
Sacramento, California 

$3,250,000 
CALIFORNIA COMMUI\TI'Y COLLEGE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

STUDENT HOUSING REVENUE BONDS 
(FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE PROJECT) 

Series 2003A Tax-Exempt 

$165,000 
CALIFORNIA COMMUJ,ITY COLLEGE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

STUDENT HOUSING REVENUE BONDS 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

(FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE PROJECT) 
Series 20038 Taxable 

We have eKamined a certified copy of the record of proceedings relating to the issuance by the 
California Community College Financing Authority (the "Authority") of $3,250,000 aggregate principal 
amount of Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River Community College Project) Series 2003A Tax­
Exempt (the "Series A Bonds") and $165,000 aggregate principal amount of Student Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Feather River Community College Project) Series 20038 Taxable (the "Series B Bonds" and together with the 
Series A Bonds, the "Bonds"). The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of Articles I through 4 
(commencing with Section 6500 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title I the Government Code of the State of 
California (the "Act'') and an indenture, dated as of May I ,  2003 (the "Indenture''), by and between the 
Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). The Bonds are issued for the 
purpose of making a loan of the proceeds thereof to Feather River College Foundation, Inc. (the "Bonower''), 
pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of May I, 2003 (the ··Loan Agreement"), by and between the 
Authori�y. the Trustee and the Borrower. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed thereto in the Indenture. 

In our capacity as Bond C01msel, we have eKamined originals or copies certified or otherwise 
identified to our satisfaction. of the (i) Indenture and the Loan Agreement, (ii) the Tax Certificate relating to 
the Series A Bonds dated May 29, 2003, (iii) the Official Statement, dated May 21,  2003 (the ... fficial 
Statement"). (iv) the Purchase Contract, datetl as of May 21 ,  2003 (the �Purchase Contract"), by and among 
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the Borrower, the Authority and George K. Baum & Company (the "Underwriter''). (v) letters. certificates and 
opinions of counsel to the Authority, the Borrower, the Trustee and others delivered pursuant to the Purchase 
Contract and (vi). such other laws, documents, certifications. opinions and matters to the extent we deemed 
necessary to render the opinions set forth herein. 

We have assumed. but have not independently verified. that the signatures on all documents, letters, 
opinions and certificates which we have examined are genuine, that all documents submitted to us are 
authentic and were duly and properly executed by the parties thereto other than the Authority and that all 
representations made in the documents that we have reviewed are true and correct. 

Based on and subject to the foregoing. and in reliance thereon. as of the date hereof we are of the 
opinion that: 

I .  The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and issued. 

2. The l�denture has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid and binding 
obligation «� the Authority. The Indenture creates a valid pledge, to secure the payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, of the Revenues and any other ammmts (including proceeds of the sale of the 
Bonds) held by the Trustee in any fund or account established pursuant to the Indenture except the Rebate 
Fund. subject to the provisions of the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the 
terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture. The Indenture also creates a valid assignment to the Trustee, 
for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the Bonds, of the right, title and interest of the Authority in 
the Loan Agreement (to the extent more particularly described in the Indenture). 

3. The Bonds are valid and binding limited obligations of the Authority. payable solely from the 
Revenues and other assets pledged and assigned therefor under the Indenture and are not a lien or charge upon 
the funds or property of the Authority except to the extent of the aforementioned pledge and assignment The 
Bonds shall never constitute the debt or indebtedness of the Authority within the meaning of any provision or 
limitation of the Constitution of the State of California. and shall not constitute nor give rise to a pecuniary 
liability of the Authority or a charge against its general credit. The Authority has no taxing power. 

4. The Loan Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by. and constitutes the 
valid and binding agreement of, the Authority. 

5. Under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions. assuming compliance by the 
Authority and the Borrower with certain covenants of the Indenture and the Loan Agreement and other 
documents pertaining to the Series A Bonds (the "Tax-Exempt Bonds .. ) and certain requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the .. Code'"), regarding the organization and operation of the 
Borrower, the use, expenditure and invesbnent of Tax-Exempt Bond proceeds and the timely payment of 
certain investment earnings to the United States Treasury.interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds is not includable 
in the gross income of the owners of the Tax-Exempt Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation. In 
rendering the foregoing opinion, we have relied upon the opinion of Schools Legal Service, Bakersfield, 
California, regarding the qualification of the Borrower as an organization described in Section 501(c)(c) of the 
Code. In addition, we can give no opinion or assurance aboui the future activities of the Borrower or about the 
effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations. the interpretations thereof or the resulting 
changes in enforcement thereof by the Internal Revenue Service. Failure to comply with the covenants and 
requirements described above or failure of the Borrower to be organized and operated in accordance with the 
Internal Revenue Service's requirements for the maintenance of its status as an organization described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code may cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be includable in gross income 
for federal income tax pu1poses retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. 

6. Interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds wiJI not be treated as an item of tax preference in calculating 
alternative minimum taxable income of individuals and corporations; however, interest on the Tax-Exempt 
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Bonds will be included as an aqjustment in the calculation of corporate alternative minimum taxable income 
and may therefore affect a corporation's alternative minimum tax liability. We express no opinion regarding 
other federal income tax consequences caused by ovmership of. or the receipt of interest on. the Tax--Exempt 
Bonds. 

7. The difference between the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a substantial amount of 
the Bonds of a maturity is to be sold to the public) and the stated redemption price at maturity with respect to 
such Bonds constitutes original issue discount. Original issue discount accrues under a constant yield method. 
and original issue discount will accrue to a Bondo�ner before receipt of cash attributable to such excludable 
income. The amount of original issue discount deemed received by a Bondowner will increase the 
�ner's basis in the applicable Bond. Original issue discount that accrues to the Bondowner is excluded 
from the gross income of such owner for federal income tax purposes. is not an item of tax prefenmce for 
pUipOses of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations. and is exempt from 
State of California personal income tax. 

8. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income tax. 

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Indenture or other relevant 
documents relating to the Bonds may be changed. and certain actions may be taken. under the circumstances 
and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving 
opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the area of tax-exempt obligations. We express no opinion as to 
any payment under the Loan Agreement or the exclusion of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds from gross 
income o.fthe owners of the Tax-Exempt Bonds for federal income tax purposes on and after the date on which 
any such change occurs or action is taken upon the advice or approval of counsel other than this firm. 

The opinions expressed herein are based upon our analysis and interpretation of existing laws, 
regulations, rulings and judicial decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such au�oorities. 
We call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Indenture. the Loan Agreement and the 
Bonds are subject to bankruptcy. insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other 
similar laws affecting creditors· rights. to the application of equitable principles if equitable remedies are 
sought. to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against 
public agencies in the State of California. We express no opinion with respect to indemnification or 
contribution provisions contained in the foregoing documents. 

Respectfully submitted. 

STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAlITH 
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APPENDIX E 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

FEA TUER RIVER COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

& 

FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

REGARDING THE OCCUPANCY & OPERATION OF THE 

"STUDENT HOUSING COMPLEX" (FEA TUER RIVER APARTMENTS) 

This OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made by and between the Feather River 
Community College District. a California community college district (the "District"), and Feather River 
College Foundation, Inc., a California nonprofit corporation (hereinafter the "Foundation") as of May l ,  2003. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Foundation has among its expressed corporate purposes the purposes of raising and 
implementing support for special projects of Feather River College (the •·college"') and undertaking any 
activities which may be to the benefit of the College and the community within the terms and according to the 
laws of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, each of the Foundation and the District recognize that the supply of safe, habitable and 
affordable student housing within proximity to the College is currently inadequate to meet the needs of the 
College ·s student population; and 

WHEREAS. the Foundation intends to acquire and operate that certain apartment complex located at 
300 Golaen Eagle Avenue, Quincy, California 95171 and commonly known as the Feather River Apartments 
(the "'Student Housing Complex") for the ben,efit of the students of the College; and 

WHEREAS, the Foundation intends to fmance the costs of acquiring, improving. remodeling, 
renovating and/or equipping the Student Housing Complex (such actions collectively, the .. Projecn from the 
loan of the proceeds of the sale of those certain California Community College Financing Authority Student 
Housing Revenue Bonds I.Feather River College Project) Series 2003A Tax-Exempt and Series 20038 Taxable 
(collectively, the "Bonds") made by the California Community College Financing Authority (the "Authority"); 
and 

WHEREAS. to establish sufficient creditworthiness of the Bonds that will allow the Foundation to 
finance the Project at rates of interest that make the operation of the Pr(lject for its intended purposes 
economically feasible, the Foundation has proposed that the District support the occupancy of the Project and 
pay specified sums in the event that Pr(lject occupancy levels are deficient; and 

WHEREAS, the District believes that the support of said occupancy levels in consideration for the 
Foundation's operation and maintenance of the Project for the benefit of the students of the College, in 
accordance with certain terms established by the College herein, is in the interests of the students of the 
College and in furtherance of the mission of the District; 
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AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants herein contained and for other 
good and valuable consideration. the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section A. Term of Agreement. 

I. This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon mutual written agreement of both parties. 
Except as provided in Section B. 7 hereof. so long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, this Agreement shall 
under no circumstances terminate earlier than June 30, 2030. unless prior to effecting any such termination the 
Foundation shall have first confirmed in writing with each rating agency then maintaining a rating with respect 
to the Bonds that the rating on the Bonds then maintained by each of such rating agencies v,,ill not be 
downgraded as a result of any such termination. 

Section B. Occupancy Guarantee of tbe District; Agreement to Provide Student Housing. 

I. The Foundation shall hold and make available for the exclusive use of the District's students 
the units in the Student Housing Complex during each Fall and Spring semester. Within five ( 5) business days 
of the conclusion of the second full calendar week of each Fall and Spring semester (each an "Occupancy 
Measurement Date"). the Foundation shall provide written notice to the District of (i) the number of beds in the 
Student Housing Complex made available for rent to District students for such semester and (ii) the number of 
said beds that were not rented as of the Occupancy Measurement Date for the relevant semester. In the event 
the Occupancy Target (as defined below) is not met as of each Occupancy Measurement Date, the District 
shall pay to the Foundation an Occupancy Guarantee Payment (as defmed below) in consideration for the 
rental income deemed forfeited by the Foundation in each respective semester for which the percentage of 
occupied beds relative to the aggregate number of beds initially reserved exclusively for District students prior 
to the relevant Occupancy Measurement Date falls below the Occupancy Target as of the respective 
Occupancy Measurement Date. 

2. The Occupancy Guarantee Payment shall be calculated based on the following formula: 0. 9 
multiplied by the sum of the total number of Student Housing Complex beds made available for rentto District 
Students as of each Occupancy Measurement Date (excluding beds in units reserved for Resident Assistants 
and other Foundation emplayees up to a maximum number of 5 units) less the number of beds rented as of 
each Occupancy Measurement Date. the sum of which is finally multiplied by the current rental rates for such 
beds in the relevant semester. In each case. the application of the foregoing formula shall assume a minimum 
of two (2) beds per bedroom. 

3. The Foundation shall within (5) business days of each Occupancy Measurement Date 
determine if the occupancy level for the respective semester as of the Occupancy Measurement Date is below 
the Occupancy Target and the amount of Occupancy Guarantee Payment. if any, then due from the Disbict 
under this Agreement and provide same day notice of such determinations, and, if applicable, an invoice 
demonstrating the Occupancy Guarantee Payment due for such semester, to the District. 

4. The District shall have the right to verify the Foundation's calculations as to occupancy levels 
and Occupancy Guarantee Payment, to inspect the books of the Foundation v,,ith respect to occupancy levels. 
rental rolls and current rental rates, and to require a third-party accounting v.ith regard to any of the foregoing 
if District deems there to be accounting discrepancies upon its inspection. 

5. The District shall pay no later than thirty (30) days from the date the aforementioned notices 
and statistics relating to the Occupancy Guarantee Payment, if any, then due for such semester. 
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6. Tite Occupancy Target in each Spring and Fall sem,:ster is 90% of the total number of Student 
Housing Complex beds (excluding beds in units reserved for Resident Assistants and other Fo�,ndation 
employees up to a maximum number of 5 units and assuming a minimum of two (2) beds per bedroom). 

7. Occupancy Guarantee Payment shall be payable by the District from all amounts legally 
available for the payment therefor; provided. however. in each semester the obligation of the District to pay 
Occupancy Guarantee Payment shall be subject to annual appropriations of the District. If for any fiscal year 
of this Agreement, the Board of Trustees of the District fails to appropriate or allocate funds for future 
Occupancy Guarantee Payments, the Distri,;t shall have the right (but no the obligation) to terminate all 
obligations with respect to the appropriation for and payment of the Occupancy Guarantee Payments; 
provided. however. such right of termination upon failure to make annual appropriations shall apply only to the 
obligations respecting the appropriation for and payment of the Occupancy Guarantee Payments and not to the 
other obligations hereunder. 

8. The District hereby covenants that during the term of this Agreement, it will take such actions 
as may be necessmy to include estimated Occupancy Guarantee Payment for each fiscal year in its annual 
budgets and to make the necessmy appropriations therefor. Such estimated Occupancy Guarantee Payment 
shall be based on the amount of Occupancy Guarantee Payment due in prior years and current information as 
to the availability of comparable housing relative to then current levels of demand for student housing in the 
area in and around Quincy. California. The District in estimating the, amounts to be appropriated for each year 
hereby agrees to consult with the Foundation as to estimated occupancy deficiencies. rental rates and status of 
the local student housing market 

Section C. Agreement as to Certain Improvements. 

1 .  Tite District shall pay to the Bond trustee, for application to the repair and replacement 
reserve fwld with respect to the Bonds, an aggregate an1ount of $1,000,000 from its "Special Forest Revenues" 
under the allocation made by the federal government pursuant to the Secure Rural Schools and Community 
Self.-Determination Act of 2000) in the amounts and at the times set forth in Exhibit A hereto, which moneys 
the Foundation hereby covenant to apply to the specific purposes of accomplishing all necessary su11ctural 
repairs to the Student Housing Complex's building foundations, lateral and vertical support systems and roof 
systems (collectively, the "Initial Rehabilitation Work", in order to improve the structural integrity and useful 
life of the Student Housing Complex to a 25 year useful life. 

2. The District further agrees to finance directly the costs of improving the portion of the path 
situated on the College property from the main component of the College campus to the property line with the 
Student Housing Complex by installing additional safoty lighting along said path and repairing and adding 
road base/gravel to said path. 

Section D. Financial Reporting. 

I .  The District and Foundation hereby agree to review the operation and financial condition of 
Student Housing Complex on a regular basis. The Foundation shall prepare. or cause to be prepared on its 
behalf, a report on the operation and financial condition of the Student Housing Complex, including bi1dgeted 
and actual revenues and expenditures, and said report shall be delivered to the Dislrict not less frequently than 
on a quarterly basis. Said report shall be prepared in accordance with customary standards and practices 
common to the commercial residential rental housing industty. 

2. The Foundation shall prepare and present to the Dislrict, within 90 days following the end of 
each fiscal year, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003: (i) financial statements of the 
Foundation. which shall include all relevant aspects of the Project, audited by an independent certified 
accountant or firm of such accountants, and (ii) an audit of an independent certified public accountant which 
details the projected and actual gross revenw:s from the Student Housing Complex, the disposition of those 
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revenues showing the uses thereof and, in particular. the amounts used for operation and maintenance 
expenses, amounts applied to the repair and replacement funds and other amounts applied in connection with 
the loan agreement relating to the Bonds, the current occupancy levels of the Student Housing Complex and 
any plans by the Foundation for major repair to or rehabilitation of the Student Housing Complex. The 
foregoing reporting requirements identified in (i) and (ii) inay be combined into one audit. 

3. The Foundation shall provide to the District a preliminary armual budget 90 days prior to the 
beginning of the Foundation's fiscal year: provided that with respect to the fiscal year commencing July I.  
2003 such preliminary annual budget need not be provided. In addition, on  or prior t o  the 30th day preceding 
each Fiscal Year. the Foundation shall prepare an annual budget (an .. Operating Budget"). detailed as to line 
items of anticipated gross rental revenues, expenses related to the Student Housing Complex. including but not 
limited to expenses of operating and maintaining the Student Housing Complex, ordinary and extraordinary 
repairs and reserve payments due under the loan agreement relating to the Bonds for the ensuing fiscal year 
and shall submit a copy of such budget to the District: provided that with respect to the fiscal year 
commencing June 30, 2003 such Operating Budget shall be provided no later than the date the Student 
Housing Complex is acquired by the Foundation. The Operating Budget may be amended by the Foundation 
from time to time, provided. however. the Foundation must certify to the District that under the Operating 
Budget. as amended, all debt service coverage requirements imposed under the loan agreement relating to the 
loan of the proceeds of the Bonds are met; and provided further that copies of any amendments shall be given 
to the District. 

Section E. Agreement as to Corporate Governance With Respect to tbe Student Housing Complex. 

1. The Foundation hereby covenants and agrees to create and maintain during the term of the 
Agreement a Business Management Committee of its Board of Directors and to empower said committee and 
its appointed representatives to make necessary operational, budgetary and staffing decisions related to the 
Student Housing Complex. The Foundation shall appoint four ( 4) members of its Board of Directors to serve 
on the Business Management Committee. 1be Foundation agrees to manage. operate, maintain and staff the 
Student Housing Complex under the operational direction of the Business Management Committee. The 
Foundation Board of Directors may provide guidance, establish goals, establish policies, and/or direct the 
Business Management Committee. 

2. The Foundation may hire and maintain the position of a "Foundation Senior Administrator" 
who shall have primary responsibility for the management and operation of the Foundation's Student Housing 
Complex (housing), Feather River Fitness and Recreation (fitness center) and any other enterprise operations 
of the Foundation, and other duties and responsibilities as determined appropriate the Board or Business 
Management Committee of the Foundation. The Foundation Senior Administrator shall report to the Business 
Management Committee. 

3. The Foundation agrees to hire a housing manager or a third-party property management 
company who shall have primary responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Student 
Housing Complex. The Housing Manager shall report to the Foundation Senior Administrator, or in the 
absence of the Foundation Senior Administrator, to the Business Management Committee. 

Secdon F. Agreement as to Management and Use of Student Housing Complex Between Semesters. 

I. The Foundation shall hold and make available, for and during the period between the spring 
and fall semester of each year, a specified number of its Student Housing Complex units, as determined by the 
Business Management Committee in consultation with District staff to be that number of units which will be 
occupied by District students or others attending District-sponsored events, classes. sport camps or other 
programs during the aforementioned period. Agreement as to the number of units, the specific units to held for 
District-sponsored events, classes, sport camps or other program� and the period during the summer for which 
such units are to be reseived shall be made no later than April I of each year; provided, however. in all events 
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priority will be given to the student housing needs of District students attending classes during the sununer 
sessions. 

2. The Foundation shall use its best efforts to rent units that are not reserved in accordance with 
the aforementioned agreement between the District and the Foundalion as to unit reservation relating to 
District-sponsored events and aparbnents othern.ise vacant or vacated during the summer to members of the 
public or other third-parties in order to maximize the Student Housing Complex's annual rental income (but 
only to the extent not inconsistent with the tax covenants made by the Foundation with respect to the use of the 
proceeds of the Bonds): provided. however. in all events priority will be given to the student housing needs of 
District students attending classes during the summer sessions. 

3. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing. it shall be the a!Unnative obligation of the Foundation 
to ensure that all repairs deemed necessary to maximize occupancy of the Student Housing Complex nnits 
during the ensuing Spring semester, with respect to the winter break, and the ensuing Fall semeslel:. with 
respect to Summer break, shall be conducted between semesters and in such a manner as to maximize the 
number of units available for rent at the beginning of each Fall and Spring semester. 

4. The Foundation may manage the Student Housing Complex of its own accord or may engage 
a third-party manager. Any manager proposed by and engaged by the Foundation to manage any unit in the 
Student Housing Complex shall be an entity with prior experience in managing units of a comparable quality 
and number in California and shall be selected in consultation with the District Upon a failure to maintain the 
debt service coverage requirement in the loan agreement relating to the Bonds, the Foundation is obligated to 
replace the then current manager of the Student Housing Complex at the Bond trustee's request If the 
Foundation fails to do so, the Bond trustee has the right to replace said manager. At least twenty days prior to 
the execution of any management agreement with respect to all or any of the units in the Project the 
Foundation shall submit such agreement along with a statement of the proposed manager's qualifications, to 
the District and each rating agency then maintaining a rating with respect to the Bonds. 

Section G. Coordination Between the Distriet and tbe Foundation with Respect to tbe Student Housing 
Complex. 

1 .  The District and the Foundation hereby affirm that its i s  the intent of the parties that the two 
institutions work in a collaborative manner to provide student housing for the students of the District and to 
maximize the number of units rented in the Student Housing Complex. To enable the achievement of these 
goals the parties agree as follows: 

( 1 )  The District shall provide information to its students regarding the Student Housing 
Complex, including. but not limited to, advertising the Student Housing Complex to 
prospective students, advertising the Student Housing Complex in its catalog and 
related materials, and assist students in making arrangements to live in the Student 
Housing Complex in coordination with the Student Housing Complex's staff. 

(2) The Foundation shall provide an adequate number of Resident Advisors and 
Foundation staff in each building of the Student Housing Complex and shall consult 
with the District in coordinating student lifo related activities projects and efforts. 

(3) The College shall '-'Olltinue to provide information relating to the Student Housing 
Complex and rental applications on its website. 
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Section H. Business Management Committee Composidon and Responsibilities. 

I. The Business Management Committee shall consist of five (5) members. Four members will 
be appointed by the Foundation Board of Directors as follows: two (2) Committee members shall be 
Foundation Board of Directors members who also serve as District Board of Trustees members or who are 
District administrators or employees; and two (2) members shall be Foundation Board of Directors members 
who are not District employees. District administrators or Board of Trustee members. These four ( 4) members 
will select and appoint a fift:h member of the Business Management Committee. This fifth member shall be a 
local community member and who shall not be a District employee. District administrator, District Board of 
Trustees member or a member of the Foundation's Board of Directors. or other officer of either the District or 
the Foundation. 

Three members of the Business Management Committee, constituted of at least one member who is 
also a member of the District Board of Trustees. a District administrator or a District employee and one 
member who is not a member of the Dis1rict Board of Trustees or a District administrator or a Dis1rict 
employee, shall constitute a quorum of the Business Management Committee. 

2. Decisions of the Business Management Committee shall be made by consensus. or, when 
consensus cannot be reached, by majority vote. 

3. The Business Management Committee will meet quarterly at a minimum and more frequently 
as needed. 

4. The Business Management Committee shall direct and monitor the Student Housing 
Complex's operation, staffing, rental structure, revenue and expense budget and capital expenditures. 

5. The Business Management Committee will detennine the District's Occupancy Guarantee 
Payment obligation for vacant apartments, as described in Section B of this Agreement. 

6. The Business Management Committee will direct the Senior Administrator, and in the 
absence of the Senior Adminis1rator, the Student Housing Complex housing manager. 

7. The Business Management Committee shall annually establish the upcoming fiscal year's 
operating budget, staffing levels and rental rates for the Student Housing Complex as described in Section 83. 
hereof. 

8. The process for such decisions shall include: 

( 1) A review of current and prior year operating costs 

(2) A review of ctUTent and prior year staffing levels 

(3) A review of current and prior year's student needs and activities 

(4) A review ofneededcapital repairs and improvements. 

(5) The debt service coverage ratio and the maintenance of any other covenants 
established under the loan agreement relating to the loan of the proceeds of the 
Bonds. 
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9. The principles that shall be used to reach operating budget. staffing and rental rate decisions 
by the Business Management Committee shall include: 

( I )  Providing affordable. safe and clean housing to students 

(2) The fiscal viability of the Student Housing Complex 

(3) Establishing a revenue target for the upcoming fiscal year of at least l.20x of 
annual debt coverage due under the loan agreement relating the loan of the 
proceeds of the Bonds. 

(4) To the extent consistent with the loan agreement relating to the loan of the 
proceeds of the Bonds, net revenues in any fiscal year shall first be used to 
perform additional maintenance and improvements on the facilities in order 
to maintain their functionality and habitability (above and beyond the 
original facility repairs contemplated in the Initial Rehabilitation Work). 
secondly to pn:pay the bond indebtedness, and thirdly, to reduce the housing 
rental rates charged to student renters or for other direct student needs. The 
Business Management Committee shall make a specific detennination on the 
use of these excess revenues. Additionally, any such revenues shall be 
considered during the process of establishing future rental rates. This third 
priority is established in recognition of the fact that the income for the 
Student Housing Complex comes directly from student rents and that excess 
revenues should directly benefit students. 

( 5) The debt service coverage ratio and the maintenance of any other covenants 
established under the loan agreement relating to the loan of the proceeds of 
the Bonds. 

Section I. Agreement as to Understanding of Certain Provisions of California Law. 

I .  The District and the Foundation each affirm their n:spective llllowledge and understar1ding of 
the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 1720 et ssi. and I 770 et g .. as well as California Code 
of Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000 et seq. ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), relating, inter alia, to the payment of 
prevailing wage rates on certain '"public works.� 

2. The District and the Foundation each understand that the payment of the Special Forest 
Revenues to be made hereunder may constitute '"public funds" as that term is used in Labor Code Section 
1720(a) so as to bring the Initial Rehabilitation Work on the Student Housing Complex to be performed by the 
Foundation within the defmition of ''public works''as that term is used in the Prevailing Wage Laws. The 
Foundation hereby covenants that the Initial Rehabilitation Work on the Student Housing Complex financed 
by the Special Forest Revenues provided hereunder will be perfonned in accordance with Prevailing Wage 
Laws 

3. The District and the Foundation. each understand that neither the payment of the Special 
Forest Revenues to be made hereunder nor any other provision of this Agreement operates so as ming the 
lnilial Rehabilitation Work on the Student Housing Complex to be performed by Foundation within the 
definition of'"public works" for any purpose or context other d1an the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

4. The District and the Foundation each understand that neither any payment of Occupancy 
Guarantee Payment nor any payment made hereunder (other than those identified in the subsection 2. ofthis 
Section I), operates so as bring any activities of the Foundation with n:spect to the Student Housing Complex 
within the definition of'"public works" as that term is used in the Prevailing Wage Laws or any other laws. 
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Section J. Miscellaneous. 

1 .  Indemnification. 1be Foundation and the District each agree to indemnify and hold the other 
party and its officers, employees, and agents hannless from any and all expense and liability for damage. 
actual or alleged, to persons or property arising out of this agreement which arise out of or result from 
negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the indemnifying party or its officers, employees. or 
agents. 

2. ReCQ&Dition of Legally Distinct Entities. The District and Foundation agree that the District. 
its Board of Trustee members. officers. agents and employees. in the conjunction with this Agreement. shall 
act in an independent capacity and not as officers. agents or employees of Foundation and that Foundation, its 
Board of Directors members., officers, agents and employees, in conjunction with this Agreement, shall act in 
an independent capacity and not as officers. agents and employees of the District 

3. Insurance. The Foundation and the District shall each name the other party as an .. additional 
insured- on their respective liability insurance policies. 

4. Amendment, Changes and Modifications. lbis Agreement may be effectively amended. 
changed, modified. altered or terminated only by written instrument executed by the parties thereto; provided, 
however. that while any Bonds are outstanding no material terms of this agreement may be amended. changed 
or modified unless, prior to such amendment change or modification the Foundation shall have first confirmed 
in writing with each rating agency then providing a rating with respect to the Bonds that the rating on the 
Bonds then maintained by each of such rating agencies will not be downgraded as a result of any such 
amendment, change or modification to this Agreement. 

S. Assianment. The District hereby assents to the assignment by the Foundation of all of its 
rights and remedies hereunder to the Bond trustee (and any successors or assigns thereof in such capacity), as 
security for repayment of the Bonds. This Agreement may not otherwise be assigned without the prior written 
consent of the parties hereto. 

6. Govemina Law; Interpretation. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Every provision oflaw and clause required by law to be 
inserted in this contract shall be deemed to be inser� and this contract shall be read and enforced as though it 
were included, and if through mistake or othern1se any provision is not inserted or is not correctly inserted, 
upon application of either party the contract shall be amended to make the insertion or correction. All 
references to statutes and regulations shall include all amendments. replacements. and enactments on the 
subject which are in effect as of the date of this contract. and any later changes which do not materially and 
substantially alter the positions of the parties. 

7. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction bolds any clause to be invalid or 
unenforceable in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining clauses, or 
portions of them. shall not be affected unless an essential purpose of this Agreement would be defeated by Joss 
of the invalid or unenforceable provision. 

8. Execution in Several Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE JS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and the Foundation has each caused this OCCUPANCY & 
OPERATION AGREEMENT to be executed by their respective duly authorized representatives, all as of the 
date first above written. 

FEATHER RIVER COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 

[title] 

FEATHER RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
DISTRICT 
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EXfIBIT A 

Schedule of Special Forest Revenues Payments 

Payment Date 
7 /1/03 (for fiscal rear 03-04) 
7 /1/04 (for fiscal rear 04-05) 
7/1/05 (for fiscal rear 05-06) 
7 /1/06 {for fiscal rear 06-07} 

E-11 

Pa�ment Amount 
$250,000 
250,000 
250.000 
250,000 



APPENDIX F 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (d1e "Disclosure Agreement") is executed and delivered by the 
Feather River College Foundation. Inc. (the �Borrower") and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the 
·'Trustee"') and as Dissemination Agent (as defined herein) in connection with the issuance of $3.250.000 
California Community College Financing Authority Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River 
Community College Distlict Project). Series 2003A Tax-Exempt (the "'Series A Bonds'"), $165.000 California 
Community College Financing Authority Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Feather River Community College 
District Project). Series 2003B Taxable (th1: ··Serles B Bonds"'. and together with the Series A Bonds the 
.. Bonds"'). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indentun: dated as of May 1 ,  2003 between the 
California Community College Financing Authority and the Trustee (the •'Indenture"). The Borrower. 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee covenant and agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. Pumose of the Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is being executed 
and delivered by the Borrower. Dissemination Agent and the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders and 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with S.E.C. 
Rule l 5c2-12(b)(5). 

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the def"mitions set forth in the Indenture. which apply to any 
capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in this Section. the following 
capitalized terms shall have the follo"'ing meanings: 

.. Annual Report•· shall mean any Annual Report provide:d by the Borrower pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement . 

.. Beneficial Owner .. shall mean any person which has or shares the power. directly or indirectly, to 
make investment decisions concerning O\VDt:rship of any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds lhrough 
nominees. depositories or other intermediaries) . 

.. Disclosure Representative .. shall mean the President of the Borrower or his or her designee. or such 
other officer or employee as the Borrower shall designate in writing to the Dissemination Agent and the 
Trustee from time to time. 

'"Dissemination Agent" shall mean U.S. Bank National Association, acting in its capacity as 
Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the Borrower 
and which has filed with the Trustee a written acceptance of such designation. 

''Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section S(a) of Disclosure Agreement. 

"National Repository"' shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information 
Repository for purposes of the Rule . 

.. Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to 
comply with the Rule in connection with offering oftbe Bonds . 

.. Repository" shall mean each National Repository and the State Repository. 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2· 12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. as the same may be amended from time to time. 
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"State"' shall mean the State of California. 

··state Repository� shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as the 
state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Borrower shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than six months 
after the end of the Borrower's fiscal year (presently June 30), commencing with the report for the 2001-2003 
Fiscal Year. provide to each Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as 
separate documents comprising a package. and may include by reference other information as provided in 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that the audited fmancial statements of the Borrower may be 
submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing 
of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date. If the Borrower's fiscal year changes, it shall give 
notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(f). 

(b)Not later than fifteen ( 15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) for 
providing the Annual Report to Repositories. the Borrower shall provide the Annual Report to the 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee (if the Trustee is not the Dissemination Agent). The Borrower shall 
provide a written certification with each Annual Report furnished to the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee 
to the effect that such Annual Report constitutes the Annual Report required to be furnished by it hereunder. 
The Dissemination Agent and Trustee may conclusively rely upon such certification of the Borrower and shall 
have no duty or obligation to review such Annual Report. If by such date, the Trustee has not received a copy 
of the Annual Report, the Trustee shall contact the Borrower and the Dissemination Agent to determine if the 
Borrower is in compliance v.ith the first sentence of this subsection (b). 

( c) If the Trustee is unable to verify that an Annual Report has been provided to Repositories 
by the date required in subsection (a). the Trustee shall send a notice to each Repository in substantially the 
form attached as Exhibit A. 

( d) The Dissemination Agent shall : 

(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name 
and address of each National Repository and the State Repository, if any; and 

(ii) if information is available to the Dissemination Agent. file a report with the 
Borrower and (if the Dissemination Agent is not the Trustee) the Trustee certifying that the Annual 
Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided and 
listing all the Repositories to which it was provided. 

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Repo,t shall contain or include by reference 
the following: 

(a) Financial Statements. The audited fmancial statements of the Borrower for the most 
recently available fiscal year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
promulgated to apply to financial audits contained in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. If the Borrower's audited fmancial statements are not available by 
the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain 
unaudited financial statements, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the 
Annual Report when they become available. 
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(b) Student Enrollment Total student enrollment and full-time equivalent student enrollment 
at the College for the Fall Term of the current fiscal year. 

(c) Projected Operating Budget. A projected operating budget for the College for the then 
current fiscal year. 

(d) Occupancv Statistics. A description of the occupancy in the Project and the gross rental 
income for the most recent month available preceding the filing of the Annual Report. 

(e) Coverage Requirement. A calculation of the Coverage Ratio for the Project for the prior 
fiscal year. 

(f) Reserve Fund, Surplus l�und and Repair and Replacement Fund A statemen1 of the 
balance on deposit in the Reserve Fund and in 1he Repair and Replacement Fund as of the most recent date for 
which such information is available preceding the filing of the Annual Report, including a summary of 
withdrawals from each such fund. the use to which such withdrawah were put and the amount of Bonds to be 
called from Surplus Fund moneys. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including 
official statements of debt issues of the Borrower or related public entities, which have been submitted to each 
of the Repositories or the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document included by reference is a 
fmal official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The Borrower 
shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Borrower shall give, or cause to be given. 
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 

1 .  principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults; 

3. modifications tc, rights of Bondholders: 

4. optional, contingent or unscheduled bond calls; 

5. defeasances; 

6. rating changes; 

7. adverse tax opinions or events adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of the 
Bonds; 

8. unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

9. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting fmancial difficulties: 

I 0. substitution of credit or liquidity providers. or their failure to perform; 

1 1. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds. 
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(b) The Trustee shall, within one ( I )  Business Day of obtaining actual knowledge of the 
occurrence of any of the Listed Events or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafl:er. contact the Disclosure 
Representative. infmm such person of the evenl and request that the Borrower promptly notify the 
Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report the event pursuant to subsection (f), and promptly 
direct the Trustee whether or not to report such event to the Bondholders. In the absence of such direction. the 
Trustee shall not report such event unless otherwise required to be reported by the Trustee to the Bondholders 
under the Indenture. The Trustee may conclusively rely upon such direction (or lack thereof). For purposes of 
this Disclosure Agreemenl •·actual knowledgefl of the occutrence of such Listed Events shall mean actual 
knowledge by the officer at the corporate trust office of the Trustee with regular responsibility for the 
administration of matters related to the Indenture. The Trustee shall have no responsibility to dete1mine the 
materiality of any of the Listed Events. 

( c) Whenever the Borrower obtains knowledge of the occutrence of a Listed Evenl whether 
because of a notice from the Trustee pursuant to subsection (b) or otherwise, the Botrower shall as soon as 
possible detetmine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(d) If the Borrower has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event would 
be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Borrower shall promptly notify the Dissemination 
Agent in writing. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occu,rence pursuant to 
subsection (f). 

(e) If in response to a request under subsection (b), the Borrower determines that the Listed 
Event would not be material under applicable federal securities laws. the Borrower shall so notify the 
Dissemination Agent in v.Titing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to 
subsection (f). 

(f) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Borrower to report the occurrence 
of a Listed E venl the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the Repositories and any 
State Repository. Notwithstanding the foregoing. notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(4) and 
(5) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given 
to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Indenture. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Borrower's obligations under this Disclosure 
Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. 
If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Bo,rower shall give notice of such 
termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Seclion 5(f). 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The Borrower may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in ca,Tying out its obligalions under this Disclosure Agreemenl and may 
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by 
the Borrower pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent may resign by providing thirty 
days written notice to the Borrower and the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to prepare 
any information report nor shall the Dissemination Agent be responsible for filing any report not provided to it 
by the Borrower in a timely manner and in a form suitable for filing. 

SECTION 8. Amendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Agreement, the Borrower and the Trustee may amend this Disclosure Agreement (and the Trustee and 
Dissemination Agent shall agree to any amendment so requested by the Borrower provided. neither the Trustee 
nor the Dissemination Agent shall be obligated to enter into any such amendment that modifies or increases its 
duties or obligations hereunder), and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided that 
the following conditions arc satisfied: 
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(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4. or S(a), it may 
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that a,rises from a change in legal requirements, 
change in law. or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or 
the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking. as am(:nded or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel. have ,;omplied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the 
original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule. as well 
as any change in circumstances; and 

( c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Bonds in the same 
manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of Holders, or (ii) does 
not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel. materially impair the interests of the Holders or 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Borrower shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report. and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation 
of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change of accounting 
principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the Borrower. In 
addition. if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in prepBlring financial statements, 
(i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(1), and 
(ii) the Annual Report for the yea,r in which the change is made should present a compBlrison (in narrative form 
and also. if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new 
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to 
prevent the Borrower from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in 
this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any 
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. in addition to that which is required by this 
Disclosure Agreement. If the Borrower chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, 
the Borrower shall have no obligation under this Agreement to update such information or include it in any 
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION JO. Default. In the event of a failure of the Borrower or the Trustee to comply with any 
provision of this Disclosure Agreement. the Trustee, at the written rc:quest of any Participating Underwriter or 
the Holders of at least 25% aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds, shall but only to the extent 
funds in an amount satisfactory to the Trustee have been provided to it or it has been otherwise indemnified to 
its satisfaction from any cost, liability, expense or additional charges and fees of the Trustee whatsoever, 
including, without limitation, fees and expenses of its attorneys, or any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the 
Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific 
performance by court order, to cause the Borrower or Trustee, as the case may be, to comply with its 
obligations under this Disclosure Agreement. A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed 
an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under 11his Disclosure Agreement in the event of 
any failure of the Bonower or the Trustee to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to 
compel performance. 

SECTION 1 1. Duties; Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee and Dissemjnatjon Agent Article 1 1  of 
the Indenture is hereby made applicable to this Disclosure Agreement as if this Disclosure Agreement were 
(solely for this puq,ose) contained in the Indenture and the Trustee and Dissemination Agent shall be ,mtitled 
to the protections, limitations from liabiliity and indemnities afforded the Trustee thereunder. The 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure 
Agreement. and the Borrower agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee, their 
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officers. directors. employees and agents. harmless against any loss. expense and liabilities which it may incur 
arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and 
expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability. but excluding liabilities due to 
the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Dissemination Agent shall be paid 
compensation by the Borrower for its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees as 
amended from time to time and all expenses, legal fees and advances made or incurred by the Dissemination 
Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder. The Dissemination Agent and the Trustee shall have no duty 
or obligation to review any information provided to them hereunder and shall not be deemed to be acting in 
any fiduciary capacity for the Borrower. the Bondholders. or any other party. The obligations of the Borrower 
under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent arid payment of the Bonds. 

SECTION 12. Notices. Any notices or communicaions to or among any of the parties to this 
Disclosure Agreement may be given as follows: 

To the Borrower: 

To the Trustee or 
the Dissemination 
Agent: 

Feather River College Foundation, Inc. 
570 Golden Eagle Avenue 
Quincy, CA 95971 

U.S. Bank National Association 
550 S. Hope Street. Suite 500 
Los Angeles, California 90071 
Attention: Corporate Trust Services 

Any person may, by written notice to the other persons listed above. designate a different address or telephone 
number(s) to which subsequent notices or communications should be sent. 

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
Borrower, the Trustee. the Dissemination Agent. the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial 
Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

SECTION 14. Countemarts. This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Dated as of: May I. 2003 

Dated as of: May I. 2003 

FEATHER RIVER COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Dissemination Agent 
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EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of Borrower: Feather River College Foundation. Inc. 

Name of Bond Issue: California Commmlity College Financing Authority Student Housing Revenue 
Bonds (Feather River Community College District Project). Series 2003A Tax­
Exempt. and California Community College Financing Authority Student Housing 
Revenue Bonds (Feather River Communit)1 College District Project), Series 20038 
Taxable 

Date oflssuance: May 29, 2003 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Feather River College Foundation, Inc. bas not provided an Annual 
Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by Section 5. 20 of the Indenture dated May l ,  2003 
between the Borrower and U.S. Bank National Association. [The Borrower anticipates that the Annual 
Report will be flied by .J 

Dated: ---- - --

cc: Borrower 

Secretary of Feather River College Foundation, Inc., 
on behalf of Borrower 
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APPENDIX G 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

THE INFORMATION IN TIIlS SECTION CONCERNING OTC AND DTC'S BOOK-EN1RY 
SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM OTC, BUT NEITHER THE AUTHORITY NOR THE 
BORROWER TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. 

The Bonds initially v.ill be delivere;,d in the form of lully registered. book-entry only bonds. Upon 
initial delivery. the Bonds will be registered in the registry books kept by the Trustee. as bond registrar. in the 
name of Cede & Co. as nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC').. New York, New York, which 
will act as the initial secwities depository for the Bonds (the ·•Bond Depository") under a book-entry only 
system. Purchasers of Bonds (the ""Bent!jiclal Owners") will not receive certificates representing their interest 
in the Bonds. Purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds "111 be made in book-entry only form in 
Authorized Denomip.ations by credit to participating broker-dealers and other institutions on the books of OTC 
as described herein. Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by the Trustee direaly to 
OTC as the registered Owner thereof. Disbursement of such payments to the OTC Participants (as hereinafter 
defined) is the responsibility of DTC and disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the 
responsibility of the OTC Participants and the Indirect Participants (as hereinafter defined), as more fully 
described herein. Any purchaser of beneficial interests in the Bonds must maintain an account with a broker or 
dealer who is, or acts through. a OTC Participant to receive paymeot of the principal of and interest on such 
Bonds. 

OTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a 
•'banking organization'' within the meaning of New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve 
System. a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
•·clearing agency .. registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended. OTC holds securities that its participants (the '"Ul'C Partldpants'") deposit with OTC. OTC also 
facilitates the settlement among OTC Participants of securities transactions. such as transfers and pledges, in 
deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry changes in accowits of the OTC Participants. 
thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. OTC Participants include 
securities brokers and dealers, banks. trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. 
OTC is owned by a number of its OTC Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the Ainerican 
Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the OTC system is 
also available to others. such as banks, brokers. dealers, and trust companies that clear through or maintain a 
custodial relationship with a OTC Participant. either directly or indirectly {the .. lndlr«t Participants"). The 
rules applicable to OTC and its Direct Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the .. SEC'). 

Purchases of Bonds under the OTC system must be made by or through OTC Participants which will 
receive a credit balance lor the Bonds in the records of OTC. ·11te ownership interest of each Beneficial Owner 
is in mm to be recorded in the OTC Participants' and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will 
not receive written confirmation from OTC of their purchase. but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive a 
written confirmation of their purchase providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of 
their holdings, from the OTC Participants and Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner 
entered the transaction. Transfers of ownership interest in the Bonds will be accomplished by en1ries made on 
the books of OTC Participants and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of the Beneficial Owners. Beneficial 
Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Bonds, except in the �·ent the 
use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 
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SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS THE NOMINEE FOR OTC, IS THE REGISTERED OWNER 
OF THE BONDS, THE AUTHORITY AND THE TRUSTEE WILL TREAT CEDE & CO. AS THE 
ONLY REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS FOR ALL PURPOSES UNDER THE INDENTURE, 
INCLUDING RECEIPT OF ALL PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS, RECEIPT OF 
NOTICES, AND VOTING. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers. all Bonds deposited by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants 
are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee. Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and 
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge 
of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the DTC Participants 
in whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The DTC 
Participants and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of 
their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to DTC Participants. by DTC Participants 
to Indirect Participants, and by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. 

Redemption notices will be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the Bonds are being redeemed, 
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each DTC Participant in the Bonds being 
redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co., will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds. Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date. The 
omnibus proxy assigns Cede & Co. 's consenting or voting rights to those DTC Participants to whose accounts 
the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in the listing attached to the omnibus proxy). 

Principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to DTC. DTC"s practice is to credit DTC 
Participants' accounts on the payment dates in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's 
records unless DTC has reason to believe that it "ill not receive payment on the payment date. Payments by 
DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and 
customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in "street name, - and will be the responsibility of such DTC Participant or Indirect Participant and 
not of DTC, the Trustee, as paying agent. or the Authority, subject to any statutory and regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of the principal and interest to DTC is the 
responsibility of the Trustee, as paying agent. disbursement of such payments to DTC Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and the disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants. 

The Trustee will pay principal of and interest on the Bonds to or upon the order of the respective 
Owners, as shown on the registration books kept by the Trustee, as bond registrar, or upon their respective 
attorneys duly authorized in writing. as provided in the Indenture, and all such payments will be valid and 
effective to fully satisfy the Authority's obligations with respect to the payment of principal and interest on the 
Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. Upon delivery by the nominee of DTC to the Trustee of 
written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of the existing 
nominee, and subject to the provisions of the Indenture with respect to record dates, the word "Cede & Co." in 
the Indenture will refer to such new nominee ofDTC. 

In the event the Authority or the Trustee receives written notice from DTC to the eff.ect that DTC is 
unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities, and the Authority is unable to find a substitute depository, 
in the opinion of the Authority, willing and able to undertake the functions of the Bond Depository upon 
reasonable and customary terms, then the Bonds will no longer be restricted to being registered in the 
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registration books of the Authority kept by the Trustee. as bond registrar. in the name of the nominee of DTC 
or DTC. but may be registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial Q\\.ners (as certified by OTC) 
transferring or exchanging the Bonds will designate., in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. 

In the event the Authority determines that it is in the best interests of the Beneficial OY.ners of the 
Bonds that they be able to obtain bond certificates, the Authority may notify OTC and the Trustee. whereupon 
OTC will notify the OTC Participants and Indirect Participants of the availability through the nominee or OTC 
of bond certificates. In such event. the Trustee will issue, transfer. and exchange Bond certificates as requested 
by OTC and any other Bondo\\11ers in appr,opriate amounts, and \\ihenever the Bond Depository requests the 
Authority and the Trustee to do so. the Authority and the Trustee will cooperate with OTC by taking 
appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to make available one or more separate ce1tificates evidencing the 
Bonds to any nominee or OTC Participant having Bonds credited to its account or (ii) to arrange for another 
securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds. 

Nottl'ithstanding_ anv other provision described herein or contained in the lnlienture to the contraa•, 
so long as any Bond as _rggistered in the name of the nominee of DTC, all pqyments with respect to the 
grincigal of.and interest on such Bond will be made and riven, respecti,1elv, to the nominee or DTC in the 
�ided in the Blanket Letter ol�resentotion entered into between DTC and the Authority. 

In connection with any notice or ,communication to he provided to Bondowners pursuant to the 
Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by 
Bondowners. the Authority, or the Trustee. as the case may be, will establish a record date for such consent or 
other action and give the nominee or OTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen ( 15) calendar days in 
advance of such record date to the extent possible. 

NEITiffiR THE AUTHORITY. TIIE BORROWER, NOR THE TRUSTEE HAS ANY 
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLJGA TIONS TO THE OTC PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS 
WJTH RESPECT TO (A) Tiffi ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY OTC OR A}.'Y OTC 
PARTICIPANT; (B) THE PAYMENT BY OTC OR ANY OTC PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOU1' T DUE 
TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE 
BONDS; (C) THE DELIVERY OR TIMELINESS OF DELIVERY BY OTC OR ANY OTC PARTICIPANT 
OF ANY NOTICE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER 
THE TERMS OF THE INDENTURE TO BE GIVEN TO BONDOWNERS� (D) THE SELECTION OF THE 
BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENTS IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION 
OF THE BONDS; OR (E) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY OTC, OR ITS 
NOMINEE. CEDE & CO., AS REGISTERED BONDOWNER. 
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